
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Licensing Committee 

on Monday, 29 November 2021, at 2.00 p.m. 

in the Town Council Chamber, Kendal Town Hall 

 

Committee Membership 
Councillors 

 
Rupert Audland 

Brian Cooper 

Pete Endsor 

Alvin Finch (Vice-Chairman) 

Tom Harvey 

Fiona Hanlon 

Hazel Hodgson 

Kevin Holmes 

Helen Irving 

Andrew Jarvis 

Helen Ladhams (Chairman) 

Doug Rathbone 

Heather Troughton 

David Webster 

Ian Wharton 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
Note – Due to the ongoing Covid-19 Pandemic, any Members of the public who wish to 
Attend to observe the meeting, are required to contact 
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk , at least 24 hours before the meeting. 
 
Thursday, 18 November 2021 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/
mailto:committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 6 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 2 November 2020. 

 

3  MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES  7 - 52 

 To receive the minutes of the meetings of Licensing Sub-Committees held on 12 
and 19 June 2020, 11 January (10.00 a.m.), 11 January (1.00 p.m.), 1 February, 
9 April, 5 May, 6 July, 31 August (10.00 a.m.) and 31 August (1.00 p.m.) 2020, 
and for the Chairmen of the appropriate Sub-Committees to sign, as correct 
records. 

 

4  EMERGENCY NON-EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  53 - 56 

 To note the following Emergency Non-Executive Decision taken by the Chief 
Executive in accordance with Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution 3. (B 1) (1.1) 
and to note any spending outside any budgetary provision:- 
 

 20 10/03/21 Extension to Statement of Licensing Policy 

 

5  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

6  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 



7  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

8  REVIEW OF LICENSING FEES AND CHARGES 2022/2023  57 - 72 

 To consider the licensing fees and charges and draft budget for the service area 
for referral to Council for consideration as part of the overall budget setting for 
2022/23. 

 

9  THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING 
POLICY  

73 - 136 

 To consider the revised Licensing Policy, together with the results of a three 
month formal consultation process, prior to being forwarded to full Council for 
adoption. 

 

PART II   

 Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
02.11.2020 Licensing Committee 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Committee held on Monday, 2 
November 2020, at 2.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Helen Ladhams (Chairman) 
Andrew Jarvis (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Rupert Audland 

Alvin Finch 
Hazel Hodgson 

 

Kevin Holmes 
Helen Irving 
Suzie Pye 

 

Doug Rathbone 
David Webster 

Ian Wharton 
 

 

Officers 
 

Courage Aiguobasinmwin Solicitor - Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Laura Chapman Corporate Support Officer 

Sean Hall Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Vicky McDonald Operational Lead Case Management 

 

L/1 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 20 January 2020. 
 

L/2 MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 
17 January 2020 and 2 June 2020 be received and the Chairman of the relevant Sub-
Committee be authorised to sign as a correct record. 
 

L/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

L/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

L/5 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
had been received in respect of this meeting. 
 

L/6 REVIEW OF LICENSING FEES AND CHARGES 2021/2022 AND DRAFT BUDGET  
 
The Operational Lead Case Management Services informed Members that Officers had 
proposed a 2% increase to the majority of locally controlled license fees, in line with the 
Medium Financial Plan. She highlighted that a significant proportion of licenses issued 

Page 5

Item No.2



2 
02.11.2020 Licensing Committee 
 
had been based on cost recovery. She informed Members that due to the pandemic, 
current data had been used to set the 2021/22 charges and emphasised the impact of 
both the current pandemic and the potential impact of Brexit.  
 
The Operational Lead Case Management Services stated that officers had committed to a 
full review of fees and charges before 2022/23 budget setting. She highlighted the future 
Licensing working group, led by officers with Member oversight that would report back to 
both Licensing and Licensing Regulatory Committees on a regular basis. 
 
Members raised questions relating to taxi and private hire fees that had not been due to 
change as a result of the report and requested information relating to the total number of 
officers that were involved in the licensing process. The Principle Specialist (Health & 
Environment) informed Members that the consultation process linked to raising or 
lowering the Taxi and Private Hire License fees was disproportionate to the amount that 
had been proposed and highlighted the intention to review these fees when the full review 
is undertaken before 2022/23 budget setting. He stated that the expectation was that a full 
breakdown of all officers involved in the licensing process throughout the authority would 
be produced as part of ongoing works over the next 12 months. 
 
RESOLVED – That:- 
 
(1) the recommended fees for the financial year 2021/22 as set out in Appendix 1, and 
subject to approval by Council as part of the final budget setting process be endorsed;  
 
(2) the Licensing Committee note the nationally-set fees for 2021/22 as set out in 
Appendix 2; and 

 
(3) the Licensing Committee note and refer the latest draft budget estimates including 
the fees and charges for 2021/22 in Appendix 4 to Council for approval as part of the final 
budget report. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.16 p.m. 

Page 6



1 
12.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a virtual meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee on 
Friday, 12 June 2020, at 10.30 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Kevin Holmes 
 

Helen Ladhams 
 

David Webster 
 

 

Officers 
 

Patrick Cantley Licensing Officer 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Rachel Ireland Case Management Officer 

 

LS/1 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) welcomed everyone to 

the virtual meeting of South Lakeland District Council’s Licensing Sub- 

Committee. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) then invited 
Members of the Committee to introduce themselves, to advise whether they were taking 
part by video or audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) and 
hear all Members participating in the meeting. All Members present, having indicated that 
this was the case, the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring 
Officer) confirmed that a request for an adjournment of today’s meeting had been received 
and that this would be dealt with at Item 6 of the Agenda. The Legal, Governance and 
Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) then invited the public participants, who 
had been dialled into the meeting, to introduce themselves and confirm that they were 
able to hear the proceedings. She then referred to officers present at the meeting who 
would introduce themselves when asked to address the meeting. 
 

LS/2 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Helen Ladhams be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/3 CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman referred to the new Government legislation which allowed Councils to 
conduct remote meetings and explained in detail to all taking part. 
 

LS/4 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there were no changes in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

Page 7

Item No.3



2 
12.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

LS/5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/6 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

LS/7 PROCEDURE FOR MEETING  
 
The Chairman read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/8 APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE - GIGGLING GOOSE, THE 
OLD MILL, NORTH RD, AMBLESIDE  
 
The Chairman advised Members of the Sub-Committee and those who had been dialled 
into the Sub-Committee meeting that a request had been received from an interested 
party that the meeting be adjourned. In addition to the request for an adjournment, Mrs 
Ahmed had submitted two video clips and a number of photographs after 5.50 p.m. the 
previous evening.  
 
The Chairman explained that under Regulation 18 of the Licensing Hearing Regulations 
2003, in considering any representations or notice made by a party, the authority may 
take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in support of their 
application, representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing or with the 
consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.  
 
The Chairman went on to explain that the Council had therefore not had the opportunity to 
review the information to ensure it did not contain any intrusive footage of people or 
personal information. The Council had also not had the opportunity to check the file format 
to check its compatibility for playing through the Microsoft Teams platform and the Council 
had not had the opportunity to share the information with the applicant or agent.  
 
The Chairman clarified that the only way the information could be provided at the hearing 
was with the consent of the other parties at the hearing. The other parties had not seen 
the information and therefore were not in a position to provide their consent to the 
information, which had been submitted, to be considered at the hearing.  Therefore, due 
to the late receipt of the video and photographs the Chairman proposed an adjournment 
of the hearing to allow for copies of the videos and photographs to be provided to the 
other interested party by 12.00 p.m. on 12 June 2020 and for any comments to be 
received by 12.00 p.m. on Monday 15 June 2020 together with confirmation of consent to 
submit the evidence at the adjourned hearing date. 
 
The Chairman proposed that the Hearing was adjourned until Friday 19 June 2020 at 
10.30 a.m. The proposal was seconded and it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the meeting be adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.56 a.m. 

Page 8



3 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a virtual meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 
Friday, 19 June 2020, at 10.30 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 
   
  
 

Kevin Holmes 
 

Helen Ladhams 
 

David Webster 
 

 

Officers 
 

Patrick Cantley Licensing Officer 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Rachel Ireland Case Management Officer 

 

LS/9 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) welcomed everyone to 
the reconvened virtual meeting of South Lakeland District Council’s Licensing Sub-
Committee. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) then invited 
Members of the Committee to introduce themselves, to advise whether they were taking 
part by video or audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) and 
hear all Members participating in the meeting. All Members present, having indicated that 
this was the case, the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring 
Officer) then invited the public participants, who had been dialled into the meeting, to 
introduce themselves and confirm that they were able to hear the proceedings. She then 
referred to officers present at the meeting who would introduce themselves when asked to 
address the meeting. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) then thanked 
the applicant and the applicant’s agent for confirming their agreement to the submission of 
further materials within the deadlines that were agreed at the adjourned meeting of the 
Licensing Sub-Committee on Friday, 12 June 2020. 
 

LS/10 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
Councillor Helen Ladhams had been elected as Chairman for the meeting before its 
adjournment on Friday, 12 June 2020.   
 

LS/11 CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman referred to the new Government legislation which allowed councils to 
conduct remote meetings and explained in detail to all taking part. 
 

Page 9



4 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

LS/12 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
Following its adjournment there had been no change in the membership of the Sub-
Committee, and therefore, no reconstitution of membership was necessary upon 
reconvening. 
 

LS/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/14 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

LS/15 PROCEDURE FOR MEETING  
 
The Chairman read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/16 APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE - GIGGLING GOOSE, THE 
OLD MILL, NORTH RD, AMBLESIDE  
 
The Licensing Specialist presented a report which requested consideration of an 
application for the grant of a premises licence in respect of the Giggling Goose, 
Ambleside, in light of two representations which had been submitted by interested parties. 
 
The Licensing Specialist addressed the Sub-Committee and drew Members’ attention to 
Sub-Section 1.17 of guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. He 
went on to outline details of the application which sought authorisation for the sale of 
alcohol both on and off premises, during the hours of 10.00 hours to 23.00 hours, Monday 
to Sunday. 
 
The Licensing Specialist also referred to Appendices A and C to the report, which further 
outlined the details of the application and the location of the premises. He explained that 
the application had been circulated to all of the Responsible Authorities and that none of 
them had submitted a relevant representation. He also explained the application adhered 
to all advertising requirements as per the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Mrs Ahmed, a local resident and owner of Ambleside Opticians, which is located within 
the vicinity of the Giggling Goose, addressed the Sub-Committee and photographs and 
videos were displayed in relation to her representation. 
 
Mrs Ahmed began her representation by explaining there were 15 residential homes in the 
immediate vicinity of the premises. She explained that residents lived in very close 
proximity to the premises and lived side by side of each other and that the granting of the 
premises licence would have a devastating impact on the lives of local residents and on 
her livelihood. She stated that the videos and photographs clearly conveyed the impact 
the application would have on her and other local residents. Mrs Ahmed went on to draw 
Members’ attention to the passageway and informed Members that it was a shared 
access.  
 
Mrs Ahmed referred to the photographs of the toilet facilities and informed Members that 
there was only one toilet, which served the customers and staff of the Giggling Goose and 
was also shared by the customers and staff of Ambleside opticians. She went on to 
outline her concerns regarding public nuisance which would be caused by the increase in 

Page 10



5 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

use of the toilet facilities and that people would loiter and queue for the outside toilet and 
this would consequently affect the privacy of residents. She also highlighted that the bins 
of the premises were in close proximity to the local resident’s properties and that the 
smoking area would cause anti-social behaviour. 
 
Mrs Ahmed claimed that unhygienic conditions would be created due to the build-up of 
activity in the area and an increased use of the toilet facilities. She stated that the gardens 
would be used as urinals and that people queuing outside the toilet facilities, late into the 
night, would be unacceptable. She emphasised the impact on residential homes in the 
area and the invasion of privacy of people congregating, drinking and smoking in the 
vicinity. Mrs Ahmed stated that the beer garden would not be in keeping with the Old Mill, 
which was a Listed Building within a Conservation Area. In concluding her address, Mrs 
Ahmed reiterated her concerns regarding litter problems, vermin, inadequate lighting in 
the area, increased fire risk, urination and drug use. She stated that the application 
undermined the licensing objectives and that the property was too intimate and convoluted 
to have this type of premises in near proximity.  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) informed the 
Sub Committee that Mrs Ahmed was making representations on behalf of herself and her 
business only and was not able to speak on behalf of local residents and she reiterated 
the objections that had been received.    
 
Mrs Ahmed responded to questions raised by the Sub-Committee. 
 
The applicant’s agent, Mr Nickson, commenced his address. He informed the Sub-
Committee that he was the founder and director of Inn Confidence and a senior lecturer in 
licensing law. He commenced his address by highlighting that any representation in 
regard of the application should be relevant to the licensing objectives and Mr Nickson 
outlined the four licensing objectives in detail and went on to state that any speculation 
outlined in Mrs Ahmed’s representation needed to be supported by evidence. He 
emphasised that the cleanliness of the toilet should not be of discussion or consideration 
for the Licensing Sub-Committee.  
 
Mr. Nickson explained that the serving of alcohol would be an auxiliary function and stated 
the Police did not submit a representation and neither did any of the other Responsible 
Authorities who had been consulted. Mr Nickson asked the Sub-Committee Members to 
see the application for what it was, a simple application for alcohol sales as an 
accompaniment to food. He informed the Sub-Committee Members that it was a strong 
application with comprehensive conditions and with further conditions added to appease 
Mrs Ahmed. The additional conditions had met and satisfied all of Mrs Ahmed’s 
reasonable concerns. He commended the Licensing Specialist for his mighty efforts in 
mediating between all parties in his attempts to avoid the need for a hearing.  
 
The applicant, and applicant’s agent, responded to questions raised by the Sub-
Committee and Mrs Ahmed. 
 
Mr Henderson, the applicant, addressed the Sub-Committee. He explained that the 
premises had A3 planning permission for a café or restaurant and did not have A4 
planning permission for a bar. The purpose of the premises licence application was to 
enable him to serve alcohol as an auxiliary function. He explained that as a business 
owner he would not wish for any lawlessness or drunk and disorderly behaviour to take 
place at any premises he was responsible for, as this would be detrimental to his 
business. Mr Henderson informed the Sub-Committee that he already ran a successful 
licensed café in Grasmere and he intended to replicate this at the Giggling Goose.  
 

Page 11



6 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Mr Henderson then explained the various entrances to the premises to the Sub-
Committee and reiterated that after 18.00 hours no public would be able to leave through 
the North Road entrance. He explained that the intention of the application for a grant of a 
licence was to allow the serving of alcohol with meals.  
 
Mr Henderson responded to questions raised by the Sub-Committee and Mrs Ahmed.  
 
In her closing statement Mrs Ahmed stated that she had highlighted an overwhelming 
number of issues and that the information provided to the responsible authorities, by the 
applicant, was insufficient for an informed decision to be made. In addition a number of 
the conditions offered fell short of being satisfactory. 
 
Note – at this point in the proceedings, the Chairman was advised that all public 
participants had become disconnected from the meeting. The meeting adjourned at 
11.53 a.m. and reconvened at 12.17 p.m. when Mrs Ahmed, Mr Nickson and Mr 
Henderson confirmed that they were able to hear the proceedings. 
 
Mrs Ahmed, continued her closing statement and stated she was both a business owner 
and local resident and she represented a number of local residents. She stressed that the 
sale of alcohol would not be the issue but it would be the host of potential unwanted 
problems that would occur as a consequence. Mrs Ahmed reiterated that conditions 
offered to remedy these issues had not gone far enough and the impact on residents, her 
business and customers and the public would be immense and she urged the Sub-
Committee to reject the application.  
 
In his closing statement Mr Nickson, the applicant’s agent, stated that Mrs Ahmed could 
not speak on behalf of others. Furthermore, Mrs Ahmed could not claim that the 
responsible authorities had not been consulted. He explained that Mr Henderson, the 
applicant, already ran a successful and responsible café in Grasmere and that the 
proposed licence contained comprehensive conditions and Mrs Ahmed’s concerns were 
unfounded until proven otherwise. 
 
Note – at this point in the proceedings, the Chairman was advised that Sub-
Committee Member Councillor David Webster had become disconnected from the 
meeting. When reconnected to the meeting, Councillor Webster confirmed that he 
was able to see (where practicable) and hear all Members and public participants 
participating in the meeting, and Mr Nickson, the applicant’s agent, was asked to 
repeat his closing statement as outlined above.   
 
In his closing statement Mr Henderson, the applicant, emphasised that the Giggling 
Goose would not become a drinking establishment, it would not be pub with a beer 
garden. It would be a café which would offer alcoholic drinks with food. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public in making its decision and retired in accordance with 
Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) in order to further consider the application. 
 
The Chairman explained to all public participants that they would be disconnected from 
the virtual meeting in order for the Sub-Committee to reach their decision. Once the Sub-
Committee had concluded their deliberations the public participants would be reconnected 
and the meeting would be reconvened.  
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead 
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) then withdrew at 12.26 p.m. to consider the application. 

Page 12



7 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
The meeting reconvened at 1.17 p.m.  
 
The applicant, Mr Henderson; the applicant’s agent, Mr Nickson; and Mrs Ahmed were re-
connected to the virtual meeting in order to hear the decision of the Sub-Committee. The 
Chairman asked the parties in turn if they were able to hear the proceedings.  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
communicated the Sub-Committee’s decision. 
 
RESOLVED – That the application be granted subject to the standard mandatory 
conditions and to the following conditions:- 
 
(1) Approved for the following activities:- 
 
Activity:     Approved: 
   
Supply of Alcohol (On and Off)  Monday to Sunday 11:00 hours to 23:00 hours 

New Year’s Eve 11:00 hours to 01.00 hours New 
Year’s Day 

 
Live and Recorded Music (Indoors) New Year’s Eve 23.00 hours to 01.00 New Year’s 

Day 
 
Late Night Refreshment (Indoors)   New Year’s Eve 23.00 hours to 01.00 New Year’s 

Day 
 
Opening Hours:   Monday to Sunday 10:00 hours to 23:30 hours  

New Year’s Eve from 23:30 hours to 01:30 hours on 
New Year’s Day. 

 
(2) Subject to the Conditions offered with the application that include 
modifications agreed with the applicant in advance of this hearing and are listed 
within ‘Appendix D’ and include the red amendments incorporated into the text.  

 
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) 
 
The premises licence holder, DPS, management and staff will constantly assess any 
risks to the licensing objectives. They will work in partnership with the authorities and 
local people alike in this respect. The staff will be properly authorised, equipped, trained 
and motivated in this task. There will be: 



A written notice of ‘authority’ record for all staff who sell alcohol 

Comprehensive training for staff in the main requirements of the Licensing Act 2003, 
the specific measures and conditions in place to promote the Licensing Objectives and 
the staff roles and responsibilities. Such records shall be available for inspection by the 
responsible authorities. 

Contact details of the Designated Premises Supervisor available to staff and to the 
authorities 

Alcohol sales will be primarily dependent upon and ancillary to the sale and supply of 
food. 
 

Page 13



8 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 
 
The management and staff will take all necessary steps to ensure that the premises 
remain free from crime and disorder. This will include: 
 

Alcohol will not be permitted to be removed from the premises in open bottles or 
containers 

Alcoholic products will be stored behind the manned counter and not within the reach 
of the public. 

Staff being trained on security issues including how to identify and refuse service to 
customers that are drunk or appear to be drunk. 

CCTV shall be provided in the form of a recordable system capable of providing 
pictures of evidential quality and in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. 

Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises and any internal 
areas where the sale of alcohol occurs. 

CCTV equipment shall be maintained in good working order and correctly timed and 
dated. 

Recordings will be available for a period of 30 days made available to the police and 
other responsible authorities following reasonable request. 

The recording equipment shall be of a digital hard drive or cloud based system and 
shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the premises licence holder or 
other responsible named individual. 
 
c) Public safety 
 
The management and staff will have an effective policy to promote public safety. The 
DPS will liaise with the authorities to ensure that all aspects of public safety are adhered 
to. The policy will include: 

Appropriate firefighting equipment being installed and maintained at the premises and 
staff trained in its use. 

The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 
emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, 
shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order. 

The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free 
of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the 
plans provided. 
 
d) The prevention of public nuisance 
 
Between 18:00 hours and the time the premises closes to the public that day no 
customer will be permitted to enter or leave the premises by means of the customer 
entrance accessed from North Road. 
 
The management and staff are mindful of the need to reduce the impact of any nuisance 
caused by the operation of the premises, will constantly assess any risks and take 
immediate steps to eliminate the problem. The licence holder or their representative will 
ensure as follows - 

The premises and public areas nearby are kept free from litter associated with the 
operation of the business. A written record of premises checks shall be maintained and 
will include the time and date of the checks, details of the person making them and the 
results including any remedial action. 

Notices will be displayed asking customers to be considerate of neighbours when using 
the outside areas and when they leave the premises, and to dispose of waste carefully 
and responsibly. 

Page 14



9 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
e) The protection of children from harm 
 
The business will be operated in such a way that reflects a commitment to be a 
responsible retailer. To protect children from harm there will be a policy of: 

Staff training will occur before a staff member is authorised to sell alcohol for the 
business 

The age-verification policy will be one of Challenge 25. This will be specified in 
promotional material, terms & conditions, within the premises and emphasised through 
staff training. 

Anyone not looking 25 at the point of sale will be expected to prove that they have 
turned 18. Acceptable ID will be a photo driving licence, passport, PASS accredited 
proof of age card or other photo ID that is recommended for acceptance by the police or 
other authorities. 

The premises will be promoted as family friendly and suitable for all ages. 

There will be no inappropriate promotions, activities or behaviour tolerated at the 
premises that might put children at risk. 

Children and young people will be discouraged from congregating outside the premises 
in the evening. 
 

(3) Conditions imposed by the Sub-Committee as outlined below:-   
 
The prevention of public nuisance 

 All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours, or at any 

time when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access 

and egress of persons.  

 Any noise, vibrations, smells, light pollution and any other potential nuisance 

(e.g. toilets/ waste) is monitored and kept to an acceptable level 

 No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 

from or placed in outside areas between 21:00hrs and 0800hrs on the following 

day  

 With the exception of the designated smoking location and for purposes of access 

and egress, the outside area shall cease to be used at 21.00 hours. After 21:00 

hours, any customers permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the 

premises to smoke must be restricted to the designated smoking area marked on 

the premises plan. For the purpose of this condition the licence holder or their 

representative shall ensure as follows – 

  

i. Between 21:00 hours and the time the premises closes to the public on that day 
the area shall be checked a minimum of three times every hour.  

ii. A written record shall be made of the checks relating to the designated smoking 
area and will include the time and date of the checks, details of the person 
making them and the results including any remedial action. 

 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) explained the 
Sub-Committee fully considered the facts relating to the case and having heard the 
evidence, were satisfied that the measures already agreed and subsequently imposed are 
reasonable, proportionate and necessary to enable the application to be granted whilst 
furthering the four licensing objectives. 
 
Note – All present were notified that the decision would be confirmed in writing 
within the next few days. Parties had a right to appeal against the decision of the 

Page 15



10 
19.06.2020 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Sub Committee and may do so by giving notice of appeal to the Magistrates Court 
for the area in which the premises concerned are situated within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which they were notified of the decision by the licensing 
authority.  
 
The Chairman, prior to closing the meeting, expressed thanks to all who had participated 
and officers for their efforts for facilitating the meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 1.24 p.m. 

Page 16



11 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in the 
District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Monday, 11 January 2021, 
at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 

Councillors 

Kevin Holmes 
 

David Webster 
 

Ian Wharton 
 

Officers 
 

Una Bell Case Management Team Leader 

Patrick Cantley Specialist, Licensing 

Louisa Wania Case Management Officer 

Courage Aiguobasinmwin Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

 

LS/17 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – The Councillor Ian Wharton be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/18 INTRODUCTION  
 
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Specialist welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting of 
South Lakeland District Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited Members of the 
Committee to introduce themselves, to advise whether they were taking part by video or 
audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) and hear all Members 
participating in the meeting. All Members present, having indicated that this was the case, 
the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited the public participants, who 
had been dialled into the meeting, to introduce themselves and confirm that they were 
able to hear the proceedings. He then referred to officers present at the meeting who 
would introduce themselves when asked to address the meeting. 
 

LS/19 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no apologies and no reconstitution of 
membership. 
 

LS/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/21 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

LS/22 PROCEDURE FOR MEETING  
 
The Chairman read out the procedure for the meeting. 

Page 17



12 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 

LS/23 LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE  
 
The Licensing Specialist addressed the Sub-Committee and drew Members’ attention to 
Sub-Section 1.17 of guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. He 
went on to outline details of the application which sought authorisation for the sale of 
alcohol both on and off premises, during the hours of 00.00 hours to 23.59 hours, Monday 
to Sunday. 
 
The Licensing Specialist also referred to Appendices A and C to the report, which further 
outlined the details of the application and the location of the premises. He explained that 
the application had been circulated to all of the Responsible Authorities and that none of 
them had submitted a relevant representation. He also explained the application adhered 
to all advertising requirements in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
The Licensing Specialist outlined that there were three representations to consider in 
opposition to the application for the Hideout Boutique on Quarry Brow. The 
representations related to the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of 
public nuisance. Furthermore, the Licensing Specialist confirmed that the alcohol would 
be sold only to guests and not the general public.  
 
The Licensing Specialist responded to questions raised by Sub-Committee Members. 
 
Beth Grey, a local resident on Quarry Brow, addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of 
herself, Edward Grey and Colette Grey, also local residents.  
 
Beth Grey began her representation by explaining that she and those she was 
representing lived in the immediate vicinity of the premises. She stated that Quarry Brow 
was purely residential and that granting such a licence would be out of the ordinary for this 
street. She expressed worry that granting such a licence may be the first step in turning 
the premises into a bar. Ms Grey’s concern was that the granting of this licence would 
have a detrimental effect on the lives of residents and on her livelihood.  
 
She stated that no sufficient control measures, to prevent public nuisance as well as crime 
and disorder, were stated in the application. She expressed concern about the lack of 
clarity in the application regarding the specifics of sale and consumption of alcohol on site. 
With regards to the prevention of public nuisance, Ms Grey was particularly concerned 
about the possible impact that granting the licence would have on noise levels and 
general disturbance on the street. With regards to the prevention of crime and disorder, 
Ms Grey raised concerns about CCTV and data protection. She expressed concern about 
the limited details about the use of CCTV and the fact that there was no maximum 
retention period given, only a minimum of 28 days. She queried the applicant and Sub-
Committee as to how the incongruence between the prevention of crime and disorder and 
the prevention of breaching personal data would be resolved, as the CCTV from the 
Hideout House premise impacted residents’ doors and front gardens and thus far no detail 
had been provided on how the applicant was to prevent intrusion of data. Moreover, Ms 
Grey argued that the licence application seemed excessive as there were shops, such as 
Tesco, in close proximity to the property where alcohol could easily be acquired by guests 
of the Hideout Boutique.  
 
Ms Grey responded to questions raised by the Sub-Committee.  
 
The applicant’s agent, Malcolm Ireland, explained that the serving of alcohol would be an 
auxiliary function to enhance the high-end service provided by the Hideout Boutique and 

Page 18



13 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

stated that he Police had not submitted a representation and neither had any of the other 
Responsible Authorities who had been consulted.  
 
Mr Ireland provided some background to the application, stating that the premise had 
operated since 2013: it accommodated two guests and it was self-service apart from 
cleaning services offered. Customers were, as he put it, “well-heeled” and he stated that 
there existed legal precedents to show that such clients were less of a nuisance. He 
stated that the reason for the application was that the applicant wanted to be able to offer 
more high-end beverage packages on the premises. The need for the licence was such 
that a mini-bar could be accessed at any point by the clients with the Company being 
legally covered for such unsupervised access.  
 
Furthermore, he explained that the CCTV was required because the premise was self-
catered and therefore no staff were present to supervise it. He added that while there 
would be CCTV, there would be no persons actively monitoring it which he said was 
appropriate given the low level of risk.  
 
He apologised for the lack of information in the initial application, saying that there was no 
expectations of objections, but admitted the concern was understandable. In response to 
the objections raised, Mr Ireland argued that these were based on fear and speculation 
and there were no tangible reason to reject the application. He again stated that no 
Responsible Authorities had taken issue with the application, there was no certainty of 
public nuisance and that specific control measures against public nuisance were not 
necessary for this type of premises. The applicant did not seek the consumption of alcohol 
on the street, they instead sought for their clients to be able to access the aforementioned 
mini-bar at any time of day as well as to be able to take alcohol from the premises, such 
as a client taking home an unfinished bottle of wine.  
 
There were no questions put to Malcolm Ireland from the Sub-Committee or Ms Grey.  
 
In her closing statement, Ms Grey stated that Edward Grey wished to add that there had 
been issues with guests of the Hideout Boutique returning to the premise late and 
inebriated, the granting of this application would encourage further drinking. Ms Grey 
stated that she would like this licence, if granted, to limit guests bringing other people back 
to the premises. She stated that she did not believe that the prevention of public nuisance 
had satisfactorily been met by the application. Ms Grey asked the Committee to reject the 
application.  
 
In his closing statement, Mr Ireland stated that the objections made by Ms Grey were 
irrelevant to this application as there was nothing to stop such behaviour at the present 
moment. The licence applied for was perfectly normal for the purpose of this type of 
accommodation.  
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public in making its decision and retired in accordance with 
Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) in order to further consider the application. Also pursuant to Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated: 
 
Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 
could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
The Chairman explained to all public participants that they would be disconnected from 
the virtual meeting in order for the Sub-Committee to reach their decision. Once the Sub-

Page 19



14 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Committee had concluded their deliberations the public participants would be reconnected 
and the meeting would be reconvened.  
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist, 
then withdrew at 11.30 a.m. to consider the application. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 11.52 a.m.  
 
The applicant’s agent, Mr Malcolm Ireland; Ms Beth Grey; and Stephen Hargreaves (the 
owner) and David Hampshaw (the director) were re-connected to the virtual meeting in 
order to hear the decision of the Sub-Committee. The Chairman asked the parties in turn 
if they were able to hear the proceedings.  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist communicated the Sub-Committee’s 
decision. 
 
RESOLVED – That the application be granted subject to the standard mandatory 
conditions and to the following conditions:- 
 
(1)    Approved for the following activities:- 
 
Activity                                                         Approved 
 
Supply of alcohol (on and off)                       Monday to Sunday 00:00 hours to 23.59                                                                                                                           
                                                                      hours 
 
Opening hours                                              Monday to Sunday 00:00 hours to 23.59                                                                                                                           
                                                                      hours 
 
(2)    Subject to the conditions offered by the applicant and any other conditions that must 
be included on the licence 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist explained that the sub-committee had 
noted that no representations had been received by the responsible authorities. The sub-
committee also considered all matters raised by those objecting to the application. 
Particular attention had been paid to their representations with respect to the licensing 
objectives. In this instance Members did not consider it appropriate to impose additional 
conditions on the licence.    
 
Note – All present were notified that the decision would be confirmed in writing 
within the next few days. Parties had a right to appeal against the decision of the 
Sub Committee and may do so by giving notice of appeal to the Magistrates Court 
for the area in which the premises concerned are situated within a period of 21 days 
beginning with the day on which they were notified of the decision by the licensing 
authority.  
 
The Chairman, prior to closing the meeting, expressed thanks to all who had participated 
and officers for their efforts for facilitating the meeting.   
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.58 a.m. 
 
 

Page 20



17 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a virtual meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee on 
Monday, 11 January 2021, at 1.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 
   
  
 

Kevin Holmes 
 

Helen Ladhams 
 

David Webster 
 

Officers 
 

Una Bell Case Management Team Leader 

Courage 
Aiguobasinmwin 

Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Patrick Cantley Specialist, Licensing 

Sean Hall Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Thomas Toumazou Environmental Protection - Senior Specialist 

Louisa Wania Case Management Officer 

 

LS/24 INTRODUCTION  
 
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Specialist welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting of 
South Lakeland District Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited the Interested Parties, who 
had been dialled into the meeting, Mr Peter Nicholson, Licence Holder and Designated 
Premises Supervisor, The New Inn, Kendal; Police Inspector Paul Latham; and Ms Lisa 
Judge, Barrister at Law, to introduce themselves and confirm that they were able to hear 
the proceedings. The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited Officers 
present Mr Patrick Cantley, South Lakeland District Council Licensing Specialist; and Mr 
Thomas Toumazou, South Lakeland District Council Environmental Protection Senior 
Specialist, to introduce themselves and advise whether they were taking part by video or 
audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) and hear the 
proceedings.  The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited Members of 
the Sub Committee to introduce themselves and advise to advise whether they were 
taking part by video or audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) 
the proceedings. He then referred to officers present at the meeting who would introduce 
themselves when asked to address the meeting. 
 

LS/25 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Helen Ladhams be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/26 CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman referred to the new Government legislation which allowed councils to 
conduct remote meetings and explained in detail to all taking part. 

Page 21



18 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
 

LS/27 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no apologies and no reconstitution of 
membership. 
 

LS/28 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/29 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the items in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

LS/30 PROCEDURE FOR MEETING  
 
The Chairman read out the procedure of the meeting. 
 

LS/31 LICENSING ACT 2003 – REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE  
 
The Chairman advised Members of the Sub-Committee and those who had been dialled 
into the Sub-Committee meeting that an email had been received from the Solicitor 
representing Mr Nicholson, the premises licence holder and designated premises 
supervisor, which requested that the hearing be adjourned. 
 
The Chairman requested agreement from all parties present that the request for an 
adjournment be considered. The documents for consideration included emails from the 
representative of the licence holder and also a witness statement. All parties agreed that 
the documents circulated prior to the meeting be considered. 
 
All Members of the Sub Committee confirmed that they had read documents circulated 
prior to the meeting. 
 
All parties agreed that the reason for the request fell within Part I of the Agenda with no 
confidential information under the Local Government Act 1972 being disclosed or 
discussed. 
 
Lisa Judge, representing Mr Nicholson, addressed the Sub-Committee. She referred to 
the bundle of email information that had been submitted that morning and stated that its 
lateness was further indicative of late nature of the preparation of Mr Nicholson’s case. Ms 
Judge went on to explain that Mr Nicholson had received notification of the review of the 
licence however, there had been delays in securing insurance backed funding and the 
claims handler had only confirmed that indemnity was in place on 17 December 2020. 
Consequently there was a delay in her receiving formal instruction and a delay in 
engaging in pre hearing work. In addition certain segments of evidence submitted had 
been served electronically by the police and had been sent by mail to Mr Nicholson on 11 
December 2020. Ms Judge stated that the evidence had not been received by Mr 
Nicholson until the 23 December 2020 and she and her instructing solicitor had not had 
sight of the evidence.  
 
Ms Judge went on to explain that in regards to the adequacy of time available to her, as 
counsel, and to her instructing solicitor, to ensure Mr Nicholson’s case was properly and 
fairly presented to committee, she had an insufficiency of time to undertake that task. 

Page 22



19 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
There were a number of allegations raised and all matters needed to be adequately 
rebutted on his part. Ms Judge stated that she was in a position professionally that she 
was not able to adequately represent Mr Nicholson’s interests. In conclusion Ms Judge 
stated that there was no undue prejudice to the Licensing Authority, as the public house in 
question was currently closed due to the Coronavirus Health Protection Regulations 2020. 
She sought a very short adjournment so Mr Nicholson’s case could be fairly placed before 
the Sub-Committee in order that adequate consideration could be given to his livelihood. 
 
In response to a question raised by a Member of the Sub-Committee, Ms Judge explained 
that she sought a short adjournment of 14 days or thereabouts.  
 
Inspector Paul Latham stated that although he accepted that Ms Judge had been late 
instructed into the matter, Mr Nicholson had been aware of the proceedings for some 
considerable time. Inspector Latham accepted the delays caused by funding however he 
rebuffed the fact that the CCTV footage had not been received by Mr Nicholson until 23 
December 2020 as it had been sent recorded delivery on 11 December 2020 and had 
been signed for on the 16 December 2020. In addition the evidence had been presented 
in a form which Mr Nicholson would have able to file share with his solicitor. 
 
Ms Judge responded stating that she accepted the chronology regarding the delivery and 
receipt of the evidence. However, she understood that it had been received on 23 
December 2020. She went on to state that the sharing platform used by Cumbria 
Constabulary was dissimilar to the means used by other court centres for the secure 
means of transferring electronic data. She understood that the evidence was provided to 
Mr Nicholson in CD-ROM format and felt that there was an assumption that Mr Nicholson 
had the ability to file share. Ms Judge concluded by stating that she had not seen the 
evidence and that was the position she was in. 
 
Inspector Paul Latham, confirmed that the evidence had been sent by CD-ROM. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public in making its decision and retired in accordance with 
Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) in order to consider the request to adjourn the meeting. 
 
The Chairman explained to all Interested Parties that they would be disconnected from the 
virtual meeting in order for the Sub-Committee to reach their decision. Once the Sub-
Committee had concluded their deliberations the Interested Parties would be reconnected 
and the meeting would be reconvened.  
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then 
withdrew at 1.26 p.m. to consider the request for an adjournment. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 1.47 p.m. 
 
The Interested Parties were reconnected to the virtual meeting and were individually 
asked to confirm that they could hear and see the proceedings. 
 
The Chairman addressed the hearing and requested a vote on the motion to adjourn the 
hearing, based on the information which had been provided and for the reasons outlined 
in Mr Nicholson’s barrister’s letter. It was proposed that the adjournment would be for two 
weeks to allow all parties to view the body cam footage and to allow Mr Nicholson time to 
take advice. The Chairman confirmed that in their deliberations the Sub-Committee had 
taken into account the fact that due to Coronavirus pandemic the premises were currently 

Page 23



20 
11.01.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
not operational. The adjourned hearing would commence at 1.00 p.m. on the 25 January 
2021.  
 
Councillor David Webster proposed the motion. 
 
At this point in the proceedings, Ms Judge requested permission from the Chair to 
address the hearing. She explained that while the Sub Committee were deliberating, she 
had spoken to Inspector Paul Latham regarding the proposed adjournment, as she had 
identified that she was not available on 25 January 2021. She expressed the need for 
continuity of representation and proposed an alternative date, which had been agreed by 
Inspector Latham, of 1 February 2021.  
 
The Chairman stated that the Sub Committee would return to their deliberations to 
consider the alternative date. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public in making its decision and retired in accordance with 
Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) in order to further consider the application. 
 
The Chairman explained to all public participants that they would be disconnected from 
the virtual meeting in order for the Sub-Committee to reach their decision. Once the Sub-
Committee had concluded their deliberations the public participants would be reconnected 
and the meeting would be reconvened.  
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead 
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) then withdrew at 1.50 p.m. to consider the alternative 
proposal. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 1.58 p.m.  
 
The Interested Parties were reconnected to the virtual meeting and were individually 
asked to confirm that they could hear and see the proceedings. 
 
The Chairman proposed that the Hearing was adjourned until Monday, 1 February 2021 at 
10.00 a.m. The proposal was seconded and it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the meeting be adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 1.58 p.m. 

Page 24



1 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a virtual meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 
Monday, 1 February 2021, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 

Kevin Holmes 
 

Helen Ladhams 
 

David Webster 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors  . 
 

Officers 
 

Courage 
Aiguobasinmwin 

Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Cat Brumwell Case Management Officer 

Patrick Cantley Specialist, Licensing 

Sean Hall Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Simon McVey Operational Lead Support Services 

Adam Moffatt Specialist - Legal, Governance and Democracy 

Thomas Toumazou Senior Specialist - Environmental Protection 

Louisa Wania Case Management Officer 

 

LS/32 INTRODUCTION  
 
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Specialist welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting of 
South Lakeland District Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee.  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited Members of the 
Committee to introduce themselves, to advise whether they were taking part by video 
and/or audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) and hear all 
Members participating in the meeting. All Members present, having indicated that this was 
the case, the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited the public 
participants, who had been dialled into the meeting, to introduce themselves and confirm 
that they were able to hear the proceedings. He then referred to officers present at the 
meeting who would introduce themselves when asked to address the meeting. 
 

LS/33 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Helen Ladhams be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/34 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no apologies and no reconstitution of 
membership. 
 

LS/35 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

Page 25



2 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

LS/36 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the 
exclusion of press and public. 
 

LS/37 PROCEDURE FOR MEETING  
 
RESOLVED – The Chairman read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/38 LICENSING ACT 2003 – REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE  
 
The Sub-Committee informed all parties of the late representations that had been 
submitted since the adjourned meeting on 11 January 2021 which had been distributed 
before and at the hearing. All parties confirmed receipt and where given additional time to 
read the late representations. The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the 
meeting for 10 minutes to consider the late representations submitted by Mr Nicholson.  
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee reconvened at 10:27am. Mr Nicholson’s Legal 
Representative requested additional time to advise their client. A further resolution was 
passed by the Sub-Committee to adjourn the meeting for additional 10 minutes and to 
consider the additional late representations received from Mr Nicholson Legal 
Representative during the meeting which included testimonials in support of the premises. 
This was agreed by all parties. 
 
The Sub-Committee reconvened at 10:47. Confirmation were obtained by all parties to 
include the late representations received during the meeting from Mr Nicholson’s Legal 
Representative in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations. This was agreed to by all parties.    
 
The Principal Specialist (Health and Environment) addressed the Licensing Sub-
Committee and informed them that Cumbria Constabulary, as a Responsible Authority 
had applied to review the premises licence as it was believed that the licence holder, Mr 
Nicholson was not upholding the licensing objectives of ‘prevention of criminal and 
disorder’ as well as ‘public safety’. The Principal Specialist informed the Licensing Sub-
Committee that upon receipt of the application for review, all the relevant parties were 
served with copies and that the requirement to advertise the application was complied 
with. He informed Members that during the advertising period, the notice of the review 
were removed by unknown person(s) and replaced by the Licensing Authority on 9 
occasions.  
 
The Principal Specialist informed the Licensing Sub-Committee that representations were 
received from the Environmental Protection Team as a Responsible Authority at South 
Lakeland District Council which related to the licensing objective of ‘public nuisance’. 
Representations were also submitted by the Licensing Authority which related to the 
licensing objectives of ‘prevention of public nuisance’, ‘prevention of crime and disorder’ 
and ‘public safety’  The Principal Specialist referred the Licensing Sub-Committee to his 
report which detailed the activities authorised under the current premises licence. He also 
drew Members’ attention to Subsection 11.17 of guidance issued under section 182 of the 
Licencing Act 2003, as well as paragraphs 11.18 and 11.20 of the same guidance.  
 
The Principal Specialist informed the Licensing Sub-Committee that they were required to 
consider the review application submitted by Cumbria Constabulary on the 12th 
November 2020 as well as any relevant representations that were received during the 
statutory consultation period. The Principal Specialist outlined further requirements of the 

Page 26



3 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Licensing Act 2003 in particular, Section 52 (3) of the Licensing Act 2003 which required 
that the Licensing Authority  take such steps it considered  appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives which included, (a), to modify the conditions of the licence; (b) 
to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; (c) to remove the designated 
premises supervisor; (d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
or to (e) to revoke the licence. 
 
Note - Following the report presented by the Principal Specialist, due to the nature of this 
hearing and before representations from all parties could be heard, the Sub-Committee 
passed a resolution to exclude the press and public from this hearing in accordance with 
Regulation 14 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 as it was 
considered that the public interest in excluding the public from the hearing outweighs the 
public interest in the hearing taking place in public. 
 
Furthermore, in accordance with an exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number: 
- paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) 
- paragraph 7-  Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with 
the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 
As a result, all relevant parties moved to a private Part II meeting in which all parties gave 
their representations. 
 
Note - Having heard all relevant representations, questions and closing statements, the 
Part II meeting was suspended and by a resolution passed by the Sub-Committee to 
adjourn the meeting to exclude the press and public in making its decision, pursuant to 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraph indicated:- 
Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.  
 
The Chairman explained to all public participants that they would be disconnected from 
the virtual meeting in order for the Sub-Committee to reach their decision. Once the Sub-
Committee had concluded their deliberations the public participants be reconnected and 
the meeting would be reconvened. 
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead 
Specialist (Solicitor) then withdrew at 16.06 p.m. to consider the application. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 16.56 p.m. 
 
All parties were reconnected to the virtual meeting in order to hear the decision of the 
Sub-Committee. The Chairman asked the parties in turn if they were able to hear the 
proceedings. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Solicitor) communicated the Sub-
Committee’s decision. 
 
RESOLVED – The Licensing Sub-Committee reached the decision to revoke the premises 
licence PL(A)0597. 
 

Page 27



4 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Note – All present were notified that the detailed reasons for the decision would be 
communicated to the relevant parties in due course. Parties had a right to appeal 
against the decisions of the Sub-Committee and may do so by giving notice of 
appeal to the Magistrates Court for the area in which the premises concerned are 
situated within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which they were 
notified of the decision by the licensing authority. 
 
Minutes of the Part II proceedings are contained separately.  
 
Note – The following reasons for decisions were communicated following the 
proceedings.  
 
Reason for Decisions 

In reaching this decision, the sub-committee was mindful of the need to ensure that any 

licensed premises operate in a way which promotes the four licensing objectives 

contained within the Licensing Act 2003, Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of 

the Licensing Act 2003 and SLDC’s Statement of Licensing Policy, namely: 

1. the prevention of crime and disorder; 

2. public safety; 

3. the prevention of public nuisance; and 

4. protection of children from harm. 

 

The sub-committee were grateful for the representations made by all parties and they 

found them helpful in reaching its decision. The sub-committee is mindful that all parties, 

including Mr Nicholson and his Legal Representative, were afforded a proper opportunity 

to address its Members, and respond to the representations made by all other parties. At 

the conclusion of the hearing, all parties confirmed that the hearing procedure had been 

fair and that it had allowed them opportunity to put their case to the sub-committee. 

It was clear from the evidence that was presented to the sub-committee that there have 

been numerous efforts made by the Responsible Authorities to work with Mr Nicholson to 

secure the licensing objectives. The sub-committee gave full consideration to the 

Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, especially paragraphs 5.9 to 5.12. The sub-

committee took particular account of paragraphs 5.10 and 5.11 which specified that the 

Designated Premises Supervisor should: 

1. 5.10 - have sufficient experience and knowledge appropriate for the operation 

under their control. That a Designated Premises Supervisor should be able to 

control the activities on site and respond quickly and efficiently to problems; 

2. 5.11 – A Designated Premises Supervisor  should be able to demonstrate that 

they: 

a. have sufficient knowledge and experience appropriate for the premises that they 

intend to control; and 

b. are able to respond to problems quickly and to meet with responsible 

authorities, local residents and ensure adequate direct management of individual 

premises in a timely manner.  

 

The sub-committee also had regard to paragraphs 8.19 to 8.31 which sets out the actions 

before a review is conducted and consideration of appropriate condition’s (where 

applicable). 

Additionally, the sub-committee carefully considered the revised guidance which has been 
issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

Page 28



5 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
 
The paragraphs referred to in the Officer’s report included paragraphs 11.24 to 11.28 of 

the guidance. These paragraphs relate to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 

objective. The subcommittee noted paragraphs 11.16 – 11.23 which set out the range of 

powers that are available to it. It was particularly mindful of paragraphs 11.21 and 11.22, 

which state:- 

1. 11.21 “... licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal 

and replacement of the designated premises supervisors may be sufficient to 

remedy a problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to 

poor management decisions made by that individual.” 

 

2. 11.22 “… it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor 

company practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises 

supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems presented”.   

 

The sub-committee was satisfied that the problems arising from the premises were not 

merely the result of their poor management by Mr Nicholson; rather, that poor 

management was as a direct consequence of poor business practices. Therefore, the 

mere removal of Mr Nicholson as the Designated Premises Supervisor would not be an 

adequate or effective response to the problems that the sub-committee found had beset 

the premises. The sub-committee did not consider Mr Nicholson able to manage the 

overall operation of the premises in a way that will promote the licensing objectives.  

No Further Action or Informal Warning: 

Before reaching its decision, the sub-committee considered whether the option of doing 

nothing or offering Mr Nicholson an informal warning was appropriate. The sub-committee 

decided that this would not be an appropriate course of action because having heard the 

evidence it was satisfied Mr Nicholson had previously been warned on numerous 

occasions by the Responsible Authorities of the need to take steps to remedy the 

unsatisfactory management of the premises in accordance with the licence but had failed 

to do so.  

To Modify the Conditions of the Premises Licence: 

The sub-committee was not satisfied the conditions of the Premises Licence could be 

modified to better secure the Licensing objectives. The sub-committee decided this would 

not be an appropriate course of action because the existing premises licence conditions 

were not being complied with. Therefore, adding or modifying the conditions was unlikely 

to secure compliance and promote the licensing objectives. The current premises licence 

conditions were considered pivotal in promoting the licensing objectives. Modification or 

additional premises licence conditions would be too burdensome to and would likely make 

compliance more difficult for the premises licence holder and designated premises 

supervisor.  

 

Page 29



6 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
To Exclude a Licensable Activity from the Scope of the Premises Licence:  
 
Before reaching its decision, the sub-committee considered whether compliance with the 
licensing objectives could be secured by excluding a licensable activity from the scope of 
the premises licence. It was not considered that compliance could be secured because 
this option allowed for Mr Nicholson’s continued involvement in the establishment. The 
sub-committee noted the concerns expressed by the  Environmental Protection Team in 
relation to statutory noise nuisance complaints received from neighbouring residents as a 
result of musical entertainment provided at the premises (indoors and outdoors) during 
deregulated hours. More particularly, noise nuisance caused by live or amplified music 
and singing in the beer garden of the premises necessitated the issue of a Noise 
Abatement Notice by the Environmental Protection Team to abate a statutory nuisance. 
Members also gave consideration to the representations made by the Licensing Authority 
as a Responsible Authority, and Cumbria Constabulary which highlighted the difficulties 
encountered with Mr Nicholson as the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises 
Supervisor. The sub-committee noted the representation from Mr Nicholson that he did 
what he could to address the noise nuisance complaint. However, the sub-committee was 
satisfied that the licensing objective ‘The prevention of public nuisance’ had been 
undermined by Mr Nicholson’s haphazard approach to resolving the problems at the 
premises and his reluctance to take and failure to act on advice from the Responsible 
Authorities. On this basis a removal of a licensable activity was judged likely to be 
ineffective as a means of promoting the Licencing Objectives. 
 
To Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor:  
 
The sub-committee considered whether the removal of Mr Nicholson as the Designated 
Premises Supervisor would ensure compliance with the Licensing Conditions and promote 
the licensing objectives. The sub-committee recognised that during the period of COVID-
19 Mr Nicholson as the Designated Premises Supervisor failed to adhere to restrictions 
which closed public houses and prevented it from trading. This was supported by Cumbria 
Constabulary’s evidence which included a witness statement from a former Designated 
Premises Supervisor at the Premises, employed by Mr Nicholson which confirmed that 
during these restrictions, on 21 March 2020, Mr Nicholson organised a private party at the 
premises. This account was not disputed by Mr Nicholson and his legal representative at 
the hearing. The evidence also showed Mr Nicholson failed to promote and enforce social 
distancing, display QR code despite being required to do so, or use  face masks when 
and operating and serving drinks beyond the legally permitted opening hour. When these 
breaches were highlighted to Mr Nicholson during the various visits by the Police to the 
premises, he was uncooperative, defensive, threatening and on numerous occasions, 
failed to comply with reasonable requests such as the provision of CCTV. At the hearing, 
Mr Nicholson and his Legal Representative conceded that the premises was not a Grass 
Root Music Venue. Whilst the sub-committee recognised that the public health emergency 
had had a significant financial impact on Mr Nicholson’s business, it judged this did not 
excuse his flagrant disregard of legislation designed to prevent the transmission of 
COVID-19. The sub-committee also recognised that the impact of COVID-19 disruption 
was industry wide, so that there was no particular justification for Mr Nicholson’s disregard 
of the rules in his business interests.   
 
As the Premises Licence Holder, owner of the business and tenancy holder for the 
premises, the sub-committee was satisfied that Mr Nicholson would still have sufficient 
control over the premises even if removed as the Designated Premises Supervisor. 
Additionally, it was clear from the evidence presented that Mr Nicholson was not able to 
maintain good working relationships with the Responsible Authorities and that 
unreasonably high levels of resources had been spent trying to secure his compliance 
with emergency regulations as well as conditions attached to his premises licence.  Thus, 

Page 30



7 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
in the opinion of the sub-committee, Mr Nicholson would continue to undermine the 
licensing objectives through his inadequate management of the premises, inadequate 
procedures and a general unwillingness to comply with emergency regulations or 
conditions of his licence. Most specifically, Mr Nicholson’s clear inability to properly 
manage a licensed premises was a grave concern to the sub-committee, which noted in 
particular his continued lack of cooperation with the Responsible Authorities as well as 
breaches of licence conditions and emergency regulations.  
 
Overall, having regard to the evidence it heard,  the sub-committee are satisfied that Mr 
Nicholson’s continued involvement at the premises would continue to undermine the 
licensing objectives regardless of who the Designated Premises Supervisor is. It was 
considered by the sub-committee that Mr Nicholson, as the Premises Licence Holder and 
the person with overall management responsibility for the direction of the premises, not 
only with respect to his poor management of the premises, but also the business policies, 
culture, structure and procedures are unlikely to change if Mr Nicholson is only removed 
as Designated Premises Supervisor.  
 
To Suspend the Premises Licence for a Period not Exceeding Three Months: 
 
Consideration was also given to suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 
three months. On the evidence before it, the sub-committee were not satisfied that a time 
limited suspension of the Premises Licence would address adequately or at all and 
resolve the unsatisfactory management and operation of the premises evidenced at the 
hearing. Consequently, this measure would not be likely to secure compliance with the 
Licence Conditions and promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 
To Revoke the Premises Licence. 
 
In the circumstances, the sub-committee concluded the only viable, appropriate and 
proportionate option available to it was the revocation of the New Inn Premises Licence.  
 
The decision to revoke the premises licence was considered by the sub-committee as a 
last resort and it was not taken lightly. Evidence from the Responsible Authorities, in 
particular, Cumbria Constabulary and the responses provided at the hearing which related 
to Mr Nicholson’s behaviour with respect to the premises was considered by the sub-
committee as an indication that Mr Nicholson is unsuitable to continue to be the Premises 
License Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor. Evidence given at the hearing 
confirmed to the sub-committee that it would be difficult for Mr Nicholson to work with the 
Responsible Authorities, local community and neighbours. Also, that Mr Nicholson was 
very reluctant to work and assist the police in their role as a Responsible Authority. 
Members were not convinced that this relationship would change in the near future. 
Thereby, undermining the licensing objectives. Mr Nicholson provided no adequate 
reassurances that he would address these concerns moving forward. The sub-committee 
did not have confidence that Mr Nicholson would be able to manage the premises whilst 
ensuring compliance with the licensing objectives. He was asked how he will work with the 
Responsible Authorities, what he would do differently and how he would ensure future 
compliance with the premises licence conditions and promote the licensing objectives. He 
did not provide a clear response to Members even after several prompts from his Legal 
Representative. 
 
The sub-committee were of the opinion that were Mr Nicholson to be allowed to continue 
to be responsible for this premises he would require significant level of assistance from 
the Responsible Authorities. However, he has demonstrated that he is not capable of 
working with the Responsible Authorities to resolve problems affecting the management of 

Page 31



8 
01.02.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
his premises promptly and constructively, which undermines rather than promotes the 
licensing objectives.  
 
Members of the sub-committee appreciated the impacts of this decision on Mr Nicholson, 
his staff and the wider community. For the reasons that have been given, the decision of 
the sub-committee to revoke the licence was made as other measures were deemed 
insufficient. The promotion of the licensing objectives were considered paramount in this 
case.  
 
NB: In accordance with section 181 and Schedule 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, the 

parties have a right of appeal against this decision to the Magistrate’s Court within 

21 days from receiving this written decision. 

 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 5.11 p.m. 

Page 32



31 
09.04.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a virtual meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 
Friday, 9 April 2021, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Kevin Holmes 
 

Andrew Jarvis 
 

David Webster 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Helen Ladhams. 
 

Officers 
 

Sean Hall Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Courage 
Aiguobasinmwin 

Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

 

LS/39 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  
 
Note – Due to technical difficulties, the hearing was adjourned from 10.00 am until 
10.17 am.  
 
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Specialist welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting of 
South Lakeland District Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited Members of the 
Committee to introduce themselves, to advise whether they were taking part by video 
and/or audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) and hear all 
Members participating in the meeting. All Members present, having indicated that this was 
the case, the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited the public 
participants, some who had been dialled into the meeting whilst others had took part in the 
meeting using Microsoft Teams, to introduce themselves and confirm that they were able 
to hear and/or see the proceedings. He then referred to officers present at the meeting 
who would introduce themselves when asked to address the meeting. 
 

LS/40 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Webster be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/41 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
Councillor Helen Ladhams having tendered an apology for absence, Councillor Andrew 
Jarvis, as substitute Member, took her place on the Sub-Committee. 
 

LS/42 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/43 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That there are no excluded items on the agenda. 

Page 33



32 
09.04.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 

LS/44 PROCEDURE FOR MEETING  
 
RESOLVED – The Chairman read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/45 LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A VARIATION TO AN 
EXISTING PREMISES LICENCE  
 
The Sub-Committee informed all parties of the late representations that had been 
submitted which had been distributed prior to the meeting. All parties confirmed receipt 
and were given additional time to consider the late representations. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee reconvened at 10.42 am. The Principal Specialist (Health 
and Environment) presented the application to vary an existing premises licence made by 
Lake District Leisure Pursuits Limited in respect of Fallbarrow Holiday Park, Rayrigg 
Road, Bowness on Windermere, LA23 3DL. That amongst others, the applicant sought to 
vary their hours of trading. He stated that the applicant had also submitted a Noise 
Management Plan (NMP) and Noise Assessment Report to the Environmental Protection 
Team had already been approved by the Environmental Protection Team.  
 
The Principal Specialist (Health and Environment) stated that 14 representations had 
been received from local members of the public living in close proximity to the site. He 
explained that the representations were concerned that the possible effect of granting the 
licence would undermine the licensing objectives of ‘Prevention of Public Nuisance’, as a 
result of increased noise emissions from the site, and ‘Prevention of Crime and Disorder’ 
resulting from an increase in antisocial or drunken behaviour. Copies of the 
representations could be found at Appendix 4 of the report.  
 
The Principal Specialist (Health and Environment) responded to questions from Members.  
 
Frances Musetti spoke, on behalf of herself and her family, as well as her in-laws and 
another local young family in the area. She stated that they objected to the application 
principally because it would be a cause of public nuisance. She explained that the area 
surrounding the site was a quiet residential area and that it would be inappropriate to 
encourage late-night drinking. Such loud regular activity would stop people from being 
able to properly spend time with their families in their own homes. Further, there would be 
a lot of extra traffic. She explained that pubs and clubs in Bowness filled up quickly and 
this summer in particular, as a result of the pandemic quarantine, was expected to be very 
busy. Hence, people would move up to Fallbarrow once Bowness had reached capacity. 
She stated that she walked her dog at night and recalled that she had had to cross the 
road on several occasions due to brawls and other occurrences caused by excessive 
drinking. Increasing the hours of consumption would cause a significant nuisance and 
disturbance. Ms Musetti stated that the noise report submitted by the applicant did not 
cover the issue in its totality, by ignoring factors such as the impact of wind. She stated 
that excessive drinking also had the potential to cause more accidents and possible 
fatalities, which she claimed had happened in the past. She concluded her representation 
by stating that encouraging more drinking did not seem like a reasonable thing to do.  
 
Frances Musetti responded to questions from Members. She was asked whether there 
had been any occurrence of noise and disturbance where she felt the need to call the 
police, to which she stated that while she had not called the police, she did not enjoy the 
experience of these occurrences.  
 

Page 34



33 
09.04.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Phil Heatley was invited to speak on behalf of himself and his wife. His primary concern 
was that of noise disturbance. With regard to the noise report, he stated that 85 decibels 
was classed as dangerous and that he was not happy with the prospect of noise being 
played at this level. He stated that Fallbarrow Holiday Park had held several outdoor 
events in 2019 which had caused horrendous noise disruption. He stated that plenty of 
establishments in Bowness held such events indoors and he did not comprehend why this 
applicant insisted on holding outdoor events. He concluded his representation by stating 
that he did not believe that the issue of noise had been addressed correctly and that he 
was concerned that it would not be policed correctly either.  
 
At 11.16 am after the representations by Frances Musetti and Phil Heatley, Frances 
Musetti informed the Sub-Committee and other participants using the chat function 
that she and Mr Heatley needed to leave due to other commitments. 
 
Jonathan Smith, the applicant’s legal representative, was invited to speak. He clarified 
that the variations to which there had been no objections were (1) internal alterations to 
the boat house, (2) the requirement for security, (3) the requirement for CCTV, (4) the 
requirement for a fire risk assessment, and (5) the requirement to protect children from 
harm. Mr Smith explained in depth the changes to the times of licensable activity which 
could be found on pages 11 – 19 on the agenda. He explained that due to the 
circumstances arising from the Coronavirus pandemic, caravan parks were looking to 
ensure that they were able to use outdoor areas as there was a reduction in capacity for 
indoor areas and wanted their guests to feel more comfortable. Mr Smith stated that the 
2012 Live Music Act permitted various live entertainment between the hours of 11am and 
8pm to be carried out without a licence, however the applicant needed permission for the 
showing of films for their ‘Movies under the Stars’ entertainment section. Mr Smith 
explained that the Acoustic Report had simulated music events in three points across the 
site. He further stated that staff were trained to use handheld noise monitor devices which 
they would randomly be using in the identified areas across the site to ensure the sound 
levels did not exceed 80 decibels. He added that a Noise Complaint Log would be 
retained for 12 months and that nearby residents were to be provided with a telephone 
number as well as a community email address which could be used to contact the park. 
Mr Smith concluded his representation by stating that there had been no objections to the 
application received by police or other relevant authorities.  
 
Jonathan Smith responded to questions from Members. Pete Stedman clarified that artists 
hired to perform would be contractually bound to adhere to the noise regulations. He 
further added that ‘Movies under the Stars’ was a touring event which included a sound 
technician. He highlighted that the 80 decibel limit was not a target, but rather a maximum 
level that could not be breached. Mr Smith highlighted that not all visitors to the park 
wanted to hear the entertainment, so there was good reason to self-regulate besides the 
licence conditions. 
 
Jonathan Smith gave his closing statement, in which he stated that the application could 
be granted with the conditions specified in the report and that he believed that they would 
be balanced with the needs of the business as well as the local residents. He highlighted 
that police had not provided any concerns and that there was an agreed Noise 
Management Plan and Noise Assessment Report already in place which the 
Environmental Protection Team were happy with.  
 
Note – The Licensing Sub-Committee held deliberations. At 12.06 pm the meeting 
was adjourned. The meeting reconvened at 12.46 pm. 
 
Note – A One Minute Silence was held to honour the death of the Duke of 
Edinburgh.  

Page 35



34 
09.04.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
RESOLVED – That the application be granted subject to the mandatory conditions, the 
adherence to the submitted and approved Noise Management Plan and  and Noise 
Assessment Report dated 08 April 2021, the condition of operating CCTV with a minimum 
retention period of 28 days and that sale of alcohol in the outdoor areas of the premises 
including the boathouse and other areas identified by the plan submitted be limited to 
23:00 hours. 
 
A written reasons for decision was sent to the applicant and relevant people that made 
representations. 
 
All parties were informed of their right to appeal against the decision to Magistrates’ Court 
within 21 days of the decision in accordance with s181 and Schedule 5 of the Licensing 
Act 2003. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 12.55 p.m. 

Page 36



35 
05.05.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in the 
District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Wednesday, 5 May 2021, at 
10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Kevin Holmes 
 

Andrew Jarvis 
 

 Alvin Finch 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor David Webster. 
 

Officers 
 

Courage 
Aiguobasinmwin 

Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Louisa Wania Case Management Officer 

Rowland Wilson Specialist - Licensing 

 

LS/46 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Specialist welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting of 
South Lakeland District Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited Members of the 
Committee to introduce themselves, to advise whether they were taking part by video 
and/or audio and to confirm that they were able to see (where practicable) and hear all 
Members participating in the meeting. All Members present, having indicated that this was 
the case, the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then invited Jonathan Allen, 
Home Office Immigration Enforcement Department Officer (“the Applicant”) who had 
joined the meeting using Microsoft Teams, to introduce himself and confirm that they were 
able to hear and/or see the proceedings. He then referred to officers present at the 
meeting who would introduce themselves when asked to address the meeting. 
 

LS/47 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Andrew Jarvis be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/48 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
Councillor David Webster having tendered an apology for absence, Councillor Alvin Finch, 
as substitute Member, took his place on the Sub-Committee. 
 

LS/49 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/50 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the 
exclusion of press and public. 

Page 37



36 
05.05.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 

LS/51 REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE 
 
- Paragraph 1, 2, 5, 7 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 

maintained in legal proceedings.  
- Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 

prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.  
 
The Licensing Specialist informed the Sub-Committee that the Mr Okkes Ozmicco 
(“Licence Holder”) was absent at the hearing. The Legal, Governance and Democracy 
Specialist informed the Sub-Committee that the Licence Holder had stated that he had 
sold the premises and relocated overseas due to ill-health. The Sub-Committee decided 
that the hearing was to proceed in the Licence Holder’s absence due to the fact that he 
had been served the relevant notices and documentations relating to the hearing and that 
there was no confidence that the Licence Holder would attend were the hearing to be 
postponed. 
 
Note - Due to the nature of this hearing and before representations from all parties could 
be heard, the Sub-Committee passed a resolution to exclude the press and public from 
this hearing in accordance with Regulation 14 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 as it was considered that the public interest in excluding the public from 
the hearing outweighs the public interest in the hearing taking place in public. 
 
Furthermore, in accordance with exemption reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number: 
 
- paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
- paragraph 7-  Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with 
the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
  
As a result, Members and the Applicant moved to a private Part II meeting for 
representations to be heard. 
 
Note - Having heard  relevant representations, questions and closing statements from the 
Applicant in attendance, the Part II meeting was suspended and by a resolution passed by 
the Sub-Committee to adjourn the meeting to exclude the press and public in making its 
decision, pursuant to Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the 
paragraph indicated:- Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
The Chairman explained to all the Applicant that they would be disconnected from the 
virtual meeting in order for the Sub-Committee to reach their decision. Once the Sub-
Committee had concluded their deliberations the Applicant and public participants would 
be reconnected and the meeting would be reconvened for the decision of the Sub-
Committee to be read in Part I.  
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist then 
withdrew at 10.50 a.m. to consider the application. 

Page 38



37 
05.05.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
The meeting reconvened at 11.36 a.m. 
 
All parties including the Applicant were reconnected to the virtual meeting in order to hear 
the decision of the Sub-Committee. The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 
held a new roll call and the Chairman asked the parties if they were able to hear the 
proceedings. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist communicated the Sub-Committee’s 
decision. 
 
RESOLVED – The Licensing Sub-Committee have resolved that it was appropriate, 
proportionate and in the interest of promoting the licensing objectives to revoke the 
premises licence PL (N) 032811 Flames Pizzeria, 7 New Market Street, Ulverston, 
Cumbria, LA12 7LQ. 
 
Note – All present were notified that the detailed reasons for the decision would be 
communicated to the relevant parties in due course. Parties had a right to appeal 
against the decisions of the Sub-Committee and may do so by giving notice of 
appeal to the Magistrates Court for the area in which the premises concerned are 
situated within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which they were 
notified of the decision by the licensing authority. 
 
Note – The following reasons for decisions were communicated following the 
proceedings. 
 
Reasons for Decisions 
 
The sub-committee were grateful for the representations made and they found them 
helpful in reaching its decision. The sub-committee heard evidence from Mr Jonathan 
Allen representing Home Office Immigration Enforcement Department (“the Applicant”). 
The sub-committee ensured that the party present, were afforded opportunity to present 
their case. At the conclusion of the hearing, the party in attendance confirmed that the 
hearing procedure had been fair.  
 
The sub-committee had regard to paragraphs 8.19, 8.25 and 8.31 of the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy which sets out the actions to be taken before a review is 
conducted, when discretion of the sub-committee are engaged for a condition to be 
imposed and the need for applications to be determined in its own merit.  
Additionally, the sub-committee carefully considered section 182 guidance issued under 
the Licensing Act 2003. It was particularly mindful of:  
 

1. Paragraph 11.26 which states that:- 
“Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises 
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should be 
taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention 
objective. (...). The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider 
community and not those of the individual licence holder.” 
 

2. Paragraph 11.27 which states that:-  
“There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises 
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed premises 
(...) for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their 
immigration status in the UK.” 

Page 39



38 
05.05.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
3. Paragraph 11.28 which states that:- 

 
 “It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration 
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will 
use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews 
arise, and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being 
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that 
revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously considered.” 
 
At the commencement of the hearing, the sub-committee were informed that no 
representations or acknowledgement had been received from the Premises Licence 
Holder, Mr Okkes Ozmicco. The sub-committee were informed that various steps had 
been taken to bring the notice of the hearing to the Premises Licence Holder’s attention 
from 16 April 2021; including using all emails and addresses the Council had and also by 
hand delivering the hearing documents. During the hearing, the sub-committee were 
informed that contact had just been made with Mr Okkes Ozmicco who informed Officers 
of the Council that he had sold the business and relocated outside the UK due to ill health.  
The sub-committee considered whether adjournment was needed. However in light of the 
update, the sub-committee were satisfied that every effort had been taken to bring the 
hearing to the attention of the Premises Licence Holder as required by law and that 
nothing else could be done by the Council. The sub-committee was not satisfied that an 
adjournment would serve useful purpose.  
 
The sub-committee was satisfied that the problems arising from the Premises were not 
merely the result of poor management by Mr Okkes Ozmicco; rather, that poor 
management was as a direct consequence of poor business practices. Therefore Mr 
Okkes Ozmicco was aware of the issues at the Premises and had not adequately or 
effectively addressed the problems that the sub-committee found had beset the premises. 
The sub-committee did not consider Mr Okkes Ozmicco able to manage the overall 
operation of the premises in a way that will promote and uphold the licensing objectives. 
In particular, having regard to the previous visit by the Applicant in September 2019 where 
Mr Okkes Ozmicco was fined £10,000.00 for employing illegal immigrant. The fine the 
sub-committee were informed remained unpaid and did not act as a deterrence from 
employing more illegal immigrant’s. As discovered in a subsequent visit in October 2021 
more than 2 illegal immigrants were employed by the Applicant, one of whom was 
previously encountered in the September 2019 visit.  
 
No Further Action or Informal Warning: 
 
In reaching its decision, the sub-committee considered whether the option of doing 
nothing or offering Mr Okkes Ozmicco an informal warning was appropriate. In light of the 
evidence, the sub-committee was satisfied that Mr Okkes Ozmicco had previously been 
warned on previous occasion (September 2019) by Applicant for the need to take steps to 
prevent the licencing objectives being undermined by employing illegal immigrants. The 
previous warning issued to Mr Okkes Ozmicco by the Applicant satisfied paragraph 11.18 
of s182 guidance which provides that “where responsible authorities … have already 
issued warnings requiring improvements either orally or in writing that have failed … the 
licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into 
account when considering what further action is appropriate. The licensing authorities may 
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been required 
to pay for employing illegal worker”. 
 

Page 40



39 
05.05.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

To Modify the Conditions of the Premises Licence: 
 
The sub-committee was not satisfied that an imposition of additional conditions to the 
Premises Licence to secure compliance of the licensing objective by Mr Okkes Ozmicco 
given that a previous fine of £10,000.00 did not make a difference to the business 
practice. The Actions of Mr Okkes Ozmicco showed total disregard for immigration laws 
which prevented the employment of illegal immigrants. Evidence before the sub-
committee showed Mr Okkes Ozmicco employed multiple illegal immigrants on more than 
one occasion which showed a pattern of non-compliance.  
 
To Exclude a Licensable Activity from the Scope of the Premises Licence:  
 
The sub-committee considered whether compliance with the licensing objectives could be 
secured by excluding a licensable activity from the scope of the Premises Licence. This 
option was not considered appropriate as the premises licence only permitted one 
licensable activity for the provision of late night refreshments between Sunday to 
Thursday 23.00 - 00.00 hours and Friday & Saturday 23.00 – 01.00 hours.  
  
The sub-committee does not consider adjusting the hours or dates of operation practical 
and neither did it consider it will promote the licensing objective.  
 
To Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor:  
 
In accordance with s17 (4) (e) of the Licensing Act 2003, the Premises is only licensed for 
Late Night Refreshment. It licensable activities does not include the supply of alcohol as 
such, the Premises Licence does not require a Designated Premises Supervisor. This 
option was not available to the sub-committee. 
 
The sub-committee were satisfied that Mr Okkes Ozmicco continued involvement in this 
premises and as the Premises Licence Holder will continue to show flagrant disregard for 
the licensing objective of ‘the Prevention of Crime and Disorder’ in the continued breach of 
the immigration laws which prevents the employment of illegal immigrants.  
 
To Suspend the Premises Licence for a Period not Exceeding Three Months: 
 
Consideration was also given to suspend the Premises Licence for a period not exceeding 
three months. On the evidence before it, the sub-committee were not satisfied that a time 
limited suspension of the Premises Licence would address adequately or at all, the 
unsatisfactory management and operation of the Premises. The sub-committee also noted 
that the Mr Okkes Ozmicco has also sold the business and premises to someone else and 
relocated outside the UK without transferring the Premises Licence or informing the 
Licensing Authority.  Consequently, this measure would not be likely to secure promotion 
of the licensing objectives. No information or evidence was presented to the sub-
committee that indicate any proposal to address the issues at the Premises and promote 
the licensing objective engaged.  
 
The sub-committee noted that the repeated breaches at the Premises of the same nature 
is indicative that a temporary suspension was not likely to yield compliance, promote the 
licencing objective and the law. 
 
To Revoke the Premises Licence. 
 
The sub-committee concluded the only viable, appropriate and proportionate option 
available to it was the revocation of Flames Pizzeria’s Premises Licence with reference 
number PL (N) 032811.  

Page 41



40 
05.05.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
The decision to revoke the premises licence was considered by the sub-committee as a 
last resort and it was not taken lightly. Evidence from the Applicant and the responses 
provided at the hearing was considered by the sub-committee as an indication that Mr 
Okkes Ozmicco is unsuitable to continue to hold Premises Licence. The promotion of the 
licensing objectives were considered paramount in this case. 
 
NB: In accordance with section 181 and Schedule 5, paragraph 8 of the Licensing 
Act 2003, the relevant parties have a right of appeal to the Magistrate’s Court within 
21 days from date of Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee’s decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.49 a.m. 

Page 42



1 
06.07.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in the 
Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 6 July 2021, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
  

Hazel Hodgson 
 

Doug Rathbone 
 

David Webster 
 

Officers 
 

Rachel Ireland Trainee Solicitor 

Louisa Wania Case Management Officer 

Matt Marsh Solicitor 

Sean Hall Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Julie Richings Specialist (Licensing) 

 

LS/1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Webster be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/2 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there were no changes in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

LS/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 

 

LS/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That there are no excluded items on the agenda. 

 

LS/5 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/6 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE  
 
The Principal Specialist (Health and Environment) presented to the Sub-Committee that 
the South Lakeland District Council Licensing Authority had received the application for a 
club premises certificate in respect of Kirkby Lonsdale Football Club Lunefield Park, 
Kirkby Lonsdale. He stated that the application sought authorisation for the sale of alcohol 
(for consumption on the premises) Monday to Sunday from 13.00 hours to 23.00 hours. 
 

Page 43



2 
06.07.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
The Principal Specialist (Health and Environment) informed the Sub-Committee and 
interested parties that there had been an omission from the application.  The Licensing 
Authority was not in receipt of the required ‘Declaration for a Club Premises Certificate to 
be Granted under the Licensing Act 2003’ Form, which should have been submitted in 
conjunction with an ‘Application for a Club Premises Certificate’ Form to make a complete 
application.  However, the application had been validated by the Licensing Authority at the 
time of submission in absence of the Declaration Form. 
 
The Applicant addressed the Committee and confirmed that they were willing to withdraw 
the application. 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that the applicant has withdrawn the application at this time 
pending submission of the omitted Declaration Form to the Licensing Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.13 a.m. 

Page 44



3 
31.08.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in the 
Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 31 August 2021, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 
Andrew Jarvis 

 
David Webster 

 
Ian Wharton 

 
Officers 

 
Steven Hemsley Specialist (Licensing) 

Rachel Ireland Trainee Solicitor 

Julie Richings Specialist (Licensing) 

Josie Smith Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

 

LS/7 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Andrew Jarvis be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/8 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there were no changes in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

LS/9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/10 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

LS/11 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/12 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE  
 
The Licensing Officer presented the application for a grant of a premises licence at KD’s 
Café, 60 Quarry Rigg, Bowness-on-Windermere. The application sought the sale of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises between the hours of 11.00 to 20.00, Monday to 
Sunday. The Licensing Officer drew Members’ attention to the fact that these operating 
hours were a reduction from the original application. 
 
The Licensing Officer stated that 12 representations had been received from interested 
parties. However, following further consultation in relation to the reduction of the operating 
hours, three representations were subsequently withdrawn. She explained that the 
representations were concerned with the possible effect that the granting of the licence 
would undermine the licensing objective of ‘Prevention of Public Nuisance’, copies of the 

Page 45



4 
31.08.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

representations were to be found at Appendix 3 of the report. No objections were received 
from any of the responsible authorities and the application had been advertised in line with 
the statutory requirements.  
 
No questions from Members were raised.  
 
Mr.Fogerty, a local resident who lived in the flat directly above the premises, addressed 
the Sub-Committee in objection of the application due to the potential effect on the quiet 
enjoyment of his flat. 
 
No questions from Members were raised.  
 
The Applicant, Mr.Rogers, made his representation and clarified to Members that Quarry 
Rigg Management Limited, the company who managed the site, did not make any 
representations in relation to the application.  
 
The Applicant responded to questions from Members. He clarified that no live music 
would take place on, or outside, the premises, only background music would be played 
such as the radio.  He further explained that there were many other licensed premises in 
close proximity to the café, and listed others on the Quarry Rigg site.  
 
The Applicant provided an explanation to Members for the proposed operating hours in 
his original application submitted to the Licensing Authority on 06 July 2021. He had 
originally applied for later hours due to the ongoing European Football matches being 
played. However, he clarified to Members that the main purpose of the licence would was 
to be able to serve alcohol along with nibbles before customers attended the cinema 
which was in close proximity to the café.  
 
The Applicant provided Members with assurances that all pathways would be kept clear at 
all times. He explained that the current seating arrangements were a significant reduction 
in what had been at the café historically. 
 
Discussions with Members took place around the legality of the outdoor seating at the 
premises. The Solicitor responded to a question from Members regarding the lease of the 
property and if a premises licences, if Members were minded to grant, would supersede 
the lease.  
 
Members sought clarification from the Applicant with regards to the ownership of land 
where the seating area was. The Solicitor reminded Members that the terms of the lease 
was a matter between the landlord and the tenant, and that, in the absence of any 
objections from the landowner and/or Landlord, this was not an issue for the Licensing 
Sub -Committee to consider.   
 
The Applicant gave his closing statement, in which he stated he wanted to maintain a 
good and amicable relationship with all of the local residents. He provided assurances to 
Members that the staff would always keep the outside area clean and tidy. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting at 10.34.a.m. 
to exclude the press and public in making its decision and retired from the meeting 
room in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 (as amended) in order to further consider the application. 
 
Note – The meeting re-convened at 11.22.a.m. 
 
RESOLVED – That the application be granted:- 

Page 46



5 
31.08.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

 
(1) for the supply of alcohol on the premises from Monday to Sunday,  

11:00 hours to 20:00 hours; and 

 

(2) subject to the mandatory conditions and to the following conditions:- 

 

a) The premises must only operate as a café where customers are seated at 

a table and the supply of alcohol to customers must be by waiter or 

waitress service, only for consumption on the premises 

b) The Premises Licence holder/Designated Premises Supervisor will belong 

to a recognised trade body or Pub Watch Scheme where one exists, 

whose aims to include the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

c) Any staff employed at the premises will be provided with training on first 

appointment and on a regular basis thereafter.  Training will include 

information on preventing the sale of alcohol to somebody who is drunk 

and any other relevant matter.  A written record will be kept of all training 

carried out.  This record must be kept on the premises and made available 

for inspection by a responsible authority.  

d) Staff will ensure that the outside area is kept free from litter.  

e) Music provided at the premises shall be played at such a level so as not 

disturb local residents. 

f) The dispersal of customers from the premises must be managed in 

accordance with the following:- 

(i) prominent, clear signage must be displayed at all exits from 

the premises requesting patrons and staff to respect local 

residents by keeping noise to a minimum when leaving the 

premises; and 

(ii) (ii) public announcements requesting customers to leave 

quietly to minimise disturbance to nearby residents;  

The Sub-Committee had also had regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
and, in particular, paragraph 5.6. 
 
The Sub Committee noted that no representations had been received by the responsible 
authorities. 
Having regard to the Licensing Objectives, the reasons for reaching this decision are 
prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance. The Licensing Sub-
Committee is satisfied that the conditions imposed will serve to further the licensing 
objectives contained within the Licensing Act 2003 and the statutory guidance. 
 
The reasons for the decision would be communicated to the applicant and the interested 
parties in writing following the meeting. The applicant and interested parties will be 
informed of the right to appeal against the decision to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 
days of being notified of the decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.25 a.m. 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



7 
31.08.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in the 
Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 31 August 2021, at 1.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Doug Rathbone 
 

David Webster 
 

Ian Wharton 
 

Officers 
 

Rachel Ireland Trainee Solicitor 

Emma Priest Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Solicitor) 

Josie Smith Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Julie Richings Specialist (Licensing) 

 

LS/13 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Ian Wharton be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/14 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there were no changes in the membership of the Sub-
Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

LS/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/16 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

LS/17 INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/18 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE  
 
The Licensing Officer presented the report for the application for a grant of a premises 
licence in respect of Kirkby Lonsdale Football Club, Lunefield Park, Kirkby Lonsdale. The 
application sought authorisation for the sale of alcohol on the premises from Saturday to 
Sunday between the hours of 13.00 and 22.00.  
 
The Licensing Officer drew Members’ attention to the fact that the application for the grant 
of a club premises licene was due to be heard by the Sub-Committee on 06 July 2021. 
However, the application was not accompanied by a Club Certificate and therefore was 
not a qualifying club in accordance with Section 60 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
application was subsequently withdrawn. The application was then re-submitted to the 
Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003 for a premises licence. 
 

Page 49



8 
31.08.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Five representations were received from interested parties and the representations 
suggested that the possible effect of granting the licence would undermine all four of the 
licensing objectives, which were ‘Public Safety’, ‘Prevention of Public nuisance’, 
‘Prevention of Crime and Disorder’ and ‘Protection of Children from Harm’. A copy of the 
representations were contained within Appendix 2 of the report. 
 
All of the responsible authorities made no objection to the application. However, the Police 
had noted within the application there was no Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 
listed on the proposed licence. The Licensing Officer advised Members that no alcohol 
could be served until a DPS was in place. 
 
The Applicant, Chris Rowsell, made his representation in support of the application. He 
explained to Members that the purpose of the licence was to enable Members to have a 
few drinks after a game. Thomas Brown, the Chairman of the Football Club, echoed to 
Members that this was a traditional custom after a football match. 
 
Members sought clarification from the Applicant around parking and access to the football 
club. The Applicants explained to the Sub-Committee that attendance at the football is 
relatively low with little spectators. Music would only ever be played as background music 
and that all windows and doors would be kept closed to reduce noise levels. The 
Applicant confirmed that there was no parking available at the football club and public 
parking available at Devils Bridge is used. 
 
The Applicants’ stated they had nothing further to add in relation to their closing 
statement. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting at 1.38.p.m. 
to exclude the press and public in making its decision and retired from the meeting 
room in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 (as amended) in order to further consider the application. 
 
Note – The meeting re-convened at 2.00.p.m. 
 
RESOLVED – That the application be granted:- 
 

(1) for the supply of alcohol on the premises on Saturday and Sunday, 13:00 hours to 

22:00 hours; and 

 

(2) subject to the mandatory conditions and to the following conditions:- 

 

a) The Premises Licence holder and/or the Designated Premises Supervisor 

shall actively participate and be a member of a Pub Watch Scheme, where 

one exists, for the area within which the premises is located.  

b) Refuse bins will provided in and around the premises, all waste should be 

removed promptly.  

c) Staff will ensure that the area around the premises is kept free from litter.  

d) Music provided at the premises shall be played at such a level so as not to 

cause a disturbance to the locality. 

e) During the hours of darkness the outside lighting will be switched on when 

licensable activities are being provided.   

f) The dispersal of customers from the premises must be managed in 

accordance with the following:- 

Page 50



9 
31.08.2021 Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

(i) prominent, clear signage must be displayed at all exits from the 
premises requesting patrons and staff to respect local residents by keeping 
noise to a minimum when leaving the premises; and 

 (ii) public announcements requesting customers to leave quietly to 
minimise disturbance to nearby residents;  

 
The Sub-Committee had also had regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
and noted that no representations, notwithstanding the comment from the Police in 
relation to the lack of named Designated Premises Supervisor, had been received by the 
responsible authorities. 
 
Having regard to the Licensing Objectives, the reasons for reaching this decision are 
prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance. The Licensing Sub-
Committee is satisfied that the conditions imposed will serve to further the licensing 
objectives contained within the Licensing Act 2003 and the statutory guidance. 
 
The reasons for the decision would be communicated to the applicant and the interested 
parties in writing following the meeting. The applicant was informed of their right to appeal 
against the decision to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of being notified of the 
decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.04 p.m. 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



 

 

EMERGENCY DELEGATED NON EXECUTIVE DECISION  

To the Chief Executive to take such action on behalf of the Council as appears to him/her necessary in 
circumstances that prevent obtaining the necessary authority from an appropriate committee following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council or the Chairman of the committee concerned. Where the Chief 
Executive is acting in an emergency and it involves spending outside any budgetary provision, then any 
expenditure must be reported to Full Council at the first available opportunity. (In accordance with Part 3 of 
the Councils Constitution 3. (B 1) (1.1) Scheme of Delegation to Officers specific delegation to the Chief 
Executive.) 

South Lakeland District Council 

Emergency Non-Executive Decision 

Extension to Statement of Licensing Policy 

Date:05/03/2021 Reference:020 

Reason for emergency 

The additional burdens caused by Covid 19 and the difficulty in holding a meaningful consultation exercise 
with 3 national lockdowns in the last 12 months has prevented SLDC from consulting on a revised 
statement of Licensing Policy.  The current policy expired in January 2021 and officers are seeking 
authority to extend the now expired Statement of Licensing for a further 12 months so it can be properly 
reviewed and consulted on during that period. 

The Council has no planned meetings of the Licensing Committee or Overview and Scrutiny before the next 
Council meeting which is the decision maker to extend the Statement of Licensing Policy. It is therefore 
considered necessary in these circumstances and following consultation with the Chair of the Licensing 
committee and Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to make this Emergency Non-Executive 
Decision. 

The decision is required to be taken due to the risk to the authority of not having a current Statement of 
Licensing Policy. 

 

Emergency Non-Executive Decision – Decision Maker  

Chair of Licensing Committee – Cllr Helen Ladhams 

  Chair of Overview and Scrutiny – Cllr Vicky Hughes 

                                

 

Portfolio:   Economy and Culture – Cllr Robin Ashcroft 

Report from:  Simon Rowley – Director of Customer and Commercial Services  

Report Author: Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead Specialist Services  

Wards:  All wards 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 The need for a current Statement of Licensing Policy is critical to protect the Council’s Residents and 
Licensed Premises interest.  By acknowledging the need for a 12 month extension to the current 
Statement of Licensing Policy which expired in January 2021 SLDC will be able to better support 
licensed premises as they reopen as the current lockdown ends and give proper opportunity for the 
Members and other stakeholders to be properly engaged in the revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy over the next 12 months. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that the respective chairs of Licensing Committee and Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:- 

Public Document Pack

Page 53

Item No.4



 

 

 (1) Acknowledge the requirement to extend the current Statement of Licensing 
for a 12 month period (until March 2022) and 

 (2) Agree to a report being submitted to the Council on the 23rd March 2021 meeting 
to approve such an extension 

 

Review Date:  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Licensing authorities are required to publish a Licensing Policy Statement every Five years. 
This details how the licensing authority intends to operate and promote the licensing 
objectives in their area. Licensing authorities have regard to the licensing guidance issued 
by the Home Office in all their activities and must keep their Licensing Policy Statement 
under review and revised as appropriate. 

3.2 When reviewing their policy, licensing authorities must consult:  

 The chief officer of police for the licensing authority's area.   

 The fire authority for that area.   

 Representatives of holders of premises licences issued by that authority.   

 Representatives of holders of club premises certificates issued by that authority.   

 Representatives of holders of personal licences issued by that authority.   

 Representatives of businesses and residents in its area.  

3.3 SLDC’s policy expired on 4th Jan 2021, additional workload from test and trace, Covid 
enforcement activity and general increase work pressure brought about by the pandemic 
have meant SLDC has not been able to resource this work prior to the expiry of the 
statement. A link to the policy can be found in the background documents. 

3.4 The issue has been further exacerbated by the challenge in holding meaningful 
consultation when many of the consultees have either been closed (licensed premises), in 
lockdown (residents) or under significant increase workload (police). 

3.5 By extending the current Statement of Licensing Policy for a further 12 months (until March 
2022) it will allow the authority to conduct a considered and thorough review of the Policy 
working closely with the Licensing Committee and Overview and Scrutiny. 

3.6 Additionally it will allow meaningful consultation with the stakeholders listed in 3.2 to ensure 
the Statement of Licensing Policy is robust and properly serves the needs of those parties 
for the next 5 year period. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The Chair of Licensing Committee and Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee have 
been consulted and are in agreement with the proposed extension being sought at full 
council in March 2021 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The alternative available is to continue to have an out of date Statement of Licensing Policy 
while SLDC reviews and consults on an updated policy.  This would have significant risks 
and would reduce our ability to hold licensed premises to account and protect the public. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 N/A 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There is no financial, resource or procurement implications in this case. 

Page 54



 

 

7.2  The Statement of Licensing Policy sits within the budgetary and Policy Framework 
approved by Council on 28 March 2019 therefore permission to extend the 12 month period 
will need to go to the March 2021 Council for approval  

Human Resources 

7.2 NA 

Legal 

7.3 The Council is seeking to extend its current policy, the Policy is part of the Budget and 
Policy Framework and requires an approval from the Council meeting. Ordinarily reports 
would proceed to the Licensing Committee and through the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. There are no scheduled meetings and it is considered that an emergency non 
executive decision is required seeking the approval of the Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny 
and the Licensing Committee to the approach being taken.  

7.4 A full consultation on the proposed future amendments to the Councils Licensing Policy will 
then be carried out in accordance with the Policy and Budget framework at the earliest.  

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact Assessment? 
Yes (attached at Appendix *) No       

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
original Statement of Licensing was subject to this assessment, as this is an extension to 
that and a comprehensive Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact Assessment 
will be completed in the next 12 months as part of the revised policy it is not consider to be 
required here. 

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: NA 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
original Statement of Licensing was subject to this assessment, as this is an extension to 
that and a comprehensive Equality Impact Analysis will be completed in the next 12 months 
as part of the revised policy it is not consider to be required here. 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: NA 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

SLDC cannot adequately hold 

licensed premises to account 

because not having a current 

Statement of Licensing Policy 

diminish our position to take 

action. 

SLDC would have less 

power to control Licensed 

premises that do not meet 

the expectations of the 

licensing objectives. 

Extension of Statement of 

Licensing for next 12 

months. 

 

Contact Officers 

Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead for Specialist Services  

01539 793382 

gareth.candlin@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Page 55

mailto:gareth.candlin@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Statement of Licensing Policy 

2016-2021 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5689/sldc-

statement-of-licensing-policy.pdf  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 05/03/2021 05/03/2021 

Monitoring Officer 05/03/2021 05/03/2021 

 

Approved by: Signature and Date  

Chief Executive  10/03/2021 

In consultation with  

The Chair of Overview & Scrutiny 11/03/2021 

The Chair of Licensing Committee  22/03/2021 

 

 

Page 56

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5689/sldc-statement-of-licensing-policy.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5689/sldc-statement-of-licensing-policy.pdf


South Lakeland District Council 

Licensing Committee 

Monday, 29 November 2021 

Review of Licensing Fees and Charges 2022/2023 

 

Portfolio:   Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead – Specialist Services  

   Sean Hall – Principal Specialist Health and Environment 

    

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable  

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Working across boundaries – N/A 

Delivering a balanced community –N/A 

A fairer South Lakeland – Licensing legislation imposes a duty on the district council to 
administer and enforce the legislation.   

This proposal aligns with the Council vision of making South Lakeland the best place to live 
work and explore by delivering excellent, value for money services by supporting local 
businesses by setting fees that take into account local factors to support local businesses and 
allow economic development. 

Addressing the climate emergency – N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

. 

1.1 The expected outcome is that the licensing fees and charges and draft budget for this 
service area are considered by the Licensing Committee and referred to Council for 
approval as part of the overall budget setting for 2022/2023. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Licensing Regulatory Committee and Licensing 
Committee:  

(1) Approve the recommended fees for the financial year 2022/23 as out in 
Appendix 1 subject to approval by Council as part of the budget setting process; 

(2) Note the nationally set fees for 2022/23 set out in Appendix 2; and  

(3) Note and refer the latest draft budget estimates including fees and 
charges for 2022/23 in Appendix 3 to Council for approval as part of the final 
budget report. 

Page 57

Item No.8



3.0 Background and Proposals 

 

3.1 The licensing Team issue a variety of licences which mostly attract a fee. The fees and 
charges in licensing are reviewed annually. It is vital that some fees are set on a cost 
recovery basis so that licences are issued to ensure the protection of the public in 
terms of safety and in other cases such as animal licencing services are delivered to 
ensure the control of infection, protect animal welfare and the health and safety of the 
licensee.  

3.2  Not all licenses are issued on an annual basis, Dangerous Wild Animal licences, 
Animal Welfare Licences, Scrap Metal and Taxi and Private Hire licenses may cover 
multiple years. Skin piercing, tattooing, acupuncture and electrolysis attracts a one off 
initial fee.  

3.3  Other fees under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 are set by central 
government. Fees under the Gambling Act 2005 have been set to reflect current 
practices which are currently set at the maximum limit.  

3.4  As part of the review of fees the Council must have regard to legislative provisions. 
With regard to Taxi and Private Hire Licensing, Section 70 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides that a District Council may charge such 
fees for any reasonable administrative or other costs in connection with the control and 
supervision of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.  

3.5  With regards to animal welfare licensing functions, (Zoos, Riding Establishments, 
Home boarders, the sale of animals for pets, Animal Boarding Establishments etc.) a 
local authority may determine fees as considered reasonable in relation to costs arising 
from administration and enforcement.  

3.6  Fees for Taxi and Private Hire Licences, Miscellaneous Licensing Activities and Scrap 
Metal Dealer Licensing for 2022/23 are shown in Appendix 1. Scrap Metal dealer 
licensing is an executive function and any proposed changes to these charges will be 
reported to Cabinet as part of the fees and charges setting process.  

3.7  Annual fees for premises and personal licences and temporary event notices issued 
under the Licensing Act 2003 are fixed by central government. For Members’ 
information, a schedule of fees charged by all local authorities under the Licensing Act 
2003 and Gambling Act 2005 are attached in Appendix 2.  

3.8  A significant proportion of the licences issued by the Council are based on cost 
recovery. Historically, some licence fees were not covering the full costs and those 
costs have not been fully recovered for a number of years. As a consequence a 
number of, but not all, fees were increased, in April 2016; others, such as animal 
licensing and taxi licensing fees were increased in April 2018 and were based on 
moving towards achieving full costs recovery. It is proposed at this point that further 
work on this is paused pending the conclusion of Local Government Reorganisation. 

3.9  Currently there remains some limited areas of non-balance of service income and 
expenditure. It is proposed that the work required to address this is picked up through 
the appropriate Local Government Reorganisation work stream.  There will be a 
significant amount of work required to review, align and recalculate service costs as 
part of the work to establish the new Unitary Authority.  Further changing fees and 
charges at this point other than 2% in line with MTFP is not consider appropriate. 

3.10  All calculations for cost recovery are based on actual processing time and all fees have 
been calculated with due regards to the requirements of the Provision of Services 
Regulations 2009 for them to be reasonable and proportionate and not to exceed the 
cost of service delivery.  

Page 58



3.11  Some licences are issued following a vet inspection based on work involved and these 
charges are in addition to the licence fee. This applies to dangerous wild animals, riding 
establishments, zoo inspections and in some cases dog breeding establishments.  

3.12  Appendix 3 sets out the current detailed estimates for the 2022/23 draft budget. The 
budget presented represents no change in the level of service provision from 2021/22. 
The detailed estimates will change through the budget setting process due to: 

 • Customer connect implementation; 

 • Incremental progression on salary costs and the assumed pay award;  

• Unavoidable inflation on costs;  

• Review of base expenditure for cost reductions.  

• 2% has been added to locally controlled charges in line with MTFP, no further 
proposed increases are recommended.  

3.13  Further changes may be required as the Budget is finalised. Corporate adjustments 
such as recharges and capital charges are finalised at the end of the budget process 
as they require final figures from the capital programme and controllable service 
budgets. Central Support Recharges are no longer included in the budgets as per the 
latest CIPFA guidance.  

3.14  A summary of the costs and income projected within the current MTFP for 2022/23 is 
presented in the table below:  

  

License Type  Costs £000 Income £000 Net £000 

Taxi    8 -110.6 102.6 

Miscellaneous 3.2 -19.6 16.4 

Licensing Act 0.2 -210.6 210.4 

Gambling  0.6 -22.6 22 

 

 The disparity between the figures above is because the costs set out don’t include the 
internal recharges which are still being disaggregated and the data above should be 
used to inform income only at this point.  

3.15  As noted above, the fees have been reviewed where the Council has discretion to do 
so. The impact of this on the 2022/23 income budgets will be fed into the detailed base 
budget projections, including the impact of reviewing recharges. This will form part of 
the draft budget to be presented to Cabinet on 07 December 2021 and in more detail 
to Licencing/Licensing Regulatory Committee January 2022 where the pattern of 
surplus/deficit shown above will be updated.  

 

Page 59



4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Licensing Fees and Charges Report Appendix 1 

2 Licensing Fees and Charges Report Appendix 2 

3 Licensing Fees and Charges Report Appendix 3 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 If Members should approve the fee structure for 2022/23, this information will be 
publicised to existing licence holders and public via the Council’s website. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The Committee have the option to change the fees as they see fit, however this is not 
recommended as the fees proposed are in line with relevant legislation and policy 
considerations 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

 

7.1 As set out above, currently, income from areas where the Council has local control 
over fees does not cover their full cost including recharges. The overall budget position 
for 2022/23 including the impact of fee income and any adjustment to other costs will 
be presented as part of the draft 2022/23 budget at Cabinet on 7 December 2022 and 
in more detail at Licensing/Licensing Regulatory Committees in January 2022. The 
longer term process set out above to review the service will be monitored with financial 
implications fed into future versions of the MTFP. 

 

 

Human Resources 

 

7.2 NA 

Legal 

7.3 With regard to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing, Section 70 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides that a District Council may 
charge such fees sufficient to cover in whole or in part the reasonable cost of carrying 
out inspections of hackney carriage stands, and any reasonable administrative or other 
costs in connection with the control and supervision of hackney carriages and private 
hire vehicles. Therefore, although it does not yet do so, the Council is able to ensure 
that the hackney carriage and private hire licensing function is self-financing, and can 
operate at nil cost to the Council taxpayer.9With regard to all other licensing functions, 
legislation generally provides that a licensing authority may determine fees as 
considered reasonable in relation to costs arising from administration of the 
application. However, the Council is precluded from charging a fee in respect of the 
issue of permits for street collections, house-to-house collections for caravan site 
licences and the enforcements costs aspects of licensing.  

Page 60



7.4  The Council is also required, under Regulation 18 of the Public Services Regulations 
2009, to ensure that the fees for licensing and authorisation does not exceed the actual 
cost of the function. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

 

7.5 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

7.6 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: NA 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: NA 

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Failure to set appropriate fees Reduced income from 

licensing work undertaken 

and insufficient costs 

recovered to cover the 

operating cost of the 

service 

Bring current fees in line 

with current Medium Term 

Financial Plan where 

possible. Further controls 

planned to streamline 

administration burdens 

and review services to 

provide budgetary savings 

in licensing. 

Contact Officers 

Sean Hall – Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) Tel 01539 793411 
s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead – Place and Environment Tel 01539 793382 
gareth.candlin@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

N/A  

  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 10/11/2021 16/11/2021 

Monitoring Officer 10/11/2021 16/11/2021 

CMT 10/11/2021 16/11/2021 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist NA 

Human Resources Lead Specialist NA 

Communications Team NA 

Leader NA 

Page 61

mailto:s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:gareth.candlin@southlakeland.gov.uk


Circulated to Date sent 

Committee Chairman NA 

Portfolio Holder NA 

Ward Councillor(s) NA 

Committee NA 

Executive (Cabinet) NA 

Council NA 

 

Page 62



Appendix 1 – Proposed Fees   

  

  

 Taxis    £    

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver (Grant) (1 year licence)    98.06 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver (Renew) (1 year licence)    64.74 
Hackney Carriage Driver (Grant) (3 year licence)    208.93 

Hackney Carriage Driver (Renew) (3 year licence)    151.87 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over eight years old) (Grant) (1 year licence)    247.86 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over eight years old) (Renewal) (1 year licence)    209.47 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over three years old) (Grant) (1 year licence)    185.77 
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over three years old) (Renewal) (1 year licence)    162.84 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle up to three years old) (Grant) (1 year licence)    155.08 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle up to three years old) (Renewal) (1 year licence)   131.65 

Private Hire Operators (Grant) (Five year licence)    360.63 

Private Hire Operators (Renewal) (Five year licence)    220.74 

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Transfer    65.63 

Transfer of Vehicle Ownership    65.63 

Grant/Renewal of Trailer    108.40 

New or Replacement door sign    40.90 

New or Replacement back plate    48.85 

New or Replacement interior disc    49.51 

Replacement drivers badge    53.71 
Bracket (optional)    13.00 

Change of details on a Licence    15.05 

Disclosure and Barring Services Check (DBS Check)    54.00 

   

Animal      

Selling of animals for Pets (Grant)    £230.02 

Selling of animals for Pets (Renewal)    £212.79 

Animal boarding (including Kennels and Cattery) (Grant)    £243.70 

Animal boarding (including Kennels and Cattery) (Renewal)    £209.48 

Home boarding and Day Care (Grant)    £196.06 

Home boarding and Day Care (Renewal)    £184.82 

Hiring of Horses (Grant)    £292.22 

Hiring of Horses (Renewal)    £263.30 

Dog breeding (Grant)    £246.41 

Dog breeding (Renewal)    £234.91 

Keeping of animals for training or exhibition per annum (Grant)    £243.15 

Keeping of animals for training or exhibition per annum (Renewal)    £209.48 

Page 63



Variation of licence/re-evaluating of rating of Animal boarding/Selling of animals for 

Pets/Keeping of Animals for Training or Exhibition/Home Boarding/Dog Day Care    
£127.41 

Variation of licence/re-evaluating of rating of Breeding or Hiring of Horses plus cost of 

veterinary advice and any other costs    
£35.66 

Variation to reduce the licensable activity or number of animals    £35.66 

Appendix 1 – Proposed Fees   

  

  

Combination of activities - equal to the highest activity fee and vets fees where required 

as above    
Equal to 

the 

highest 

activity 

fee and 

vets 

fees  
where  
required    

Zoo licence (plus Vet fees)    £548.73 

Transfer of Zoo Licence    £116.73 

Informal Zoo Inspection    £232.86 

Dangerous and Wild Animals (Plus vet fees)    £246.41 

  

Miscellaneous      

Skin Piercing and Miscellaneous (Premises) Acupuncture, Tattooing and Electrolysis 

licence    

153.62 

Skin Piercing and Miscellaneous (Personal) Acupuncture, Tattooing and Electrolysis 

licence    

161.14 

Sex Establishments – Grant    3,434.03 

Sex Establishments – Renewal    767.65 

Sex Shop – Grant    786.33 

Sex Shop – Renewal    372.98 

 

Street Trading – 12 months    260.10 

Street Trading – per week    58.14 

Scrap Metal Collectors licence    281.41 

Scrap Metal Collectors renewal    170.73 

Scrap Metal Collectors – Variation Licence    136.45 

Scrap Metal Site Licence    414.98 

Scrap Metal Site Renewal    301.00 

Scrap Metal Site – Variation Licence    131.99 

Late administrative charge (where applicable)    28.65 

   

Page 64



Appendix 2 – Nationally set Licensing Act and Gambling Act fees    

  

Gambling Act License Fees   

 Type of licence    Application    Annual fee    Variation of 

application    
Provisional 

Statement    
Transfer    Reinstatement        

Bingo    3500    1000    1750    3500    1200    1200        
Adult gaming centre    2000    1000    1000    2000    1200    1200        
Betting (Track)    2500    1000    1250    2500    950    950        
Family Entertainment   2000   
Centre    

750    1000    2000    950    950        

Betting (Other)    3000    
   

   
Notification of change £40.20   Copy 
of licence £16.20   

     

600    1500    3000    1200    1200        

 Permit/Registration   New Grant (Existing  
Operator)    

New Grant    Renewal    Annual fee    Variation    Transfer    Change of name    Copy of permit    

Licensed Premises  N/A    
Gaming Machine (1 or 2 

machines)    

50    N/A    N/A    N/A    N/A    N/A    15    

Licensed Premises  100   
Gaming Machine (3 or more 

machines)    

150    N/A    50    100    25    25    15    

Prize gaming permit    N/A    300    300 (every 10 years)    N/A    N/A    N/A    25    15    
Unlicensed Family   N/A    
Entertainment   
Centre    

300    300 (every 10 years)    N/A    N/A    N/A    25    15    

Club Gaming Permit    N/A    200    200 (every 10 years)    50    100    N/A    N/A    15    
Club Gaming   100   Machine 

Permit    
200    200 (every 10 years)    50    100    N/A    N/A    15    

Club Gaming   100    
Machine Permit (fast track 

i.e. CPC holder)    

100    N/A    50    100    N/A    N/A    15    

P
age 65



Appendix 2 – Nationally set Licensing Act and Gambling Act fees    

  

   

   

Licensing Act fees   

  

   
NET  

CHARGE  
2021/22  

VAT  
GROSS  

CHARGE  
2021/22  

VAT 

CODE  
BUDGET  
2021/22  

NET  
CHARGE  
2021/22  

PREMISES & CLUB CERTIFICATES  

   

Premises and club application- each premise that is licensable will be allocated to a fee band according to 
the non domestic rateable value.  Evidence of premises band will be required.  

   

New Application and Variation fee  

Rateable Band  

A (nil-£4,300)  

   

   

   

   

   

   

100.00  

   

   

   

   

   

   

0.00  

   

   

   

   

   

   

100.00  

   

   

   

   

   

   

X  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

100.00  

B (£4,301-£33,000)  190.00  0.00  190.00  X     190.00  

C (£33,001-£87,000)  315.00  0.00  315.00  X     315.00  

D (£87,001-£125,000)  450.00  0.00  450.00  X     450.00  

E (£125,001 plus)  635.00  

   

0.00  

   

635.00  

   

X     635.00  

   

   

Annual Fee - payable 1 year after grant of licence  

Rateable Band  

A (nil-£4,300)  

   

   

70.00  

   

   

0.00  

   

   

70.00  

   

   

   

X  

   

   

   

   

   

   

70.00  

B (£4,301-£33,000)  180.00  0.00  180.00  X     180.00  

C (£33,001-£87,000)  295.00  0.00  295.00  X     295.00  

D (£87,001-£125,000)  320.00  0.00  320.00  X     320.00  

E (£125,001 plus)  350.00  

   

0.00  

   

350.00  

   

X     350.00  

   

Small society lottery    N/A    40    N/A    20    N/A    N/A    N/A    15    

P
age 66



Appendix 2 – Nationally set Licensing Act and Gambling Act fees    

  

   

Multiplier applied to premises in bands D & E  where the premises are 

exclusively or primarily in the business of selling alcohol  

   

D (x2)  

Application fee  

   

   

   

   

900.00  

   

   

   

   

0.00  

   

   

   

   

900.00  

   

   

   

   

   

X  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

900.00  

Annual Charge  640.00  0.00  640.00  X     640.00  

 

   

E (x3)  

Application fee  

   

   

1,905.00  

   

   

0.00  

   

   

1,905.00  

   

   

X  

   

   

   

   

   

1,905.00  
Annual Charge  1,050.00  

   

0.00  

   

1,050.00  

   

X     1,050.00  

   

   

Exceptionally Large Events  

(an additional premises fee for large events)  

   

No's in attendance  

5,000-9,999  

   

   

   

   

1,000.00  

   

   

   

   

0.00  

   

   

   

   

1,000.00  

   

   

   

   

   

X  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1,000.00  

10,000-14,999  2,000.00  0.00  2,000.00  X     2,000.00  

15,000- 19,999  4,000.00  0.00  4,000.00  X     4,000.00  

20,000- 29,999  8,000.00  0.00  8,000.00  X     8,000.00  

30,000- 39,999  16,000.00  0.00  16,000.00  X     16,000.00  

40,000- 49,999  24,000.00  0.00  24,000.00  X     24,000.00  

50,000- 59,999  32,000.00  0.00  32,000.00  X     32,000.00  

60,000- 69,999  40,000.00  0.00  40,000.00  X     40,000.00  

70,000- 79,999  48,000.00  0.00  48,000.00  X     48,000.00  

P
age 67



Appendix 2 – Nationally set Licensing Act and Gambling Act fees    

  

80,000- 89,999  56,000.00  0.00  56,000.00  X     56,000.00  

90,000 plus  64,000.00  

   

0.00  

   

64,000.00  

   

X     64,000.00  

   

   

Personal Licences, Temporary Events & Other Fees  

   

a) Application for grant of personal licence  

   

   

37.00  

   

   

0.00  

   

   

37.00  

   

   

   

X  

   

   

   

44  

   

   

37.00  

b)Temporary event notice  21.00  0.00  21.00  X  10,546  21.00  

c) Replacement of premises licence(loss)  

   

10.50  

   

0.00  

   

10.50  

   
X  

   

   

   

10.50  

   

d) Application for provisional statement where premises being built  315.00  0.00  315.00  X     315.00  

e) Notification of change name or address  

   

10.50  

   

0.00  

   

10.50  

   
X  

   

   

   

10.50  

   

f) Application to vary licence to specify    individual as premises supervisor  23.00  0.00  23.00  X     23.00  
 

g) Application for transfer of premises licence  23.00  0.00  23.00  X     23.00  

h) Interim authority notice following death, etc of licence holder  23.00  

   

0.00  

   

23.00  

   

X     23.00  

   

   

i) Theft, loss, etc of certificate or summary  

   
10.50  

   

0.00  

   

10.50  

   

   

X  

   

   

   

   

10.50  

   

j) Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club  10.50  0.00  10.50  X     10.50  
k) Change of relevant registered address of club  10.50  0.00  10.50  X     10.50  

l) Theft, loss, etc of temporary event notice  10.50  0.00  10.50  X     10.50  

m) Theft, loss, etc of personal licence  10.50  0.00  10.50  X     10.50  

n) Duty to notify change of name or address  

   

10.50  

   

0.00  

   

10.50  

   
X  

   

   

   

10.50  

   

P
age 68



Appendix 2 – Nationally set Licensing Act and Gambling Act fees    

  

o) Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of licensing matters  
21.00  

   

0.00  

   

21.00  

   
X     

21.00  

   

   

Exemptions from payment of Premises Licence fee 

Applications covering the provision of regulated  entertainment 

only (excluding the sale of alcohol)  

   

Application by a proprietor of an educational institution(school 

or college) in respect of   

   

   

   

   

   
No 

Charge  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
No 

Charge  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
No 

Charge  
premises that are, or form part of, the 

educational institution and the provision of  

regulated entertainment on the premises  is 

carried on by the educational institution for 

and on behalf of the purposes of the 

establishment.  

   

Application is in respect of premises that  

are or form part of a church or chapel hall or 

other similar building or village, parish or 

community hall or similar building  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
No  

Charge  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
No  

Charge  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
No  

Charge  

   

   

   

P
age 69



 

Appendix 2 – Nationally set Licensing Act and Gambling Act fees      

P
age 70



�������� �

�	
 �����
 �� �	�� ���
���� �� �� �
� ��� �	
 ���� ����
�� ����� �	
 ���
����� ���
�

������� � �!�" ������� #$%&" � �!�"

' '

Direct Expenditure

Employees 25 25

Transport 0 0

Supplies and Services 7,950 7,950

7,975 7,975

Income

Customer Receipts -108,390 -110,559

-108,390 -110,559

Net Expenditure -100,415 -102,584

Direct Expenditure

Employees 25 25

Transport 0 0

Supplies and Services 3,236 3,236

3,261 3,261

Income

Customer Receipts -19,230 -19,615

-19,230 -19,615

Net Expenditure -15,969 -16,354

Direct Expenditure

Employees 25 25

Transport 0 0

Supplies and Services 220 220

245 245

Income

Customer Receipts -206,475 -210,604

-206,475 -210,604

Net Expenditure -206,230 -210,359

Direct Expenditure

Employees 629 629

Transport 0 0

Supplies and Services 0 0

629 629

Income

Customer Receipts -22,108 -22,551

-22,108 -22,551

Net Expenditure -21,479 -21,922

Note: Central Support Recharges are no longer included in the budgets as per the latest CIPFA guidance

Licensing Act

Gambling Licensing

Hackney Carriage Licences

Miscellaneous Licences

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



South Lakeland District Council 

Licensing Committee 

Monday, 29 November 2021 

The Licensing Act 2003 - Review of Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Robin Ashcroft 

Report from:  Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Sean Hall – Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

   Patrick Cantley – Specialist (Licensing) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: This is Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 provides that each Licensing Authority are to determine and 
publish a statement of its Licensing Policy once every five years. The policy must be 
published before it carries out any licensing function under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2 The Statement of Licensing Policy details the strategic approach on how the licensing 
authority intends to operate and promote the licensing objectives in their area.  

 The expected outcome of the reviewed policy will support and strengthen the 
authority’s 4 licensing objectives namely: 

 Prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Protecting public safety; 

 Preventing public nuisance; 

 Protection of children from harm. 

1.3 The draft revised Licensing Policy will be subject to a formal 6 week consultation 
process and the result will be reported to Licensing Committee in January 2022 for 
consideration before being forwarded to full Council. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Licensing Committee give approval for: 

(1) the draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy at Appendix 1 to be 
subject to consultation with stakeholders over a 6 week period 
commencing 29th November 2021 to 9th January 2022; and 

(2) The results of the consultation to be reported to Licensing Committee in 
January 2022 for consideration; 

 

Page 73

Item No.9



3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 This report is presented to explain proposed arrangements for carrying out a review of 
the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy in accordance with the statutory timetable 
contained within the Licensing Act 2003. The new Policy will provide a licensing 
framework for stakeholders within South Lakeland District Council. 

3.2  Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that each Licensing Authority are to 
determine and publish a statement of its Licensing Policy once every five years. The 
policy must be published before it carries out any licensing function under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

3.3  In January 2005, during the transitional period leading up to the implementation of the 
Licensing Act 2003, this Council established its first Licensing Policy in preparation for 
receiving applications for premises licences later that year. In December 2010 and 
December 2015, the Council reviewed its existing policy and adopted a revised 
Statement of Licensing Policy.  

3.4 The Statement of Licensing Policy is part of the Corporate Budget and Policy 
Framework and therefore will require approval by full Council. 

3.5 The current Licensing Policy is dated 2016 to 2021 and was extended for a 12 month 
period by Council in March 2021 due to unforeseen pressures on key stakeholders as 
a result of the Covid pandemic.  

3.6 The draft Statement of Licensing Policy, attached at appendix 1 of this report closely 
follows the guiding principles set out in both the Licensing Act 2003 and Revised 
guidance issued under section 182 of Licensing Act 2003, published in April 2018. The 
Statement sets out the basis on which decisions under the Licensing Act 2003 will be 
made and strives to achieve a local balance between the commercial interest of the 
licensing trade and the communities they serve and affect.  

3.7 There have been no key changes to the Licencing legislation from the previous version 
of this policy. The changes recommended in this review have updated reference to 
s182 statutory guidance where relevant, updated best practice guidance and updated 
the list of consultees included in appendix 3 and appendix 4 of the draft policy. 

3.8 The impending changes brought about by the Local Government Reorganisation within 
Cumbria is likely to require further review and consolidation of respective authorities 
existing Statement of Licensing Policies in due course.   

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2022 – 2027 

2 Health & Sustainability Impact Assessment 

3 Equality Impact Assessment 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Should members approve the revised draft of the statement of licensing policy then a 
public consultation will take place over a six week period. 

5.2 The Licensing Act 2003 specifies that before determining its Policy for a five year 
period the Licensing Authority must consult with the following: 

 the Chief of Police for the area; 

 the Fire Authority for the area; 

 the local authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH); 

Page 74



 persons/bodies representative of local premises licence holders; 

 persons/bodies representative of local club premises certificate holders; 

 persons/bodies representative of local personal licence holders; and 

 Persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area. 

5.3 Further details of consultees is contained in Appendix 4 of the draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy. The draft policy will also be available on the Council’s website. 

5.4 On completion of the consultation the results will be reported to Licensing Committee 
on 17th January 2022 with recommendations for any further amendments. Once 
recommended for approval by the Licensing Committee, the document will be taken to 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 4th February 2022, with a view to proceeding to the 
Council meeting on 22st February 2022.  

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 There are no alternative options. The Council is under a statutory duty to review its 
Statement of Licensing Policy. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no direct financial impacts associated with this report. Established revenue 
budgets will accommodate the costs of undertaking the consultation process. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no staffing implications; however any training and development needs will 
be identified through the appraisal and one to one process. Any training and 
development needs will be actioned. 

Legal 

7.3 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires a Licensing Authority to prepare and 
publish a statement of its Licensing Policy at least every five years. Such a policy must 
be published before the authority carries out any function in respect of individual 
applications and notices made under the terms of the Licensing Act 2003. During the 
five year period, the Policy must be kept under review and the Licensing Authority may 
make any revisions to it as it considers appropriate, for instance in the light of feedback 
from the local community on whether the licensing objectives are being met. If the 
Licensing Authority determines and publishes its policy this way, a new five-year period 
commences on the date it is published.  

7.3.1 When determining and publishing a statement of its Policy and licensing function, local 
authorities must have regards to ‘Revised Guidance issued under 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003’. Where revisions to the section 182 Guidance are made by the Secretary of 
State, it will be for South Lakeland District Council to determine whether revisions to 
its own Licensing Statement are appropriate, following the consultation as outlined in 
5. 

7.3.2    As detailed in 3.8 above, consideration will be required as part of the Local 
Government Reorganisation within Cumbria as to when a further review of the 
Statement of Licensing Policy will be required to ensure the new authority, 
commencing on the 1st April 2023, is compliant with the requirements of Section 5 of 
the Licensing Act 2003, see 3.2 above.  

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? Yes (attached 
at Appendix 2)  

Page 75



7.5 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime X    

 Social connectedness  X   

Equality and Diversity 

7.6 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 3) 

7.7 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P X 0  N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Page 76



Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Failure to review and publish a 
revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy would constitute a 
contravention of the Licensing 
Act.  
 

In such circumstances, the 

Council would be unable to 

properly fulfil its statutory 

licensing responsibilities. 

Procedures are in place to 

ensure that the Statement 

of Licensing Policy is 

reviewed and 

subsequently published in 

accordance with the 

statutory timetable. 

Contact Officers 

Report Author – Sean Hall, Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Tel 01539 793411 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Licensing Act 2003 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/content

s  

Revised Guidance issued under 

section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, published April 2018 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/u

ploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/

Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_th

e_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf  

SLDC Statement of Licensing Policy 

2016 - 2021 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5689/sldc-

statement-of-licensing-policy.pdf  

Decision details following report to 

Council to extend Statement of 

Licensing policy, dated 23rd March 

2021. 

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieDecisionDet

ails.aspx?AIId=21211  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 08/11/21 15/11/21 

Monitoring Officer 08/11/21 17/11/21 

Director Customer & Commercial Services 08/11/21 08/11/21 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 08/11/21 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Page 77

mailto:s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5689/sldc-statement-of-licensing-policy.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5689/sldc-statement-of-licensing-policy.pdf
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=21211
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=21211


Circulated to Date sent 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 78



Appendix 1 

                  
 
 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

             Licensing Act 2003 
 
 

          Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

For the period 2022 - 2027 
 

Licensing Authority 
South Lakeland District Council 

South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street 

Kendal 
LA9 4UD 

 
Tel 01539 733333 

Email: licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 
 

Further copies may be obtained from the above address or from the Council’s website:- 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 79

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 2  

1.0 Introduction ....................................................................................................... 3  

2.0 General matters ................................................................................................ 6 

3.0 Licensing Objectives ......................................................................................... 9 

4.0 Personal licences ........................................................................................... 20 

5.0 Applications .................................................................................................... 21 

6.0 Responsible Authorities and Other persons ................................................... 25 

7.0 Temporary Event Notices (TEN’s) .................................................................. 28 

8.0     Cumulative Impact Policy ............................................................................... 29 

9.0     Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMRO) ..................................................... 31 

10.0   Late Night Levy .............................................................................................. 35 

11.0   Enforcement ................................................................................................... 35 

12.0   Administration, Exercise and Delegation of functions ..................................... 36 

Appendix 1 – Table of Delegated functions .............................................................. 37 

Appendix 2 – Appeals procedure ............................................................................. 39 

Appendix 3 – Guides of best practice ....................................................................... 40 

Appendix 4 – List of Consultees ............................................................................... 41 

Appendix 5 – Contact information for Responsible Authorities  ................................ 43 

Appendix 6 – Other useful contacts.......................................................................... 44 

Page 80



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 3  

South Lakeland District Council 

Statement of Licensing Policy 

Licensing Act 2003 

1.0 Introduction  

 
1.1 South Lakeland District Council is situated in South Cumbria and covers the 

northern segment of Morecambe Bay, the Cartmel and Furness peninsulas, 
as well as portions of the Lake District National Park and Yorkshire Dales 
National Park.  
 

1.2 South Lakeland has a strong services and tourism industry and the Licensing 
 Authority recognises that entertainment, hospitality and leisure are a major 
 contributor to the economy of the area. There are approximately one 
thousand businesses associated with the Licensing Act provisions and these 
include theatres, restaurants, public houses, off-licences, nightclubs, private 
members clubs and takeaway outlets. There is also a mixed provision of 
outlets ranging from village halls and small public houses in the rural area to 
community centres and nightspots in the town centres. 

 
1.3 The Council is committed to developing South Lakeland’s regional status and 

 appreciates the importance leisure businesses have for the local economy. 
The Council’s policies and priorities aim to reflect the needs and aspirations of 
existing and new local businesses. The thriving food, drink and entertainment 
businesses in the area are an important part of the local economy and this 
policy is critical to their continuing success and for attracting further 
investment and opportunity to the area. Balanced against this are the 
Council’s legal duties with regard to public safety, nuisance and commitment 
with its partners to reducing crime and fear of crime. 

 
1.4 It is also important to protect and maintain our environment so that 

residents,  visitors and other businesses can enjoy the opportunities for 
living, visiting and working within the area safely and free from nuisance. The 
Council values its younger people and is active in ensuring they are offered 
a wide range of opportunities and experiences to develop while seeking to 
protect them from harm. 

 
1.5  Guidance such as the Licensing Policy aims to advise businesses and 

individuals on how they can develop, as well as clarifying the national 
licensing legislation. 

 
1.6 If you require further clarification on the Licensing Policy please contact our 

Licensing Team.  

 
Purpose of policy 
 

1.7 This document sets out the revised Statement of Licensing Policy for South 
Lakeland District Council, which is the Licensing Authority, under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”). The policy will be kept under review and as a 
minimum will be reviewed no later than 2026. During this period it may be 

Page 81



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 4  

revised in light of experience or following revisions to guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (please also note paragraph 1.15 
below which relates to Local Government reorganisation).  

 
1.8 This statement of licensing policy is a requirement of Section 5 of the Act and 

has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the it as well as  
Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act (currently dated April 
2018). The Licensing Authority is, therefore, bound by the Act, any 
regulations made under it and the Section 182 guidance.   

 
1.9 For the purpose of reviewing its Licensing Policy and in accordance with the 

requirements the Act, the Licensing Authority has consulted with: 


 The Police 

 The Fire Authority 

 Director of Public Health 

 Representatives of existing holders of premises licences and personal 
licences 

 Representatives of existing holders of club premises certificates 

 Local businesses and their representatives   

 Local residents and their representatives  
 

1.10 The Licensing Authority has thoroughly considered the responses received 
and has given appropriate weight to the views expressed by those 
consultees.   
  

1.11    The policy will underpin how the Licensing Authority at South Lakeland 
District Council carries out any function in respect of individual applications 
made under the terms of Act. To achieve this it has four main purposes:  

 
o To provide Members of the Licensing Committee with a 

decision making framework. This policy will be referred to and 
taken into account at hearings held under the provisions of the 
Act and associated regulations. 

 
o To inform applicants of the parameters within which the Authority 

are able to make licensing decisions and allow them to take this into 
account when making applications. 

 
o To provide guidance to local residents and businesses of the 

boundaries within which the Licensing Authority will make licensing 
decisions. This will assist those parties when making representations in 
relation to various applications.  

 
o To support the Licensing Authority if it has to demonstrate in a 

court of law how it arrived to its licensing decisions. 
 

1.12 The policy covers new applications, transfers of licence, variations of 
licences and certificates and provisional statements. It also includes the 
review of licences and certificates because they can lead to the revocation 
of an existing entitlement. 

Page 82



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 5  

  
1.13 In line with Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 the Licensing Authority aims to ensure that the responsibilities of the 
licensing function are ‘self-financing’. This means the cost of dealing with all 
matters arising under the Act should be wholly met by the fees generated 
through it.  

 
1.14    Since it was introduced the Act has been altered a number of times and 

supporting legislation has either been updated or changed. Therefore, 
applicants and current licence / certificate holders should ensure that they 
keep up to do with any legislative and / or procedural changes on an 
ongoing basis.  
  

1.15 Local Government Reorganisation within Cumbria is proposing a structural 
change to the existing arrangements of Local Government organisation. The 
outcome determined by the Secretary of State, is that 2 unitary authorities 
are created, one in the east and one in the west. This will be enacted by an 
act of Parliament in March 2022 via a Structural Change Order. 

    The new East authority will be formed by the existing authorities of South 
Lakeland District Council, Barrow Borough Council, Eden District Council 
and Cumbria County Council. This change is likely to result in a combined 
approach to the licensing strategy across the revised area.  

 
 

Scope of this policy 
 

1.16    The Council as the Licensing Authority is responsible for authorising 
licensable activities, the issue of personal licences and other matters set out 
in the Act within this District. This policy relates to all those licensable 
activities identified as falling within the provisions of the Act, namely:  
 

 Retail sale of alcohol;   

 Supply of alcohol to club members;  

 Provision of ‘regulated entertainment’ – to the public, to club 
members or with a view to profit; and  

 Supply of late night refreshment being supply of hot food and / or 
drink from any premises (subject to any statutory exemption) 
including food stalls, between 23:00 hours and 05:00 hours. 

  
 

   1.17 In addition to the above the Act also makes the provision of licensing 
individuals to sell alcohol (personal licences); the permitting of certain 
licensable activities on a temporary basis (temporary event notice); and 
provisional statements. 
 

1.18  A minority of consumers will behave badly and unlawfully once away from 
premises, and it would be unreasonable to expect licence holders to have 
control over these individual people.  

 
1.19 The Licensing Authority recognises that the Act is not a cure-all for all anti-

social behaviour. There is a breadth of other strategies for addressing these 
problems, for example: 

Page 83



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 6  

 

 Planning controls 

 Powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority 
areas as places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly 

 Powers of Police and Local Authorities under the Anti-Social 
behaviour legislation 

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and 
anti-social behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices 

 The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of 
staff selling alcohol to people who are drunk 

 Confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in areas protected 
by Public Space Protection Orders and dispersal powers 

 Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any 
licensed premises or temporary event on grounds of disorder, 
the likelihood of disorder or excessive noise emanating from 
the premises. 

 The power of the Police, other responsible authorities or other 
person to seek a review of the licence or certificate 

 Promotion of positive activities. 
 

2.0 General matters 
 

2.1 All references to “the Act” in this document shall be deemed to mean the 
“Licensing Act 2003” unless otherwise stipulated. 

 

2.2 South Lakeland District Council is the Licensing Authority for this district 
under the terms of the Act who are responsible for determining all 
applications for licensable activities, as defined in Section 1 of the Act. 

 

2.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that it operates services who act as 
‘Responsible Authorities’ i.e. Environmental Health, Planning, Police, Fire 
Authority, Trading Standards, the Safeguarding Team at Cumbria County 
Council, and Licensing Authority and the local authority’s Director of Public 
Health, who are able to make representations on any licence application 
submitted under the terms of the Act. The Licensing Authority will treat 
these submissions with the same consideration as any other 
representations having regard to the terms of the Section 182 Statutory 
Guidance on this Licensing Policy. For the purpose of the Act, Cumbria 
County Council’s Safeguarding and Review team is the responsible 
authority in relating to the protection of children from harm. 

 
2.4 The Act requires the Licensing Authority to keep a register containing a 

record of each premises licence, club premises certificate, personal 
licence issued and temporary event notice received and in doing so this 
will have regard to the information set out in Schedule 3 of the Act. 

 

2.5 To comply with this requirement our register may be accessed on line by 
using the following link http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/licensing-and-
permits/public-register/ 

 

 

Page 84

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/public-register/
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/public-register/
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/licensing-and-permits/public-register/


Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 7  

Disclaimer 
 

2.6 Advice and guidance contained in the Statement of Licensing Policy is 
intended only to assist readers and should not be interpreted as legal advice 
or as constituent of South Lakeland District Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. Readers are strongly advised to seek their own legal advice if they 
are unsure of the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 or of the Guidance 
or Regulations issued under the Act. 

 
Links to other Strategies 
 

2.7 In preparing this Statement of Licensing Policy, the Licensing Authority has 
had regard to and consulted with those involved in South Lakeland District 
Council’s local strategies on crime prevention, planning transport, culture, 
tourism, community, eGovernment and economic development, to ensure the 
proper co-ordination and integration of the aims and actions of these policies. 
Review and amending of these strategies will be considered for their impact 
upon this Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 

Where appropriate, the licensing authority will co-ordinate and liaise with the 
planning authority and will provide information regarding licensed premises 
in the area, including evidenced alcohol related crime and disorder 
information where available, to enable Planning Committee to have regard to 
such matters when making decisions. 

 
Planning and Building Control 

 

2.8 The Licensing Authority will ensure that planning, building control and 
licensing regimes will be separated to avoid duplication and inefficiency. 

 
2.9 The licensing authority would normally expect that applications for premises 

licenses for permanent commercial premises should normally be from 
businesses with planning consent for the property concerned. However, the 
licensing authority acknowledges that applications for premises licences or 
club premises certificates may be made prior to any relevant planning 
permission having being sought or granted by the planning authority. 
Applicants would be expected to ensure that all relevant permissions are 
obtained. 

 

2.10 The licensing authority recognises that licensing applications should not be a 
re-run of planning applications nor should they cut across decisions taken by 
planning committee or following appeals against decisions taken by the 
Council’s planning committee. The licensing authority’s licensing committee 
will not be bound by decisions made by the Council’s planning committee 
and vice versa. 

 
2.11 Where the granting of any variation to a premises licence or club premises 

certificate involves a material alteration to a premises, the licensing authority 
would expect the applicant to apply for relevant planning permission or 
building control consent where appropriate. 

 

2.12 The Licensing Authority recognises that there are circumstances when, as a 

Page 85



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 8  

condition of planning permission, a terminal hour has been set for the use of 
the premises for commercial purposes. Where these hours are different to 
the licensing hours, the applicant must observe the earlier closing time. 
Premises operating in breach of their planning permission would be liable to 
prosecution under planning law. Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003 makes it clear that proper integration should be 
assured by licensing committees, where appropriate, providing regular 
reports to the planning committee.  

 

Special Events in the Open Air or in Temporary Structures 
 

2.13 The promotion and the organisation of live musical and similar entertainment 
in the open air or in temporary structures like marquees etc. can provide 
opportunities for community involvement, civic pride and can attract visitors 
to the district. 

 
2.14 However, the success of such events by way of contribution to the Council’s 

cultural and tourist strategies depends upon the quality, levels of safety and 
consideration for the rights of people who work and live in the vicinity and the 
standard of provision of facilities for those coming to enjoy the event.  

 

2.15 In recognition of the special factors that are relevant, particularly with respect 
to major open air events such as music festivals or similar large scale 
events, the Council has established an event coordination group to assist 
organisers in co-ordinating such events. This includes council departments 
who have an interest in or legislative role relevant to such events, together 
with representatives of the various emergency services. 

 

2.16 Members of the co-ordination group are notified about all proposals to hold 
such events and where necessary special meetings will be organised in order 
to consider any communication with organisers. 

 
2.17 The Health and Safety Executive website contains many useful guidance 

documents on event safety. In addition to this, event organisers may be 
minded to consider obtaining ‘The Event Safety Guide’ (known as the purple 
guide), published by the Events Industry Forum. 

 
2.18 Guidance on the planning of such events is available to organisers but it is 

important that substantial notice is given so that proper preparations and 
precautions can be put in place for the event. This also applies if the event is 
proposed under a Temporary Event Notice. 

 
 Community Applicants 

 
2.19 Whilst this policy is aimed at all licensable activities under the Act it should be 

noted that the Council sees a distinction between large or permanent 
activities, such as those proposed by commercial operations and small or 
temporary activities such as those which might be proposed by cultural or 
community groups. 

 
2.20 Where events are proposed by cultural or community groups, it is recognised 

that those groups may not have the same skill or the expertise or access to 

Page 86



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 9  

professional advice. Such groups may seek assistance and guidance from 
the Council by contacting the Licensing Section. 

 

2.21 Whatever the nature of the applicant and activity proposed, the overriding 
matter is that the Council will consider the individual merits of the application 
and act to promote the licensing objectives 
 

3.0  Licensing Objectives  
 
3.1    The licensing objectives are listed within Section 4 of the Act. The Licensing 

Authority has a duty to ensure it promotes them when discharging its 
functions under Act. The objectives are as follows:  
 

  The prevention of crime and disorder 

  Public safety 

  The prevention of public nuisance  

  The protection of children from harm 
 

3.2    The objectives are of equal importance. They are also the only matters that 
may be taken into account when considering and determining an application 
made under the Act. Thus, any conditions attached to a licence following the 
consideration of relevant representations must be appropriate to promote 
the four objectives. If there are no relevant representations, then an 
application must be granted and subject only to mandatory conditions and 
conditions consistent with the applicants operating schedule. Any conditions 
offered by the applicant within their operating schedule will become 
conditions on the licence.  
 
Applications for new and full variations will be circulated to the ward 
councillors and town/parish council for the area (in addition to the 
Responsible Authorities) for consultation within the statutory timescales as 
contained within the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

3.3 The Licensing Authority is of the view that the objective of the licensing 
process is to allow for the provision of alcohol, regulated entertainment and 
late night refreshment in a way which prevents crime and disorder, public 
nuisance and harm to children, ensures public safety and is not a detriment to 
the amenity of residents or businesses. This policy statement is therefore 
designed to deal with matters within the control of the licence holder and will 
focus on the impact of activities taking place on those living, working or 
otherwise engaged in the vicinity. Licensing law is not envisaged to be used 
as a mechanism to control anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are 
beyond the direct control of the licensee and / or any premises concerned.  

 

3.4 The licensing functions are one means of securing the delivery of the 
licensing objectives. In addition to this their delivery must involve partnership 
working with neighbouring local authorities, the Responsible Authorities (now 
including Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) Alcohol Licensing Team), 
local businesses and local people towards the common promotion of the four 
objectives.  

 

Page 87



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 10  

3.5 The Licensing Authority will consider each application on its own individual 
merits and in accordance with this document.  

 

3.6 Where necessary, applicants are expected to consider the impact of their 
proposal on all the objectives both within and in the vicinity of the premises 
and to propose practical steps in their operating schedule. Such steps could 
include:  

 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder:  
 

 The use of toughened glass/polycarbonate or other plastic/non glass   
bottles/receptacles;  

 Measures to prevent open bottles or other drinks containers being 
carried from premises;  

 Restriction of drinks promotions and responsible retailing;  

 Means of providing free water;  

 Marketing promotions do not encourage excessive consumption and 
should be socially responsible;  

 Measures to prevent binge drinking;  

 Participation in pub/club watch, Best Bar None or other relevant 
schemes;  

 Use of appropriate numbers of security personal and stewards ensuring 
effective controls at all times. Training staff in crime prevention 
measures;  

 Search procedures;  

 Use of CCTV inside and outside premises, ensuring digital systems 
comply with Home Office minimum requirements;  

 Adequate lighting;  

 Design premises to minimise the opportunity for crime and disorder;  

 Quality supervision and surveillance in premises;  

 Regular checks by staff of all public areas including toilets;  

 Assessment of customer profile ensuring the effective management of 
customers both inside premises and in outside smoking/external seating 
areas;  

 Anti-discriminatory policies and practice covering e.g. homophobia and 
racism;  

 Provision of a means of communication to other venues and the Police;  

 Agreed protocols with police and other organisations and a commitment 
to co-operate and provide such evidence as the Police require;  

 Ensuring that measures are in place to disperse customers over an 
extended period and ensure customers leave the venue in an orderly 
fashion and without bottles or glasses; &  

 If delivery of alcohol is part of the operating schedule, to ensure 
sufficient safeguards are in place, including but not limited to, 
challenging age, safety of delivery drivers, protocols for delivering to 
prevent alcohol being delivered to children, recording orders, only 
carrying ordered alcohol and a maximum number of items for delivery.  

 

Drugs  
 

 The Authority will expect licensees of venues likely to be affected by drugs to 

Page 88



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 11  

take all reasonable steps to prevent the entry of drugs into licensed premises, to 
take appropriate steps to prevent drugs changing hands within the premises and 
to take practical measures to prevent problems arising as a result of drug 
misuse. This must include the provision of free water (in accordance with 
legislation) and a  disposal policy for drugs, needles and the development of a 
drugs policy.  

 
 In particular the Authority will expect licensees and other staff in such venues to 

be familiar with the contents of the book “Safer Nightlife” issued by the London 
Drugs Policy Forum and endorsed by the Home Office and will expect licensees 
to follow the guidance it contains in relation to the operation of their premises.  

  
 In appropriate cases the Authority will consider imposing these 

recommendations by way of licence conditions.  
  
 Evidence indicates that more people are taking illegal drugs and are using a 

wider range than ever before. This is particularly true of what are often referred 
to as ‘recreational drugs’. Their misuse can hold grave dangers and has even 
led to fatalities.  

 
 Other factors coupled with the taking of the drugs may have contributed to these 

deaths, such as lack of drinking water, excessive drinking of water, an overly hot 
environment with inadequate ventilation, or a lack of adequate information about 
drugs. 

 
 Drugs alter the way people behave, so law controls their distribution and 

possession. Controlled drugs are usually manufactured and supplied illegally, 
which attracts criminal involvement in their distribution. Drugs manufactured 
illegally often vary in quality and strength. This puts people taking such drugs in 
danger.  

 
 The Authority recognises that drug use by young people in a club environment is 

not something that is relevant to all licensed premises. However, many 
entertainment venues such as nightclubs and dance venues can be popular 
both with drug misusers and suppliers. The Authority also recognises the 
difficulties for those running such premises in preventing the use and supply of 
drugs in their premises. However, it believes that steps can be taken to increase 
the safety of drug users on premises.  

 
 The purpose of this policy is to further the crime prevention objective and to 

ensure public safety by preventing a tragic loss of life caused by overheating 
and  other factors brought about by and associated with drug abuse. 

 
Public Safety  

 
 The Authority may inspect any premises in respect of which an application has 

been made. Officers will determine on the basis of risk which premises require 
an inspection. They will inform the applicants and arrange an appointment as 
soon as practicable.  

  
 Where an inspection is to be carried out, the Authority’s licensing officers will 

aim  to reduce inconvenience, confusion and inconsistency by co-ordinating 

Page 89



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 12  

inspections and visits along with representatives of the relevant Responsible 
Authorities.  

  
 A premises licence will not normally be granted unless the premises meets the 

statutory and any reasonable additional requirements of the Responsible 
Authorities.  

  
 It is acknowledged that the Act covers a wide range of types of premises 

including cinemas, concert halls, theatres, pubs, night clubs, private members’ 
clubs, shops, restaurants and takeaways. Each type of premises has different 
risks associated with it. It is essential that applicants assess all of the risks 
presented by their premises and proposes practical steps to ensure the safety of 
staff and customers.  

  
 The Authority considers it best practice for all applicants to assess the risks in 

relation to the following issues. 
 



 Promotion of responsible drinking;  

 Awareness of drink spiking;  

 Zero tolerance drug policies including the appropriate use of 
searching/amnesty boxes to combat drug crime;  

 Assessment of the safe capacity for the venue and adequate 
monitoring and control measures to avoid overcrowding determined by 
the fire risk assessment;  

 Regular removal of all glasses and bottles;  

 Specific precautions for the use of special effects;  

 Adequate provision for ventilation/temperature control;  

 Assessment, monitoring and management of noise exposure;  

 Assessment for crowd dynamics;  

 Safety of gas and electrical services;  

 Fire safety and emergency lighting; 

 Easy accessible free drinking water;  

 Sanitation;  

 Safe seating; &  

 Maintenance records of premises and equipment demonstrating 
compliance with statutory requirements any procedural requirements 
of relevant organisations (where such conditions will not duplicate 
requirements under existing legislation), for example electrical safety, 
fire alarm, emergency lighting, ceiling certificate etc.  

 
 The Authority expects premises that are open to customers to meet the highest 

standards of the relevant organisations in order to best secure the safety of staff 
and customers. This is also one of the licensing objectives. The Authority 
believes that customers should feel confident that when they enter premises 
they will be safe.  

 

Prevention of Public Nuisance  
 

 Practical steps to consider include:  
 

Page 90



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 13  

 Assessment of the likelihood of nuisance affecting local communities 
through an assessment of the location of premises, character of the 
surrounding area and the proximity to residential and other sensitive 
premises. Nuisance could be from noise, odour or light;  

 Latest admission times;  

 Measures for the limitation of noise emissions from the premises. 
These may include as appropriate noise limitation devices, sound 
insulation, whether windows are to be opened, the installation of 
acoustic lobbies and double glazing;  

 Measures to deal with queuing, where necessary;  

 Use and management of outdoor areas;  

 Measures to deal with dispersal of customers from the premises as 
necessary, including the employment of door supervisors, use of 
dedicated taxi firms, notices in the premises requesting customers 
to respect neighbours;  

 Winding down periods particularly in public houses and nightclubs 
etc.;  

 Disposal of waste, particularly glass;  

 Use and maintenance of plant, including air extraction and 
ventilation systems;  

 Litter collection in vicinity;  

 Consideration of an adequate traffic management plan;  

 Noise from deliveries/collections/waste collections;  

 Odour and light nuisance; &  

 Measures to supervise customers use of beer gardens, smoking and 
external seating areas  

 

 In general, the Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the 
individual merits of each application. However, when issuing a licence, stricter 
conditions are likely to be imposed with regard to noise control in the case of 
premises that are situated in predominantly residential areas and other noise 
sensitive locations. 

  
   Location of Premises  

 

 The Authority will assess the potential impact of the premises against the 
characteristics of the area in which they are situated. For example, in the event 
of representation being made, there would be close scrutiny of applications for a 
closing time of later than 11pm in respect of premises situated in quiet 
residential areas with low background noise. Greater flexibility on closing times 
would be considered where for example, applicants could demonstrate that: 



 There is a high level of accessibility to public transport services;  

• There is an appropriate amount of car parking, readily accessible to the 
premises, and in places where vehicular movement will not cause 
demonstrable adverse impact to local resident;  

• The operating schedule indicates that the applicant is taking appropriate 
steps to comply with the licensing objective of preventing public nuisance;  

• The licensable activities would not be likely to cause adverse impact 
especially on local residents, or that, if there is a potential to cause adverse 

Page 91



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 14  

impact, appropriate measures are to be put in place to prevent or minimise 
that impact.  

 
          This part of the policy dealing with opening hours is based on a broad distinction 

between the approach to be taken in certain predominantly commercial areas 
like parts of the town centres and the rest of the District. Any activity involving 
public entertainment or eating or drinking on the premises has the potential to 
impact adversely on the surrounding area due to noise, smells, or congestion on 
the footway. Public nuisance may also be caused by customers being noisy 
when leaving, leaving litter or taking up on-street car parking space needed by 
residents. The impact of noise generated by these activities, especially 
customers departing either on foot or in cars, is particularly intrusive at night 
when ambient noise levels are much lower. 

 
 Parts of the District are sensitive to the impact of licensable activities because 

they are either residential in character or close to residential areas. Many 
shopping areas are abutted by residential areas, including housing above 
commercial premises. The impact of traffic and parking related to licensed 
premises can be considerable. Even where a majority of customers arrive on 
foot or by public transport, the additional parking demand may be significant, 
especially where there are already a number of licensed premises. The impact 
may be felt by local residents in preventing them from parking close to their 
homes and by increasing the danger from traffic in residential streets. 

 
 However, some commercial areas in the District, such as parts of town centres, 

may be more suitable locations for licensed activities, especially for those, which 
have late opening hours or attract significant numbers of people. In town 
centres, more customers are likely to travel by public transport and the activities 
may help bring vitality to the area after normal shopping hours. The ambient 
noise levels are also likely to be higher in the evening particularly when 
compared with predominantly residential areas so that additional noise may be 
less  objectionable.  

 
 An entertainment use attracting large numbers of people should be very close to 

bus routes or taxi ranks, for instance. For the same reasons, the level of public 
transport accessibility will be an important factor in considering any exception to 
the normal closing times in any location. 

 
   Noise  

 
 In the event of representations being made, the Authority will not normally grant 

a premises licence in terms which are, in its opinion, likely to result in increased 
noise disturbance to people living or working in the vicinity.  

 
 In particular, the Authority will give careful consideration to an application for a 

licence for premises situated in an area where there are residences in the 
vicinity which would be adversely affected, such that the proposed hours of 
operation would be likely to result in unreasonable noise disturbance between 
the hours of 11pm and 7am. 

 
 The Authority expects the applicant to assess the likely sources of noise 

disturbance that could arise due to the proposed use, consider the existing 

Page 92



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 15  

noise context of the area and propose practical steps to prevent noise 
disturbance or minimise its effects. 

 
 Potential sources of noise include:  

 

• Sound leakage from the licensed premises (from entertainment provided, 
customers on the premises, mechanical equipment etc);  

• Customers and staff arriving and leaving the premises (including car doors 
slamming);  

• Excessive noise from outside entertainment; &  

• Customers occupying outside areas for the purpose of smoking and/or the 
consumption of alcohol  

 

 The Authority may impose conditions to ensure that appropriate steps are taken 
to minimise noise disturbance. 

 
 The prevention of public nuisance is a licensing objective. Noise disturbance 

can  be a public nuisance. The Authority is required to promote the licensing 
objectives. Granting a licence in circumstances where nuisance is likely to be 
caused will undermine that objective. The Council recognises that noise from 
licensed premises can cause great disturbance to people living and working 
near those premises. The Authority recognises that noise can be a nuisance 
during the day and at night in both residential and commercial areas and other 
noise sensitive locations if not properly managed or controlled. 

 

   Littering  
 

 Licences for premises, in particular for the provision of late night refreshment for 
consumption off the premises, will not normally be granted where nuisance is 
likely to be caused by way of litter/food refuse being deposited on streets 
surrounding the premises and such nuisance is expected, due to the nature of 
the premises and likely customers, to exceed the level of nuisance caused by 
similar premises open during the day (for which no licence is required). Single 
use plastic  items are discouraged and take away containers should be 
recyclable or compostable. In their operating schedule, applicants are expected 
to propose  practical steps to reduce the likelihood of such problems arising, 
which could include:  

 

• Provision of litter bins and smoking bins on/in vicinity of premises  

• Litter patrols in the area after premises close  
 

 Conditions may be imposed seeking to limit the nuisance caused by litter.  
 
 Litter and food waste can be detrimental to the amenity of an area and can also 

represent a public health risk and encourage vermin. This policy seeks to 
prevent such nuisance occurring in promotion of the relevant licensing objective. 

 

     Protection of Children from Harm  
 
 The Authority will not normally impose conditions prohibiting the admission of 

Page 93



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 16  

children to any premises, unless relevant representations have been made, 
believing this should remain a matter of discretion for the licence holder. Licence 
holders should be aware that there may be restrictions imposed by legislation. In 
some cases, however, it may be necessary to impose conditions designed to 
protect children. 

 
 The Authority will take strong measures to protect children from harm where it 

believes from the nature of the premises or proposed activities that harm would 
be likely. Measures considered may include: 

 

 Limitation of access dependent on nature of activities;  

 Limitation on the hours when children may be present;  

 Limitation on the age at which children are to be permitted to enter the 
premises; 

 Requirements for accompanying adults;  

 Use of British Board of Film Classification for film exhibition;  

 Robust proof of age provisions to include the prevention of under 18s 
entering the premises where appropriate and the requirement for anyone 
looking under 18 to provide proof of age in the form of a photo driving 
licence, passport or accredited proof of age scheme identity card. It is 
recommended that any systems should be accredited and approved by the 
British retail consortiums Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS);  

 Adoption of the Challenge 21/25 policy;  

 Adequate staff training on age restricted sales;  

 Adequate warning signage;  

 Measures to avoid proxy sales; 

 Control measures to protect child performances;  

 Records of refusals (refusal log); &  

 Suitable design and layout of alcohol display  
 

 Where there is provision of entertainment specifically for children (for example, a 
children’s disco) the Authority will require the presence of sufficient adults to 
control the access and egress of the children and assure their safety.  

 
 Where children are working in licensed premises or are taking part in any 

regulated entertainment the Authority will expect the responsible adult to obtain 
guidance from Cumbria County Council Children’s Services.  

 
 Children are vulnerable and can easily become the victims of crime or get drawn 

into crime. If they were allowed unrestricted access to all licensed premises, 
they could witness or become involved in activities inappropriate for their age. 
These policies are designed to allow flexibility for the licensee, to ensure that 
where appropriate licensed premises are “user friendly” for children but to 
ensure they are adequately protected. The policy seeks to ensure that children 
are adequately protected whilst still able to enjoy licensed premises. 

 
   Adult Entertainment  

 
 No-one under the age of 18 should be permitted to enter premises whilst 

entertainment of an adult nature is being provided.  
 

Page 94



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 17  

 Adult entertainment should not take place in such a location as could be viewed 
from the outside of the premises. Advertising of adult entertainment should not 
include any photographs of the entertainment. 

 
 In the event of representations being made, applications that include provision 

for adult entertainment to be provided will not normally be granted unless the 
applicant can demonstrate that performers will be safe and that unlawful 
activities will not take place.  

  
 In considering the grant of applications involving striptease, nudity (partial or 

otherwise) and other forms of adult entertainment the Authority will also have 
regard to the increased risk of nuisance to nearby residents and will consider 
rejecting the application or attaching appropriate conditions.  

  
 The Authority has adopted Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 
2009 in relation to the licensing of sex establishments. This is subject of a 
separate policy - https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5539/sex-
establishment-licensing-policy.pdf.   

 
 These policies are designed to further the licensing objective of protecting 

children by preventing them being exposed to unsuitable material or acts. They 
are also designed to further the crime prevention and prevention of nuisance 
objectives by recognising the increased risk of nuisance or illegal activities such 
as performers offering “extras” to customers or the plying for trade by 
prostitutes. 

 
   Exhibition of Films 

 
 Where the exhibition of films is permitted, the Authority will expect the age 

restrictions of the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) in respect of the 
films to be exhibited to be complied with and will normally impose conditions to 
that  effect. Only in exceptional cases will variations to this general rule be 
granted by the Authority and then only with appropriate safeguards.  

 
 Applicants will be expected to include in the operating schedule arrangements 

for restricting children from viewing age related films classified according to the 
recommendations of the BBFC.  

 
 The Licensing Authority anticipates that the BBFC’s recommendations will apply 

to the vast majority of films shown at licensed premises within the borough. 
However, in a small number of cases, the Licensing Authority may be called 
upon to exercise its powers and issue an overriding recommendation, which 
would only  apply to licensed premises within the borough. Such situations can 
be approximately characterised in one of the three groups:  

 
 In cases where the Licensing Authority has concerns about a particular film, and 

has of its own volition made an alternate recommendation. This may allow 
admission of persons of a higher or lower age than the recommendation made 
by the BBFC, or in extreme circumstances may prevent the showing of a 
particular film. This power will be rarely, if ever, utilised. 

 

Page 95

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5539/sex-establishment-licensing-policy.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5539/sex-establishment-licensing-policy.pdf


Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 18  

 In cases where a film has not been classified by the BBFC. This is likely to be 
the case with small, local, independent films, or foreign films, where a wider UK 
release is not intended.  

 
 In cases where the Licensing Authority is approached by a third party asking the 

authority to override a recommendation made by the BBFC.  
 
 The third of these groups may include films intended to be shown at ‘parent and 

baby’ screenings, which have increased in popularity in recent years. The Act 
and  Guidance are silent on the admission of babies to a film which is subject to 
an age-related recommendation therefore on a strict interpretation of the Act, 
babies must be excluded from such screenings. The Licensing Authority is 
aware that  some cinemas across the country have agreed schemes whereby 
the applicable Licensing Authority makes an alternate recommendation in 
respect of a specified film, expressly permitting the admission of babies and 
very young children to special screenings of that film with only parents of such 
children in attendance. 

 
 It is recommended that any premises considering the provision of such 

screenings  contacts the Licensing Authority to discuss the proposals first. The 
authority will typically expect special provisions to be made for such screenings, 
including higher light levels and reduced sound levels, in order that parents can 
better ensure the safety of their children.  

 
 If satisfied that the content will not present any issues if viewed by children 

under 24 months of age, the authority may agree to issue an alternate 
recommendation,  consistent with the BBFC’s original classification but including 
a specific exemption for accompanied children below 24 months of age, at 
screenings  advertised and restricted to ‘parent and baby’ only. Issues will be 
assessed on a film-by-film basis, but it is anticipated that scenes of strong 
violence and gore, sex and strong threat will lead to greater concern around 
viewing by children of that age than strong language, mild nudity and 
discriminatory content will. No alternative recommendation would be issued 
unless the authority is satisfied that allowing young children below 24 months of 
age to be admitted will not lead to the child protection licensing objective being 
undermined. 

 
 Licensees will not generally be permitted to exhibit any films that are not 

classified by BBFC without the prior written consent of the Authority.  
 
 To achieve consistency and the protection of children the Authority will use the 

guidelines published by the BBFC. Where it is desired to show films not 
classified  by the BBFC the Authority will, provided at least 4 weeks’ notice has 
been given, classify the films concerned. Where licensees wish the Authority to 
reconsider the BBFC classification of a film, a similar procedure will be followed. 
In such circumstances, the authority will require the organiser of the exhibition to 
provide a copy of the film for classification purposes, or to arrange a viewing for 
representatives of the Licensing Authority.  

 
 The purpose of this policy is to protect children from exposure to films containing 

adult themes including scenes of violence or of a sexual nature inappropriate to 
their age. 

Page 96



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 19  

 
   Staging of Plays  

 
 The Authority would not wish to impose any restriction as to the plays which 

may be performed on premises licensed for that purpose. The law does not 
allow any conditions to be imposed regarding the nature of plays which may be 
performed or the manner in which they may be performed. However, where a 
play  involves:  

 

• The use of bad language;  

• Nudity or the portrayal of sexual activity;  

• Violence;  

• Drug use; &  

• Other ‘adult’ themes or content  
 

 The Authority may impose a condition in relation to the age of children who shall 
be permitted to watch the play. In this regard, the Authority will be guided by the 
BBFC guidelines relating to films and would encourage theatres and other 
venues which intend to stage plays to consider each play they intend to stage in 
the light of those guidelines and impose an age restriction where appropriate 
and/or ensure that sufficient information is given to parents in the promotional 
material for plays to allow them to make an informed choice as to whether to 
allow their child to attend.  

 
 This is to protect children from exposure to adult themes or content which is not 

appropriate to their age. 
 

    Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)  

 
3.7 In line with Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 the Licensing Authority recognises that it is ultimately for the Designated 
Premises Supervisor to decide how best to manage their premises. However, 
the Authority expects that the DPS or another personal licence holder should 
normally be on the premises when alcohol is supplied (except where a 
community premises and mandatory licence condition in S19 of the Act has 
been disapplied). In instances where they are absent from the premises they will 
still be responsible for the actions of those they authorise to permit sales of 
alcohol. Thus, it is considered good practice that any such authorisations are 
maintained in writing. Where any person who does not hold a personal licence 
and is authorised to sell alcohol, the DPS is encouraged to provide, or ensure 
that, the authorised person has received some training on the requirements of 
the Licensing Act, and any conditions attached to the licence for the premises 
concerned. It is recommended that a record of such training be maintained.  

  
3.8 A DPS should have sufficient experience and knowledge appropriate for the 

operation under their control. A DPS should be able to control the activities on 
site and respond quickly and efficiently to problems.  

 
3.9 A DPS should be able to demonstrate that they: 

 

Page 97



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 20  

Have sufficient knowledge and experience appropriate to the premises 
that they intend to control 
 
Are able to respond to problems quickly and to meet with 
responsible authorities, local residents and ensure adequate direct 
management of individual premises in a timely manner. 

 
 

3.10 Following a Police representation the Licensing Authority may refuse an 
 application or remove a DPS where: 

 
A problem premises exists and the DPS is not capable of fulfilling the 
duties and expectations of a DPS 
 
A proposed DPS cannot demonstrate their suitability for the 
licenced premises 
 

4.0 Personal licences 
 
4.1  Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 

authorised by a person who holds a Personal Licence. The Act does not 
require the presence of a Personal Licence holder at all material times but if 
any sales are made when a Personal Licence holder is not present, then they 
must have been authorised by somebody who holds a Personal Licence. 
Regardless of whether a Personal Licence holder is present or not they will 
not be able to escape responsibility for the action of those authorised to make 
such sales. 

 
4.2 The Council recommends that authorisations for the sale of alcohol be made 
 in writing to ensure that those authorised are clear on their legal 
 responsibilities. Any premises where alcohol is sold or supplied may employ 
 one or more Personal Licence holders. This paragraph should be read in 
 conjunction with paragraphs 3.7 to 3.10 above, which outline the role of the 
 Designated Premises Supervisor.  
 
4.3 The Council recognises it has no discretion regarding the granting of 
 Personal Licences where: 

 

 The applicant is 18 years or over; 

 Possesses a licensing qualification; 

 Has not had a licence forfeited in the last five years; and 

 Has not been convicted of a relevant offence.  
 

4.4     An application for a Personal Licence to sell alcohol must be made on the 
form specified in relevant legislation. The application form must be 
accompanied by the requisite fee and the applicant should also be able to 
produce evidence of the relevant qualification. In addition to this applicants 
are required to produce a Basic Disclosure and Barring Certificate and, 
effective from 6 April 2017, evidence of right to work in the UK. Where the 
immigration status of an applicant is time limited a licence may still be 
granted but it will become invalid at such point when their immigration 

Page 98



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 21  

permission has expired.    
 

4.5     The police or Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) may make 
representations to the grant of a person licence to an individual. Such an 
objection can only be made where the applicant has been convicted of a 
relevant offence or any foreign offence or has received a civil penalty after 6 
April 2017 and the police or Home Office consider that the grant of the licence 
would undermine the prevention of crime and disorder objective.  

 
4.6 The Policing and Crime Act 2017 gives licensing authorities from 6 April 2017 

the power to revoke or suspend personal licences where a licence has already 
been granted and the Authority becomes aware that the licence holder has 
been convicted of a relevant offence or a foreign offence or has been required 
to pay an immigration penalty. 

 
4.7     Where an application discloses relevant unspent convictions the council will 

notify the Chief Officer of Police of that application and the convictions. In 
turn, the police may then make objections on the grounds of crime and 
disorder. Where representations are submitted by the police or Home Office 
a hearing must be held to determine the matter. 

 
4.8 In considering a new application or licence already granted, the Licensing 

Authority will afford the applicant a right to a hearing before its Licensing 
Panel. It will, at such a hearing, consider carefully whether the grant of the 
licence will compromise the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 
Factors the Authority will take into account when considering 
representations in this matter include (but are not limited to) the nature and 
type of offence, how serious the offence was, whether the offence was 
premeditated or was the result of a genuine mistake, the period that has 
elapsed since the offence was committed, whether the applicant abused a 
position of trust when he committed the offence, whether the offence was 
motivated by discrimination and the conduct of the applicant since the 
commission of the offence and any mitigating circumstances.  

 
4.9  The Authority has a duty when exercising its licensing functions to promote 

‘The prevention of crime and disorder’ and the other licensing objectives 
equally. Unless the circumstances are exceptional, granting a licence to an 
individual with a relevant conviction would undermine the Authority’s ability 
to promote the crime prevention objective. Personal licence holders are 
expected to act in accordance with the law and will be key to ensuring that 
the provisions of the Act, and any conditions attached to a premises 
licence, are complied with. The Authority also has a duty under the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998 to have regard to the effect on crime and disorder on 
the exercise of any of its functions and to do all it can to prevent such crime 
and disorder.  

 

5.0    Applications 
 
5.1 When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to: 
 

 The Licensing Act and licensing objectives; 

 Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003; 

Page 99



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 22  

 Any supporting regulations; 

 Representations made following consultation; 

 Duties and obligations under other legislation; & 

 This statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
5.2 This does not, however, undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 

2003 Act for a variety of permissions and have the application considered on its 
individual merits, nor does it override the right of any person to make 
representations on any application to seek a review of a licence or certificate 
where they are permitted to do so under the 2003 Act. 

 

5.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that, in some circumstances, longer 
licensing hours for the sale of alcohol may help to avoid concentrations of 
customers leaving premises simultaneously and reduce the potential for 
disorder. It also recognises that overly restrictive hours may inhibit the 
development of the night time economies that are important for investment, 
employment and tourism. 

 
5.4 When determining applications where representations have been made the 

Licensing Authority will seek to balance those factors against its duty to promote 
the four licensing objectives and the rights of residents to peace and quiet. 

 
5.5 This policy is not intended to duplicate existing legislation and other regulatory 

regimes that place duties on employers and operators e.g. Health and Safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974, Environmental Protection Act 1990, Equality Act 2010, 
Building Regulations and the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. The 
Licensing Authority will therefore only impose conditions which are appropriate 
in promoting licensing objectives. 

 
5.6 Other than personal licences in all other cases, applicants and those making 

representations in respect of applications to the Licensing Authority have a right 
of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the decision of the Licensing 
Authority. In the case of personal licences an appeal must be made to the 
Magistrates’ Court for the petty sessions area of the Licensing Authority (or part 
of it) that made the decision is situated. (See Appendix 2.)  

 
5.7 It should be noted that incomplete applications will not be accepted but returned 

with an explanation of why it is incomplete. 
 

5.8 The Licensing Authority welcomes applications made via South Lakeland 
District Council’s electronic application facility.  

 
Community Halls 

 

5.9 The Legislative Reform (Supervision of Alcohol Sales in Church and Village 
Halls etc.) Order 2009 amends the Act to allow management committees of 
community premises to make an application for a premises licence or to vary an 
existing premises licence which includes an application to remove the 
requirement of a designated premises supervisor and the authorisation of the 
sale of alcohol by a personal licence holder. 

 
New and Varied Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates 

Page 100



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 23  

 
5.10 Where no premises licence or club premises certificate exists in respect of a 

premises, an application for a new premises licence or club premises certificate 
must be made to enable the carrying out of licensable activities. 

 

5.11 An application to vary an existing premises licence or club premises certificate 
should be made where the proposed variation is in respect of changes to the 
types of licensable activities that are to be undertaken and/or the hours that 
those activities are to take place, or where structural changes are made to the 
premises. 

 

5.12 Where the proposed variation to a premises licence or club premises certificate 
is in respect of structural alterations, the application must always be 
accompanied by a plan of the proposed alterations in additions to the existing 
premises licence or club premises certificate and the plan to which it relates. 

 
5.13 Where a premises licence holder or club premises wishes to amend a premises 

licence or club premises certificate, the licensing authority will allow for an 
application to vary to be made rather an than requiring an application for a new 
premises licence or certificate. The process the applicant will undertake will 
depend on the nature of the variation and its potential impact on the licensing 
objectives. The variation process will include: 

 

 Change of name and address of a person named in the licence; 

 Variation of the licence to specify a new individual as designated premises 
supervisor; 

 Request to be removed as designated premises supervisor; 

 Request of community premises to display the mandatory condition 
concerning the supervision of alcohol sales by a personal licence holder and 
the need for a designated premises supervisor who holds a personal 
licence; &  

 An application for minor variation of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate.  

 
5.14 In addition, when completing section 3 of the application, it is important 

applicants ensure they provide sufficient time for the alterations to be carried out 
when stating the date upon which the variation is to take effect. This is to 
ensure that when the premises licence or club premises certificate comes in to 
force, the plan to which it relates accurately reflects the layout of the building. 

 

5.15 If the actual date when the alterations have been completed differs from that 
requested, applicants must inform the licensing authority so that the premises 
licence or club premises certificate can be issued correctly. Failure to do so may 
result in an offence being committed under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 
2003 of carrying on a licensable activity otherwise than under and in accordance 
with an authorisation. 

 
Minor Variations 

 
5.16 In August 2009, the Government introduced a streamlined process for 

applicants to make minor variations to their premises licences and club 
premises certificates where the change is considered to have ‘no adverse 

Page 101



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 24  

impact’ on the promotion of any of the four licensing objectives. It is typically 
expected that a Licensing Specialist will review will review a matter of this type 
and assess whether the proposal carries a risk of undermining a licensing 
objective. In instances where the proposal is deemed to carry a risk of 
undermining a licensing objective it should be referred through the full variation 
route under Section 34 of the 2003 Act. Where this happens the Licensing 
Specialist will advise the applicant of the decision and their reasons for it. 
Please note there is no route of appeal available to the person wishing to lodge 
the application if a decision is taken to reject the proposed application. 

 

5.17 Minor variations can be used to: 
 

 Make minor changes to the structure or layout of a premises 

 Make small adjustments to the licensing hours 

 Remove out of date, or unenforceable conditions 

 Add or remove certain licensable activities 

 Add volunteered conditions to a premises licence or club premises certificate 
 

5.18 Examples of where the new minor variation process cannot be used to: 
 

 Extend the period for which the licence or certificate has effect 

 Specify, in a premises licence, an individual as the premises supervisor 

 Add the sale by retail or supply of alcohol as an activity authorised by a 
licence or certificate 

 Authorise the sale by retail or supply of alcohol at any time between 23:00 
hours and 07:00 hours 

 Authorise an increase in the amount of time on any day during which alcohol 
may be sold by retail or supplied 

 Vary a licence for community premises so as to apply the condition that 
every supply of alcohol under that licence must be made or authorised by 
the management committee 

 Substantially vary the premises to which the licence or club premises 
certificate relates 

 

5.19 On receipt of a minor variation application, the Licensing Authority will consider 
the application and consult the relevant responsible authorities as it considers 
appropriate. In deciding on the application the Licensing Authority will consider 
any relevant representations received within the statutory time limit (ten working 
days from the day after the application was received by the Licensing Authority). 
The Licensing Authority will either grant the application or refuse it where it 
considers that the proposed application could impact adversely on any of the 
four licensing objectives. 

 
5.20 If the Licensing Authority fails to determine the application within 15 working 

days, the application will be treated as being refused and the fee returned. 
However in such cases the Licensing Authority and applicant may agree instead 
that the undetermined application should be treated as a new minor variation 
application and that the fee originally submitted may be treated as a fee for the 
new application thus avoiding the need for a new application to be submitted. 

 

6.0 Responsible Authorities and Other persons 

Page 102



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 25  

 

6.1 In addition to Responsible Authorities, any other person can be involved in a 
number of licensing processes under the Act. This includes any individual, body 
or business entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to 
applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises 
licences and club premises certificates in regardless of their geographic 
proximity to the premises. These persons may themselves seek a review of a 
premises licence. 

 

6.2 Any representations made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the 
representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives. The 
Licensing Authority should also consider whether the representation made is 
frivolous or vexatious. In the case of applications for reviews, there is an 
additional requirement that the grounds for the review should not be 
considered by the Licensing Authority to be repetitious.  
 

6.3 While any of these persons may act in their own right, they may also request 
that a representative makes the representation to the Licensing Authority on 
their behalf. A representative may include a legal representative, a friend, a 
Member of Parliament, a Member of the Welsh Government, or a local ward 
or parish councillor who can all act in such a capacity. 
 

6.4 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that local councillors can make 
representations in their own right if they live, or are involved in a business in 
the vicinity of the premises in question or if they have concerns about any 
premises regardless of whether they live or are involved in a business in the 
vicinity of the premises. 
 

6.5 The Licensing Authority considers that Trading Associations, Trade Unions 
and residents and Tenant’s Associations qualify as other persons. 

 
6.6 The Licensing Authority will not generally view these bodies as other persons 

unless they have a member who can be classed as an Interested Party. 
 
6.7 The Licensing Authority will generally require written evidence that a person is 

authorised to represent other persons in any case other than that is 
mentioned in paragraph 8.4 above. 

 
Representations 

 
6.8 Any Responsible Authority or other persons may make relevant 

representations on applications for the grant of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate and request reviews of licence or certificates that have 
been granted. 

 

6.9 A representation will only be ‘relevant’ if it relates to the likely effect of the 
grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the four licensing 
objectives. In addition, the representation must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

 
6.10 The police may object to the designation of a new designated premises 

supervisor (DPS) where, in exceptional circumstances, they believe that the 
appointment would undermine the crime prevention objective. 

Page 103



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 26  

 
6.11 Where the police do object, the licensing authority must arrange for a hearing 

at which the issue can be considered and both parties can put forward their 
arguments. The 2003 Act provides that the applicant may apply for the 
individual to take up post as DPS immediately and, in such cases, the issue 
would be whether the individual should be removed from this post. The 
licensing authority considering the matter must restrict its consideration to the 
issue of crime and disorder and give comprehensive reasons for its decision. 
Either party would be entitled to appeal if their argument is rejected. 

 
6.12 The 2003 Act also provides for the suspension and forfeiture of personal 

licences by the courts following convictions for relevant offences, including 
breaches of licensing law. The police can at any stage after the appointment 
of a DPS seek a review of a premises licence on any ground relating to the 
licensing objectives if problems arise relating to the performance of a DPS. 

 

6.13 The Police and Environmental Health department may make representations 
in respect of a notification of a temporary event notice on the basis of any of 
the licensing objectives. 

 

6.14 The Licensing Authority must be satisfied that the representation is made by 
another person, who can generally only be determined by reference to the 
name and address of the person making it, this authority will not consider and 
representations that fail to provide those details. 

 
6.15 Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority must 

provide copies of those representations to the applicant or his / her 
representative. The Licensing Authority accepts that in exceptional 
circumstances an Interested Party may not wish for his / her personal details 
to be disclosed to the applicant. 

 

6.16 Where a relevant representation has been submitted and the Licensing 
Authority is satisfied that exceptional circumstances apply it may decide to 
withhold the personal details of the person making the representation from the 
applicant or their agent.   

 

6.17  In all cases, applications and those making representations that are genuinely 
 aggrieved by a decision of the Licensing Committee are entitled to appeal to 
 the Magistrates’ Court against the decision of the committee. 

 

6.18 Where the Responsible Authorities or other persons do not raise any relevant  
 representations about the application made to the Licensing Authority, the 
 Licensing Authority will grant the premises licence or club premises certificate 
 subject only to conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule and 
 any mandatory conditions prescribed by the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
Review of Licences 

 
6.19 Where possible and appropriate, the Licensing Authority and Responsible 

Authorities will give early warning to licence holders of any concern about 
problems identified at premises and of the need for improvement. 

 

Page 104



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 27  

6.20 Any Responsible Authority or other person may apply for a review of a 
premises licence or a club premises certificate by serving a notice containing 
details of the application on the holder of a licence or certificate and to each of 
the Responsible Authorities. 

 
6.21 An application for review will be only ‘relevant’ if the grounds upon which it is 

made relates to the promotion of at least one of the four licensing objectives and 
is not frivolous, vexation or repetitious. An evidentiary basis will be required to 
be presented to the Licensing Authority. 

 
6.22 Where other person applies for a review, the Licensing Authority must be 

satisfied that a review is relevant. There is no appeal to the decision of the 
Licensing Authority other than by the way of Judicial Review. 

 

6.23 No more than one review from a person other than responsible authorities will 
be normally permitted within any 12 month period on similar grounds except in 
exceptional and compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure 
order. 

 
Conditions 

 
6.24 The Licensing Authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion 

has been exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is 
satisfied as a result  of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not 
necessary) that it is appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more of 
the four licensing objectives. This provision also applies to minor variations.  

 

6.25 The Licensing Authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion 
has been engaged following the making of relevant representations and it has 
been satisfied at a hearing of the necessity to impose conditions due to the 
representations raised. It may then only impose such conditions as are 
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of consideration of the 
representation  

 

6.26 The Licensing Authority actively promotes the benefits of partnership working 
between the Council and local businesses to enhance business operations and 
thereby achieve the community benefits of minimisation of waste, enhancement 
of the street scene, promotion of community safety, reduction of the fear of crime 
and the encouragement of tourism and inward investment. It is recommended 
that Premises Licence holder contact the Licensing Authority to ensure up to 
date mandatory conditions are on display. 

 
6.27 To maximise the efficiency of administering licences and reduce the necessity 

for hearings, the Licensing Authority will actively encourage applicants and clubs 
to consult with the Responsible Authority and seek professional guidance from 
Council services, when operating schedules are being prepared to allow for 
proper liaison to take place in such areas as noise reduction, CCTV, refuse and 
litter etc., to avoid representations being necessary. The Licensing Authority 
accepts that while some applicants may find it useful to contact the Responsible 
Authorities and Council services for advice and professional assistance, others 
will not need to do so, and that applications cannot be refused on the basis that 

Page 105



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 28  

such consultation has not taken place. 
 

6.28 Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority will seek to 
make objective judgements as to whether conditions may need to be attached to 
various authorisations and others in possession of relevant authorisations, to 
secure achievement of the licensing objectives. 

 

6.29 Any conditions arising from the operating schedule or as a result of 
representations will focus primarily upon the direct impact of the activities taking 
place at licensed premises on those attending the premise sand members of the 
public living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity in the areas 
concerned and will cover matters that are within control of the individual 
licensees. 

 
6.30 If an applicant volunteer’s prohibition or restriction in his/her operating 

schedule because his/her own risk assessment had determined such prohibition 
or restriction to be appropriate, such volunteered prohibitions or restrictions will 
become conditions attached to the licence or certificate and will be enforceable 
as such. 

 

6.31 The Licensing Authority recognises that all applications should be considered 
on an individual basis and any condition attached to such a licence will be 
tailored to each individual premises, to avoid the imposition of disproportionate 
and other burdensome conditions on those premises. Standard conditions, other 
than mandatory conditions, will, therefore, be avoided and no condition will be 
imposed that cannot be shown to be necessary for promotion of the licensing 
objective.  

 

7.0 Temporary Event Notices (TEN’s) 
 

7.1 The Act sets out the legal requirements relating to TEN’s. A TEN is a 
 notification given by an individual to the Licensing Authority where it is 
 proposed to use premises for one or more licensable activities during a period 
 not exceeding 168 hours and can be used to authorise relatively small-scale 
 ad hoc events held in or any premises involving no more than 499 people at 
 any one time. 

 

7.2 A TEN is typically used to: 

 
 Authorise a licensable activity at a premises not currently 

licensed e.g. selling alcohol at a fete; 

 Temporarily extending the hours for providing a licensed 
activity at an existing licensed premises for a specific event; 

 Provide for licensable activities not authorised by the existing licence. 

 
7.3 Where a TEN or any part of it, is submitted in writing, it is the responsibility 

of the person or body submitting the notice to ensure that a copy of the notice 
is sent to the Police as stipulated in the Act. Where a TEN has been submitted 
electronically copies of the notice will be forwarded to the responsible 
authorities by the Local Authority. 

 

Page 106



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 29  

7.4 The organiser must normally give the Licensing Authority a minimum of 10 
clear working days’ notice. This does NOT include the date of submission, the 
date of the event, weekends or bank holidays. In a significant number of cases 
this time period does not allow sufficient time for the organiser to liaise with the 
Police or Environmental Health and other relevant bodies to ensure that the 
event passes off safely with minimum disturbance to local residents. Therefore 
the Licensing Authority will normally expect that the notice be submitted no 
earlier than 28 days before the planned event. The giving of 28 days’ notice 
allows for responsible discussions to take place with the Police and 
Environmental Health. The Licensing Authority will consider any breach of 
previous informal agreements to be an important matter when considering an 
objection to a TEN. 

 
7.5 Late TENs can be submitted up to five working days but no earlier than nine 

working days before the event due to take place, and unless given electronically 
to the Licensing Authority, must also be sent to the Police and Environmental 
Health. A late TEN given less than five days before the event to which it relates 
will be returned as void and the activities to which it relates will not be 
authorised. 

 
7.6 A key difference between standard and late TENs is the process following an 

objection notice from the Police or Environmental Health. Where an objection 
notice is received in relation to a standard TEN the Licensing Authority must 
hold a hearing to consider the objection, unless all parties agree that a hearing 
is unnecessary. If the Police or Environmental Health gives an objection to a late 
TEN the notice will not be valid and the event will not go ahead as there is no 
scope for a hearing or the application of any existing conditions. 

 
7.7 The Licensing Authority will also actively encourage the organiser to notify 

 other relevant agencies such as the Fire Authority (crowd safety and 
 management) in order to obtain expert advice on how best to minimise the 
 risk of injury and public nuisance. A TEN does not exempt the premises user 
 from any requirements under planning law who should ensure that the 
 appropriate planning consent is in place.  

 

8.0  Cumulative Impact Policy 
 

Cumulative Impact of a Concentration of Licensed Premises 
 

8.1 The concept of ‘Cumulative impact’ is outlined within Section 14 of Revised 
 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. ‘Cumulative 
 impact assessments’ were introduced in the 2003 Act by the Policing and 
 crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018. 

 
8.2 “Cumulative Impact” means the potential impact upon the promotion of the 

 licensing objectives of a significant number of licenced premises concentrated 
 in one area. The cumulative impact of licenced premises on the promotion of 
 the licensing objectives is a proper matter for a Licensing Authority to consider 
 in discharging its responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

8.3 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that a concentration of licensed 

Page 107



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 30  

premises in a particular area can result in an increased number of people walking 
through or congregating in streets during the night with the potential impact of an 
increase in crime, anti-social behaviour, noise pollution and other disturbance to 
residents, together with an increase in littering or fouling. In such cases, the 
amenity of local residents can be placed under severe pressure but may not be 
attributable to any individual premises. 

 
8.4 The Licensing Authority can only adopt a special policy on cumulative impact 

if there is evidence that a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in 
one area are resulting, or likely to result, in unacceptable levels of crime and 
disorder or public nuisance. 

 
8.5 The Licensing Authority, having regard to the evidence currently available, 

considers that there is no particular part of the district causing a cumulative 
impact on any part of the licensing objective. 

  

8.6 However, the cumulative impact of licensed premises in a particular area may, 
at a future time, on representation from residents or businesses or a responsible 
authority, trigger the consideration of whether any additional licences or 
substantial variations to existing licences, to increase such aspect as capacity or 
operating hours, would lead to an unacceptable saturation in an area. The onus 
will be upon the objectors to provide evidence that additional licences or the 
variation of existing licences would produce the cumulative impact claimed. 

 

8.7 Other mechanisms for controlling cumulative impact include: 
 

 Planning controls; 

 Positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre 
environment in       partnership with local businesses, transport 
operators and other departments of the local authority; 

 The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi 
ranks, provision of public conveniences open late night, street 
cleaning and litter patrols; 

 Powers of local authorities to designated parts of the local authority 
areas where alcohol may not be consumed publicly, namely the 
issuing of Public Protection Orders to these areas; 

 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-
social behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices; 

 The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at 
such premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk; 

 The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in areas with 
Public Spaces Protection Orders; 

 Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any 
licenced premises to temporary event on grounds of disorder, the 
likelihood of disorder or noise emanating from the premises causing a 
nuisance; & 

 The power of police, other responsible authorities or local resident 
or business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question. 

 
Advice and Guidance 

Page 108



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 31  

 
8.8 The Licensing Authority recognises the valuable cultural, social and business 

importance that premises and events requiring a licence under the Licensing Act 
2003 provide and welcomes the diversity of activities that are provided by licence 
holders. For this reason, pre-application discussions will be encouraged to assist 
applicants to develop their operating schedule. The Licensing Authority and the 
Responsible Authorities will offer as much advice and guidance to applicants as 
resources permit. 

 
8.9 The Licensing Authority will also seek to liaise with applicants and/or mediate 

between applicants and others who may make representations, to achieve a 
satisfactory outcome for all involved, wherever possible and where resources 
permit. Where an applicant considers that mediation and liaison may be likely or 
probable, it is recommended that he/she discusses his/her proposal with the 
Licensing Team and those from who they think representations are likely prior to 
submitting an application. Once an application has been logged, there are 
statutory timescales imposed upon the application and determination process, 
which restricts the opportunity for such discussions, liaison and mediation. 

 

9.0 Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMRO) 
 

9.1 The power for Licensing Authorities to make, vary or revoke an EMRO are 
 set out in sections 172A to 172E of the Act. Additionally, full guidance on the 
 EMRO process can be found at section 17 of Revised Guidance issued 
 under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
9.2 An EMRO enables a Licensing Authority to prohibit the sale of alcohol for a 

 specified time period between the hours of 12am and 6am in the whole or 
 part of its area, if it is satisfied that this would be appropriate for the promotion 
 of the licensing objectives. 

 
9.3 EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of 

 alcohol related crime and disorder in specific areas at specific times; serious 
 public nuisance and other instances of alcohol related anti-social behaviour 
 which is not directly attributable to specific premises. 

 
9.4 It is the Council’s intention to support businesses rather than hinder them 

whilst ensuring promotion of the licensing objectives. However where this has 
deemed to fail then an EMRO could be considered as a possible solution. 

 
9.5 An EMRO: 

 

 Applies to the supply of alcohol authorised by premises 
licences, club premises certificate and temporary event notices 

 Applies for a limited or unlimited period (e.g. an EMRO 
could be introduced for a few weeks to apply for a specific event) 

 Applies for any period beginning at or after 12am and ending at 
or before 6am. It does not have to apply on every day of the week and 
can apply for different time periods or unlimited time period (e.g. an 
EMRO could be introduced for a few weeks to apply to a specific event) 

 Applies to the whole or any part of the Licensing Authority’s area 

Page 109



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 32  

 Will not apply to the supply of alcohol to residents by 
accommodation providers between 12am and 6am, provided the alcohol is 
sold through mini- bars/room service 

 Will not apply to any premises on New Year’s Eve (defined at 12:00 
a.m. to 06:00 a.m. on 1 January every year) 

 Will not apply to a relaxation of licensing hours by virtue of an 
order made under section 172 of the Act 

 
EMRO Request 

 

9.6 It is expected that the need of an EMRO may be identified by a number of 
different organisations. For example the request for an EMRO may originate 
from Cumbria Police, Environmental Health or residents association. It may 
come via another Responsible Authority. It is likely more than one organisation 
may be involved in the process.    

 

9.7 It is anticipated that the request would be referred to the licensing authority 
where a designated procedure will be applied to determine if an EMRO is 
appropriate. Where applicable the request will be referred to the Licensing 
Committee. In instances such as these members must be supplied with evidence 
of the issues being experienced in the area to demonstrate the necessity of an 
EMRO being implemented. The Licensing Committee will decide if, on the 
strength of the evidence provided, that an EMRO is appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives and if further work is to be undertaken to support the 
case. Members may decide that other measures would be more effective in 
dealing with the problems, or that licence holders should engage with the 
authorities in an attempt to rectify matters before the request is considered 
further. 

 
Evidence 

 

9.8 Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
outlines that ‘when establishing its evidence base for making an EMRO, a 
licensing authority may wish to consider the approach set out in paragraphs 
14.24 to 14.28 of this Guidance which includes indicative types of evidence, 
although this should not be considered an exhaustive list of the types of 
evidence which may be relevant. These matters are not necessarily 
determinative. They include but are not necessarily limited to: 

 

 local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types of crime 
and crime hotspots, statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences;  

 environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and noise;  

 complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include complaints 
raised by local residents or residents’ associations;  

 residents’ questionnaires;  

 trends in licence applications, particularly trends in applications by types of 
premises and terminal hours;  

 changes in terminal hours of premises; & 

 Capacities of different premises at different times of night and the    
expected concentrations of drinkers who will be expected to be leaving 
premises at different times. 

Page 110



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 33  

 
9.9 Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

states that the Licensing Authority “should be satisfied that it has sufficient 
evidence to demonstrate that making the EMRO would be appropriate for the 
promotion of licensing objectives. The requirement to take an evidence- based 
decision to promote the licensing objectives should enable licensing authorities 
to draw on their experience from other licensing decisions they make under the 
2003 Act, such as the determination of applications for the grant of a premises 
licence. The Licensing Authority should consider the evidence from partners, 
including responsible authorities and local Community Safety Partnerships, 
alongside its own evidence, to determine where an EMRO would be appropriate 
for the promotion of licensing objectives.” 

 
9.10 In instances where the licensing authority identifies a problem in a specific 

area and it is attributable to supply of alcohol at two or more premises in that 
area, and there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate that it is appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, it can propose making an EMRO. As a 
prerequisite measure the licensing authority should first decide on the matters 
which must be subject of the proposal. These are:  

 

 The days (and periods on those days) on which the EMRO would apply 

 The area to which the EMRO would apply 

 The period for which the EMRO would apply (if it is a finite period); & 

 The date from which the proposed EMRO would apply.  

 
Consultation 

 
9.11 Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

makes it clear that a proposed EMRO must be advertised, that the licensing 
authority should include a short summary of the evidence that underpins 
proposition, include information in the document outlining the manner in which 
representations can be made and include details of the proposed EMRO. The 
proposed EMRO must be advertised for at least 42 days. The proposal will be 
published on the Council’s website and in a local newspaper (either 
Westmorland Gazette or North West Evening Mail). A notice will be sent to all 
affected people in the area. They are:  

 

 holders of (and applicants for) premises licences or club premises 
certificates to which the proposed EMRO would apply;  

 premises users in relation to TENs to which the proposed EMRO would 
apply; &  

 Those who have received a provisional statement in respect of a 
premises to which the proposed EMRO would apply. 

  
9.12 In addition to the above requirements, the Licensing Authority at South 

Lakeland District Council is required to ensure that a notice relating to proposal is 
displayed within the area to which it relates and in a manner likely to bring the 
proposal to the attention of those who may have an interest in it. Alongside this, 
the responsible authorities for the area and neighbouring licensing authorities 
should be informed of the proposal to make an EMRO. The Council may also 
consider what future (if any) steps may be taken and this may include taking 

Page 111



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 34  

opportunity to publicise the proposal to a wider audience who are likely to have 
an interest in it.  

 
9.13 Those affected by the proposal have 42 days in which to make a 

representation (this period commences on the first day after which the proposal is 
advertised). Where relevant representations are received then a hearing will be 
held to consider them. If there are a number of representations, the Licensing 
Authority may consider whether to hold the hearing over several days. The 
hearing will commence within 30 working days of the end of the notice period. 

 
9.14 As a result of the hearing the Licensing Authority has three options: 

 

 To determine that the proposed EMRO is appropriate for 

promotion of the licensing objectives; 

 To determine that the proposed EMRO is not appropriate for 

the promotion of the licensing objectives and therefore the 

process should be ended; 

 To determine that the proposed EMRO should be modified. (In this 

instance it may be necessary to advertise the proposal again – further 

information relating to this can be viewed within Revised Guidance 

issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003). 

 

Formal Decision 
 

9.15 Where the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the proposed order is 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, its determination will be 
put to full Council for its final decision (no time is specified in legislation by which 
full council must make this decision). No later than 7 days after the day on which 
the EMRO is made, , the authority will send a notice to all affected persons and 
make the order available for 28 days on the website and by displaying a notice in 
the relevant area.  

 

9.16 Any variation or revocation of an order will follow the same process. However 
an order could be applied for a specified time and in this case the order ceases to 
apply on the final day. 

 
9.17 At this time there a no EMROs in place within the controlled district of South 

Lakeland. Should an EMRO be put in place this section of the policy will be 
updated to include reference to it.  

 

10.0 Late Night Levy 
 

10.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 has also introduced via 
the Act the power for the Licensing Authority to charge a late night levy (“the 
levy”) to all premises within the Local Authority area. The late night levy is a 
discretionary power allowing Councils to collect an annual fee from all licensed 
premises in the Council area that are authorised to sell alcohol between the 
hours of midnight and 6am as a means of raising a contribution towards the 
costs of policing the night time economy. 

 

Page 112



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 35  

10.2 Any decision to introduce, vary or cease a levy will be made by full Council in 
 conjunction with the Police and Crime Commissioner and Local  
 Constabulary. However any decision in relation to the administration and 
 design of the levy will be delegated to the Licensing Committee. 

 
10.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that a levy would cover the whole of the 

 Council area and not just those premises that may be associated with 
 problems or those premises within any cumulative impact area. Therefore, 
 serious consideration will always be given to the introduction of a levy. 
 Furthermore, the Licensing Authority will always give serious consideration 
 as to whether or not a levy would be an economically viable proposal. 

 

11.0  Enforcement 
 

11.1  South Lakeland District Council delivers a wide range of enforcement services 
 aimed at safeguarding the environment and the community, and at providing a 
 ‘level playing field’ on which businesses can trade fairly. The administration 
 and enforcement of the licensing regime is one of these services. The 
 Authority has adopted the Better Regulation Delivery Office Regulators’ Code 
 designed to ensure effective and efficient Public Protection services. South 
 Lakeland District Council is committed to accordance with the principles of 
 good enforcement practice by carrying out its regulatory functions in a fair, 
 open and consistent manner. 

 
11.2 The Licensing Authority recognises the interests of both citizens and 

 businesses and will work closely, with partners, to assist licence holders to 
 comply with the law the four licensing objectives that it seeks to promote. 
 However, proportionate but firm action will be taken against those who commit 
 serious offences or break the law consistently. 

 
11.3 In the event of the Licensing Authority receiving evidence of an offence under 

 the Licensing Act 2003, it will consider what action should be taken this may 
 take the form of informal action (advice and warnings), the issue of a caution 
 or if permitted a fixed penalty notice or prosecution. The action taken will 
 depend on the circumstances of the case and will take into account the 
 seriousness of the matter and past history. Formal action by way of 
 prosecution will be a last resort and proportionate to the degree of risk.  

 

11.4 The Licensing Authority works in partnership with all of the Responsible 
Authorities under the Act on enforcement issues. This joint working provides for 
the targeting of resources towards high-risk premises and activities that require 
greater attention, while providing a lighter touch in respect of low risk premises 
that are operated well. 

 

12.0    Administration, Exercise and Delegation of functions 
 

12.1 The Licensing Authority is involved with a wide range of licensing decisions 
and functions. In order to administer them it has established a Licensing 
Committee.   

12.2  Appreciating the need to provide a speedy, efficient and cost-effective 
 service to all parties involved in the licensing process, the Committee has 

Page 113



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 36  

 delegated certain decisions and functions and has established a number of 
 Licensing Panels to deal with them.  

 
12.3 Further, with many of the decisions and functions being purely 

 administrative in nature, the grant of non-contentious applications, 
 including for example, those licence and certificates where no 
 representations have been made, has been delegated to Licensing 
 Authority officers. 

 
12.4 The Licensing Committee will consist of 15 Councillors. Where hearings are 

 necessary a Licensing Panel (also known as the Sub-Committee) of three 
 Councillors are expected to consider the bulk of applications. To mitigate 
 potential conflicts of interest Ward Councillors will not sit on a panels 
 involving an application within their ward. 

 
12.5 Every determination of a licensing application by the Licensing Committee 

or Licensing Panel shall be accompanied with clear, cogent reasons for the 
decision. 

 
12.6 It is expected that the authority’s licensing officers will handle with the 

majority of licence applications and will decide whether representations are 
irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious. The person making a representation, which is 
considered to be frivolous or vexatious, will be given written reasons for that 
decision. 

 
12.7 The authority will ensure that members and officers are appropriately 

trained to carry out their duties under the Act. 

 
12.8 The table at Appendix 1 sets out the agreed delegation of decisions and 

functions to Licensing Committee, Sub-Committee and Officers. 

 
12.9 Officers, a Licensing Panel and even the full Licensing Committee may 

decline to exercise their delegated powers in any particular case. On such 
occasions, officers may refer a matter to a Panel, the Panel to full Committee 
and the full Committee to the full Council. 

Page 114



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 37  

Appendix 1 – Table of delegations and licensing functions 
 

 
Matter to be dealt with Sub Committee Officers 

Application for 

personal licence with no 

convictions  

 All cases 

Application for personal licence 

with unspent convictions 

If objection notice or 

immigration objection 

notice is given and not 

withdrawn.    

If no objection notice or 
immigration objection 
notice given / objection 
notice has been 
withdrawn.  

Application for premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

If a relevant  
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application for provisional 

statement 

If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application to vary premises 
licence/club 

premises certificate 

If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Determination of a minor 

variation application 

 All cases 

Application to vary designated 

premises supervisor (DPS) 

If police object All other cases 

Request to be removed as 

designated premises supervisor 

 All cases 

Application to transfer of 

premises licence 

If police object All other cases 

Application for interim authorities If police object  All other cases 

Application to review premises 
licence/club premises certificate 

All cases  

Decision on whether a 
representation is irrelevant, 
frivolous, vexatious, etc. 

 All cases 

Decision to object when local 

authority is a consultee and not 

the relevant authority considering 

the application 

All cases  

Determination of an objection to 

a temporary event notice  

All cases   

Determination of application to 

vary premises licence at 

community premises to include 

alternative licence condition 

If police object All other cases  

Decision on whether to consult 

other responsible authorities in 

relation to a minor variation 

application 

 All cases  

Page 115



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 38  

A Full Committee will consist of 15 members. A Panel (Sub-Committee) will consist of 
3 members. 

Page 116



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 39  

Appendix 2 – Appeals procedure 
 

With the exception of appeals in relation to closure orders, an appeal may be made 
to any magistrates’ court in England or Wales. Despite this it is expected that 
appellants commence the process at the magistrates’ court in the area which they 
or the premises are situated. In South Lakeland the appeal process can be 
commenced by giving notice to the designated officer at Cumbria Magistrates Court 
Service, South Cumbria Magistrates Court, Abbey Road, Barrow-in- Furness, 
Cumbria, LA14 5QX.  

 
An appeal has to be commenced by the giving of notices of appeal by the appellant 
to the Magistrates’ Court with a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which 
the appellant was notified by the Licensing Authority of the decision to be appealed 
against. 

 
On determining an appeal, the court may: 

 

 Dismiss the appeal; 

 Substitute for the decision appeal against any other decision 
which could have made by the licensing authority; or 

 Remit the case to the licensing authority to dispose of it in 
accordance with the direction of the court and make such 
order as to costs as it thinks fit.  

 

All parties should be aware that a court may make an order for one party to pay the 
costs of the other party.  

Page 117



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 40  

Appendix 3 – Guides of best practice   
 

1.  Health and Safety Executive Website – Events Industry Forum Purple Guide 
and  many other guidance documents www.hse.gov.uk  

2.  The Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds (“The Green Guide”) plus supplementary 
guidance www.sgsa.org.uk   

3.  Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs 2003 – The 
Institute of Acoustics www.ioa.org.uk/publications   

4.  Safer Nightlife – Managing drugs at pubs, clubs and festivals 
www.safernightlife.info   

5.  Talk to Frank – Drugs A – Z www.talktofrank.com   
6   The Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion 

of  Alcoholic Drinks and the Code of Practice on Alcohol Sponsorship - 
www.portmangroup.org.uk  

7.  British Board of Film - Classification Guidelines – Classification 
Guidelines|BBFC   

8.  The Government Alcohol Strategy – www.gov.uk   
9.  Alcohol Change UK – www.alcoholchange.org.uk   
10.  Independent Street Arts Network – Independent Street Arts Network | Arts 

Council England  
11. British Beer & Pub Association – assorted policies - www.beerandpub.com   
12.  DCMS – Alcohol Licensing - www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing   
13.  National Pubwatch – www.nationalpubwatch.org.uk   
14.  Best Bar None – www.bbnuk.com    

 
This is not intended to be an exhaustive list of reference guides but is offered for 
guidance and may be revised. Where a proposed activity is not covered by the above, 
every effort should be made to research current best practice guidance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118

http://www.hse.gov.uk/
http://www.sgsa.org.uk/
http://www.ioa.org.uk/publications
http://www.safernightlife.info/
http://www.talktofrank.com/
http://www.portmangroup.org.uk/
https://www.bbfc.co.uk/about-classification/classification-guidelines
https://www.bbfc.co.uk/about-classification/classification-guidelines
http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.alcoholchange.org.uk/
https://www.artscouncil.org.uk/art-leadership/independent-street-arts-network
https://www.artscouncil.org.uk/art-leadership/independent-street-arts-network
http://www.beerandpub.com/
http://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing
http://www.nationalpubwatch.org.uk/
http://www.bbnuk.com/


Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 41  

Appendix 4 – List of consultees   
  
South Lakeland District Council  
 
All Town / Parish Councils within the South Lakeland District 
All Elected Members  
Specialist Health & Environment Team 
Specialist Planning and Development Management Team 
Communications Team Website  
 
Cumbria Constabulary  
Cumbria Constabulary, Busher Walk, Kendal. 
Chief Constable, Carleton Hall, Penrith  
 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service  
 

   Cumbria County Council Children’s Services  
 
   Cumbria County Council Trading Standards  
    
   Health and Safety Executive  
 
   Cumbria County Council Public Health  

 
All Responsible Authorities listed in appendix 5 
 

   Advertisement in Westmorland Gazette and North West Evening Mail  
    
   South Lakeland District Council newsletter subscribers 
 

   Neighbouring Licensing Authorities – Lancaster City Council,  
   Eden District Council, Allerdale Borough Council, Barrow Borough Council  
   Richmondshire District Council, Copeland Borough Council and Carlisle City 

Council 
 
Cumbria Alcohol and Drug Advisory Service, Stephenson Centre, Ann Street, 
Kendal  

Page 119



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 42  

Page 120



Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 43  

Appendix 5 – Contact information for Responsible Authorities  
 

Contact information –  
 

Completed applications and the applicable fee should be sent to - 
 

Licensing Authority   
South Lakeland House    
Lowther Street  
Kendal  
Cumbria  
LA9 4UD  
Tel: 01539 733333  
Email: licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk         
 

Responsible Authorities. Completed applications are circulated to the 
following agencies -  
 
Public Protection Group (Licensing, Environmental 
Protection, Health and Safety)  
South Lakeland District Council 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street 
Kendal 
Cumbria 
LA9 4UD 
Tel: 01539 733 333 
Email: publicprotection@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Home Office (Immigration 
Enforcement) Alcohol Licensing 
Team 
Lunar House 
40 Wellesley Road 
Croydon 
CR9 2BY  
Email: 
alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk 

 

 
Chief Officer of Police  
Cumbria Constabulary 
Busher Walk 
Kendal 
LA9 4RJ  
Email: southevents@cumbria.police.uk 

 

 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue 
Service  
Kendal Fire Station 
Busher Walk 
Kendal 
LA9 4RJ 
Email: 
kendal.technical@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 
Planning: SLDC  
South Lakeland House  
Lowther Street  
Kendal  
Cumbria 
LA9 4UD 
Tel: 01539 733 333 
Email:developmentmanagement@southlakeland.gov.uk  
 

 

 
Planning: Yorkshire Dales  
Yoredale House 
Bainbridge 
North Yorkshire 
DL8 3EL  
Tel: 01969 652 310 
Email: 
planning@yorkshiredales.org.uk 

 

Page 121

mailto:licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:publicprotection@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:southevents@cumbria.police.uk
mailto:kendal.technical@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:developmentmanagement@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:planning@yorkshiredales.org.uk


Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 44  

 
Planning: Lake District  
Murley Moss  
Oxenholme Road  
Kendal  
LA9 7RL  
Tel: 01539 792 609 
Email: planning@lake-district.gov.uk 

 

 
Trading Standards  
County Offices 
Stricklandgate 
Kendal 
LA9 4RQ  
Telephone: 01539 713 594 
Email: 
trading.standards@cumbria.gov.uk  

 
 
Child Protection  
Cumbria Safeguarding Children Partnership  
Cumbria House 
117 Botchergate 
Carlisle 
CA1 1RD 
Email: cscp@cumbria.gov.uk 

 

 
Director of Public Health  
Cumbria County Council 
Cumbria House 
117 Botchergate 
Carlisle 
CA1 1RD 
Email: 
pauline.mitchell@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

Appendix 6 Other Useful Addresses - 
 
 
British Institute of Innkeeping  
Wessex House  
80 Park Street  
Camberley  
Surrey  
GU15 3PT  
Tel: 01276 684449  
Email: reception@bii.org 

 

 
Security Industry Authority (SIA)  
PO Box 74957 
London  
E14 1UG 
Tel: 0300 123 9298 

 

 
City and Guilds  
1 Giltspur Street  
London  
EC1A 9DD  
Tel: 020 7294 2468  
Email: general.enquiries@cityandguilds.com 

 
Disclosure and Barring Service  
DBS customer services 
PO Box 3961 
Royal Wootton Bassett  
SN4 4HF 
Tel: 0300 200 190 
Email: customerservices@dbs.gov.uk 

 
 
Arts Council (North – Manchester office)  
49 Lever Street 
Manchester  
M1 1FN 
Web: www.artscouncil.org.uk   

 
Disability Rights Commission  
DRC Helpline 
Freepost MID01264 
Stratford upon Avon 
CV37 9BR 
Tel: 08457 622 633  
Web: www.drc.org.uk 
 

Page 122

mailto:planning@lake-district.gov.uk
mailto:trading.standards@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:cscp@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:pauline.mitchell@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:general.enquiries@cityandguildsgroup.com
mailto:customerservices@dbs.gov.uk
http://www.artscouncil.org.uk/
http://www.drc.org.uk/


Appendix 1 

P a g e  | 45  

 
Equity  
Guild House  
Upper Martins Lane  
London  
WC2H 9EG 
Tel: 0207 379 6000 
Email: info@equity.org.uk 
Web: www.equity.org.uk  

 
UK Hospitality 
10 Bloomsbury Way 
London, England  
WC1A 2SL  
Tel: 020 7404 7744 
Web: www.ukhospitality.org.uk  

 
British Beer and Pub Association 
Ground Floor  
61 Queen Street  
London 
EC4R 1EB 
Tel: 020 7627 9191 
Email: contact@beerandpub.com 
Web: www.beerandpub.com 

 

 
British Board of Film Classification 
3 Soho Square  
London 
W1D 3HD 
Tel: 0207 4401 570 
Email: helpline@bbfc.co.uk 
Web: www.bbfc.co.uk  

 
South Cumbria Magistrates Court  
Abbey Road  
Barrow in Furness  
Cumbria  
LA14 5QX 
Tel: 01229 820 161 
Email:cumbria.south.magistrates@justice.gov.uk 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 123

mailto:info@equity.org.uk
http://www.equity.org.uk/
http://www.ukhospitality.org.uk/
mailto:contact@beerandpub.com
http://www.beerandpub.com/
mailto:helpline@bbfc.co.uk
http://www.bbfc.co.uk/
mailto:cumbria.south.magistrates@justice.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Appendix 2 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Health and Sustainability Impact 

Assessment Form 
SLDC Statement of Licensing Policy 

  

Page 125

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

2 

Environment and health 

Greenhouse gas emissions 

SLDC’s aim is to be carbon neutral by 2030: How will your proposal affect greenhouse gas 

emissions? 

Consider:  

Energy saving, for example preventing unnecessary use of energy - reducing use of 

appliances or cutting down on journeys that are not required. 

Improving energy efficiency - ensures that the maximum benefit is gained from energy that 

is used. For example energy is not wasted or lost through insulation, heating the right areas 

and efficient lighting. 

Renewable generation for example using renewable resources, such as wind, sunlight, 

rainwater. 

Minimising emissions from transport. 

Response:  

Neutral Impact on Greenhouse gas emissions. The Statement of Licensing Policy sets out 

the basis on which decisions under the Licensing Act 2003 will be made and strives to 

achieve a local balance between the commercial interest of the licensing trade and the 

communities they serve and affect. There is no mechanism within the Act, or the Statutory 

guidance (issued under s182 of the Licensing Act 2003), which would enable SLDC to 

address greenhouse gas emissions through this policy. 

Alternative ways to deliver proposal 

Please show how you are addressing alternative ways of delivering your proposal with a 

reduced or zero requirement for energy, building space, materials or travel   

How are you using the waste/energy hierarchy – 1) avoid, 2) reduce, 3) reuse? 

Response:  

Neutral Impact. There is no mechanism within the Act, or the Statutory guidance (issued 

under s182 of the Licensing Act 2003), which would enable SLDC to deliver this policy in an 

alternative way. 

Air quality 

Please demonstrate how your project will have an impact on air quality. 

Response:  

Page 126



 

3 

Neutral Impact. The policy would impact on air quality. 

Biodiversity 

Please outline any impacts on biodiversity that your proposal might have  

“To halt overall biodiversity loss, support healthy well-functioning ecosystems and establish 

coherent ecological networks, (create) more and better places for nature for the benefit of 

wildlife and people”: Biodiversity 2020: A strategy for England’s wildlife and ecosystem 

services, DEFRA. 

Response:  

Neutral Impact. 

Climate change impact 

How does your proposal mitigate the impacts of climate change?  

Assess the risks and impacts associated with climate change (extreme weather events: 

flooding, heatwaves, droughts and fires) and the implications for our services and 

communities. Describe measures in place to embed resilience and recovery. 

Response:  

Neutral Impact. 

Active travel 

How does the proposal enable active travel?  

Encouraging and facilitating walking, cycling and public transport. 

Response:  

Neutral Impact. Active Travel is outside the scope of the policy. 

Economy and culture 

Sustainable development 

How does the proposal contribute to inclusive and sustainable development? 

Response:  

Neutral Impact 

Page 127



 

4 

Pay 

How does the proposal impact on jobs and levels of pay? 

Response:  

Neutral Impact  

Healthier high streets 

Demonstrate how the proposal contributes to healthier high streets. 

Response:  

Neutral Impact.   

Culture, creativity and heritage 

How does the proposal impact on culture, creativity or heritage and if not can they be 

embedded in this proposal? 

Response:  

Neutral Impact  

Housing and communities 

Housing standards 

Does the proposal lead to an improvement in the standard of housing? 

Response:  

Neutral Impact 

Access to housing 

How does the proposal increase access to housing? 

Response:  

Neutral Impact  

Crime and fear of crime 

How does the proposal reduce crime or fear of crime? 

Response:  

Page 128



 

5 

Positive Impact. The prevention of Crime and Disorder is one of the four licensing 

objectives (along with Public Safety, The Prevention of Public Nuisance, and The Protection 

of children from harm). All four objectives have equal importance, and the promotion of all 

four objectives is a paramount consideration within the policy. 

The Policy recognises the key role which local police have in relation to licensed premises 

and provides powers to effectively manage and police the night-time economy. These 

include full powers to determine licensing applications, to impose conditions on how a 

premises may operate, and to review the license of a premises which may be linked to 

increased crime. 

The Policy also provides a mechanism to undertake cumulative impact assessments of an 

area where the licensable activity may be resulting in increased levels of crime and anti-

social behaviour. 

Social connectedness 

How does the proposal increase social connectedness? 

Response:  

Neutral impact  

Health and sustainability impact summary 

Each category is rated either: Positive, Negative, Neutral, or unknown 

Environment and Health 

Greenhouse gases emissions: Type rating (e.g. Positive) for categories below 

Air Quality: Neutral 

Biodiversity: Neutral 

Impacts on climate change: Neutral 

Reduced or zero requirement for energy, building space, materials or travel: Neutral 

Active travel: Neutral 

Economy and Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable development: 

Jobs and level of pay: Neutral 

Healthier high streets: Neutral 

Culture creativity and heritage: Neutral 

Page 129



 

6 

Housing and communities 

Standard of housing: Neutral 

Access to housing: Neutral 

Crime: Positive 

Social connectedness: Neutral 

Health and sustainability action plan 

What actions will be taken to eliminate or minimise any negative impacts identified above? 

No negative impacts have been identified. 

 

 

 

Page 130



Appendix 3 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Equality Impact Assessment Form 

SLDC Statement of Licensing Policy 

Page 131

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

2 

 

 

SLDC Statement of Licensing Policy 

Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that each Licensing Authority is to 
determine and publish a statement of its Licensing Policy once every five years. 
The policy mst be published before it carries out any licensing function under the 
Licensing Act 2003.  
 
The statement sets out the basis in which the decisions under the Licensing Act 
2003 will be made. The policy strives to achieve a local balance between the 
commercial interest of the licensing trade and the communities it serves and affects  

 

Main stakeholders: 

 The Chief of Police for Cumbria 

 The Fire Authority for Cumbria 

 The Local Authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH) 

 Persons/bodies representative of local premises licence holders 

 Persons/bodies representative of local club premises certificate holders 

 Persons/bodies representative of local personal licence holders 

 Persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents 

Consultation/ engagement undertaken: The statement of Licensing policy will be subject to 

consultation with the above stakeholders over a 6 week period commencing 29th November 

2021. 

Impacts on people 

What impacts/issues have been identified about how the proposal impacts on people? 

Each category is rated either: Positive, Neutral or Negative 

Age: Type rating (e.g. Positive) for categories below 

Positive; The objective of ‘Protection of children from harm’ is one of the four statutory 

licensing objectives. This includes the protection of children from moral, psychological, and 

physical harm. The adoption of this policy gives SLDC broad powers in protecting children 

from harm and applicants are required to set out the steps they will take in the operation of 

their premises for SLDC to consider when issuing a license. Controls may be placed on 

Page 132



 

3 

how a premises may operate if this objective is not promoted by the operator. 

Disability: Neutral 

Gender reassignment: Neutral 

Marriage and civil partnership: Neutral 

Pregnancy and maternity: Neutral 

Race/ethnicity: Neutral 

Religion or belief: Neutral 

Sex/gender: Neutral 

Sexual orientation: Neutral 

Armed forces families: Neutral 

Rurality: Neutral 

Socio-economic disadvantage: Neutral 

Equality action plan 

What actions will be taken to eliminate or minimise the negative impacts identified above? 

No negative impacts have been identified.  

 

Report details 

Date of report: 08/11/21 

EIA Author(s): Sean Hall 

Director: Simon Rowley 

Document version number: 1 

Date for review: The Statement of Licensing Policy covers a 5 year period between January 

2022 and January 2027 unless there are changes to legislation or statutory guidance within 

that time period. The Equality Impact Assessment will be reviewed in line with the policy. 

EIA forwarded to Strategy Specialist: Yes 

Glossary 

Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being 

Page 133



 

4 

within an age group (for example, 18-30 year-olds).  

Armed Forces Families: Those who have served or who are serving in the Armed Forces 

and their families. 

Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners 

must be treated the same as married couples on a range of legal matters.  

Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has 

a substantial and long-term adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day 

activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning disability. 

Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if 

the person is proposing to undergo, is undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a 

process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological or other 

attributes of sex. 

Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment 

context. In the non-work context, protection against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks 

after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.  

Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including 

citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, Asian, Black and White minority ethnic 

groups including. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.  

Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. 

“Belief” includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (for example, 

Atheism). The category includes Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, and non 

religious beliefs such as Humanism. 

Rurality: South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this means we have at least 80 percent 

of our population in rural settlements and larger market towns. Issues affecting the health 

and wellbeing of rural communities include: low-paid work, unemployment of young people, 

high costs of housing and fuel poverty, poor access to health services, lack of public 

transport and poorer broadband and mobile phone network availability. Social isolation is 

also an issue especially among older people – in South Lakeland 27.7% of the population 

are aged over 65. The ageing rural population brings a number of challenges. These 

include the fact that older people often have poorer health and greater care needs, issues 

compounded by the greater distances to healthcare services and poor public transport. 

South Lakeland (2015) features most poorly in deprivation indices in “Barriers to Housing 

and Services Domain” (which relate to the physical proximity of local services, and issues 

relating to access to housing, such as affordability) and the “Living Environment Deprivation 

Domain” (The 'indoors' living environment measures the quality of housing; while the 

'outdoors' living environment contains measures of air quality and road traffic accidents. 

Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, 

the opposite sex or to both sexes.  

Page 134



 

5 

Socio-economic disadvantage: This includes people on low incomes, as well as issues 

around rural and urban deprivation, such as access to services and transport. SLDC must 

adopt effective measures to address the inequalities that result from differences in 

occupation, education, place of residence or social class. Socio-economic disadvantage 

includes: Income, employment, health, education, housing, discrimination and local 

concentrations of deprivation. 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Licensing Sub-Committees
	19-06-20 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes
	11-01-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes - 10.00am
	11-01-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes - 1.00pm
	01-02-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes
	09-04-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes
	05-05-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes
	06-07-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes
	31-08-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes - 10.00am
	31-08-21 Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes - 1.30pm

	4 Emergency Non-Executive Decisions
	Agenda

	8 Review of Licensing Fees and Charges 2022/2023
	Review of Licensing Fees and Charges 2022/2023  - Appendix 1
	Review of Licensing Fees and Charges 2022/2023  - Appendix 2
	Review of Licensing Fees and Charges 2022/2023  - Appendix 3

	9 The Licensing Act 2003 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy
	Appendix 1 - Draft Statement of Licensing Policy  - Appendix 1
	Appendix 2 - Health & Sustainability Assessment
	Appendix 3 - Equality Impact Assessment


